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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS OF THE
ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED AND THIRTEENTH

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Columbus, Ohio, November 16-18, 2021

The Board of Trustees and its committees met in the Longaberger Alumni House in Columbus, Ohio,
and virtually over Zoom, on November 16-18, 2021, pursuant to adjournment.

*k *k *k

Minutes of the last meetings were approved.
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WEXNER MEDICAL CENTER BOARD MEETING

Board Secretary Jessica Eveland called the meeting of the Wexner Medical Center Board to order
on Tuesday, November 16, 2021, at 1:01 p.m.

Members Present: Leslie H. Wexner, Abigail S. Wexner, Erin P. Hoeflinger, Hiroyuki Fujita, Alan A.
Stockmeister, John W. Zeiger, Carly G. Sobol, Robert H. Schottenstein, Cindy Hilsheimer, Gary R.
Heminger (ex officio), Kristina M. Johnson (ex officio), Melissa L. Gilliam (ex officio), Michael
Papadakis (ex officio), Mark Larmore (ex officio), Andrew Thomas (ex officio)

Members Present via Zoom: Stephen D. Steinour, Amy Chronis

Members Absent: W.G. Jurgensen

(See Appendix XXVIII for Summary of Actions Taken, page 768)

*kk

FULL-BOARD EXECUTIVE SESSION

Board Chair Gary Heminger called the meeting of the Board of Trustees to order on Wednesday,
November 17 at 7:59 a.m.

Members Present: Gary R. Heminger, Abigail S. Wexner, Alexander R. Fischer, Hiroyuki Fujita, Alan
A. Stockmeister, John W. Zeiger, Elizabeth P. Kessler, Jeff M.S. Kaplan, Elizabeth A. Harsh,
Reginald A. Wilkinson, Tom B. Mitevski, Carly G. Sobol, Tanner R. Hunt

Members Present via Zoom: Brent R. Porteus, Erin P. Hoeflinger, Lewis Von Thaer, Michael Kiggin

Members Absent: N/A

Mr. Heminger:
Will the Secretary please advise when a quorum is present?

Ms. Eveland:
A quorum is present.

Mr. Heminger:
Thank you. At this time, | would like to convene this meeting of the Board of Trustees and move
that the Board recess into executive session to consult with legal counsel regarding pending or
imminent litigation, to consider business-sensitive trade secrets required to be kept confidential by
federal and state statutes, and to discuss personnel matters involving the appointment,
employment and compensation of public officials, which are required to be kept confidential under
Ohio law.
Upon the motion of Mr. Heminger, seconded by Mr. Kaplan, the Board of Trustees adopted the
foregoing motion by unanimous roll call vote, cast by trustees: Mr. Heminger, Mrs. Wexner, Mr.
Porteus, Mrs. Hoeflinger, Mr. Fischer, Dr. Fujita, Mr. Stockmeister, Mr. Zeiger, Ms. Kessler, Mr.

Von Thaer, Mr. Kaplan, Mrs. Harsh, Dr. Wilkinson, Mr. Kiggin, Mr. Mitevski, Ms. Sobol, Mr. Hunt.

The meeting entered executive session at 8:00 a.m. and adjourned at 10:30 a.m.
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TALENT, COMPENSATION & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

Committee Chair Hiroyuki Fujita called the meeting of the Talent, Compensation and Governance
Committee of the Board of Trustees to order on Wednesday, November 17, 2021, at 11:08 a.m.

Members Present: Hiroyuki Fujita, Lewis Von Thaer, Abigail S. Wexner, John W. Zeiger, Elizabeth
P. Kessler, Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Members Present via Zoom: N/A

Members Absent: Brent R. Porteus, Alexander R. Fischer

(See Appendix XXIX for Summary of Actions Taken, page 828)

*kk

RESEARCH, INNOVATION & STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS COMMITTEE MEETING

Committee Chair Lewis Von Thaer called the meeting of the Research, Innovation and Strategic
Partnerships Committee of the Board of Trustees to order on Wednesday, November 17, 2021, at
1:32 p.m.

Members Present: Lewis Von Thaer, Alexander R. Fischer, Hiroyuki Fujita, Reginald A. Wilkinson,
Carly G. Sobol, Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Members Present via Zoom: Erin P. Hoeflinger

Members Absent: N/A

(See Appendix XXX for Summary of Actions Taken, page 845)

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS & STUDENT LIFE COMMITTEE MEETING

Committee Vice Chair Jeff Kaplan called the meeting of the Academic Affairs and Student Life
Committee of the Board of Trustees to order on Wednesday, November 17, 2021, at 3:34 p.m.

Members Present: Brent R. Porteus (joined late), Jeff M.S. Kaplan, Elizabeth P. Kessler, Elizabeth
A. Harsh, Reginald A. Wilkinson, Tom B. Mitevski, Tanner R. Hunt, Susan V. Olesik, Gary R.
Heminger (ex officio)

Members Present via Zoom: Abigail S. Wexner, Michael Kiggin

Members Absent: N/A

(See Appendix XXXI for Summary of Actions Taken, page 870)

*hk

MASTER PLANNING & FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING

Committee Chair Alex Fischer called the meeting of the Master Planning and Facilities Committee of
the Board of Trustees to order on Thursday, November 18, 2021, at 8:00 a.m.
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Members Present: Alexander R. Fischer, Brent R. Porteus, Alan A. Stockmeister, Elizabeth A Harsh,
Reginald A. Wilkinson, Tanner R. Hunt, Robert H. Schottenstein, Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Members Present via Zoom: James D. Klingbeil

Members Absent: N/A

(See Appendix XXXII for Summary of Actions Taken, page 925)

*hk

AUDIT, FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE MEETING

Committee Chair John Zeiger called the meeting of the Audit, Finance and Investment Committee of
the Board of Trustees to order on Thursday, November 18, 2021, at 9:59 a.m.

Members Present: John W. Zeiger, Erin P. Hoeflinger, Lewis Von Thaer, Jeff M.S. Kaplan, Tom B.
Mitevski, Carly G. Sobol, Kent M. Stahl, Gary R. Heminger (ex officio, joined late)

Members Present via Zoom: Michael Kiggin, James D. Klingbeil, Amy Chronis

Members Absent: N/A

(See Appendix XXXIII for Summary of Actions Taken, page 976)

Tk

LEGAL, RISK & COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

Committee Chair Elizabeth Kessler called the meeting of the Legal, Risk and Compliance Committee
of the Board of Trustees to order on Thursday, November 18, 2021, at 1:29 p.m.

Members Present: Elizabeth P. Kessler, Alan A. Stockmeister, Jeff M.S. Kaplan, Elizabeth A. Harsh,
Tom B. Mitevski, Tanner D. Hunt, Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Members Present via Zoom: Michael Kiggin

Members Absent: N/A

(See Appendix XXXIV for Summary of Actions Taken, page 1105)

FULL-BOARD PUBLIC SESSION

Board Chair Gary Heminger reconvened The Ohio State University Board of Trustees on Thursday,
November 18, 2021, at 3:29 p.m.

Members Present: Gary R. Heminger, Brent R. Porteus, Hiroyuki Fujita, Alan A. Stockmeister, John
W. Zeiger, Elizabeth P. Kessler, Lewis Von Thaer, Jeff M.S. Kaplan, Elizabeth A. Harsh, Reginald A.
Wilkinson, Tom B. Mitevski, Carly G. Sobol, Tanner R. Hunt,

Members Present via Zoom: Abigail S. Wexner, Erin P. Hoeflinger, Michael Kiggin

Members Absent: Alexander R. Fischer
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Mr. Heminger:

Good afternoon. Will the Secretary please advise when a quorum is present?
Ms. Eveland:

A quorum is present.
Mr. Heminger:

Thank you. At this time, | would like to convene this meeting of the Board of Trustees. Reminder
to everyone that this meeting is being recorded and livestreamed for the public by WOSU.

Tk

ADDRESS TO THE BOARD ON RICHARD STRAUSS
Mr. Heminger:

At this time, | would like to recognize former students who have asked to speak this afternoon
about their experiences related to Richard Strauss. We have allotted 10 minutes on our agenda
for your remarks.

Today, the Board is here to listen. Given the pending litigation, our legal counsel has advised us
that we are unable to engage in dialogue or answer questions at this time. We want you to know,
however, that you are being heard. And before we proceed, | would like President Johnson, please,
to give a few remarks.

Dr. Johnson:

Thank you, Chairman Heminger. | want to first start by extending our welcome to you. On behalf
of the entire Ohio State University, | am deeply sorry. What Richard Strauss did is unconscionable,
and the university’s failure to act at the time is unacceptable. As Chairman Heminger shared, we
are here to listen. You should also know that confidential support resources are available to anyone
who may need them today. And again, thank you for being here. | know it is courageous. And at
this time, we welcome your remarks.

Mr. Avis:

Hi, my name is Gary Avis. | first spoke out about Dr. Strauss and what he did three years ago, but
then | became a John Doe. But recently, about a month ago, | decided to speak out in public again,
because | think it is important for people to know what this did to us, what it did to me personally,
and also our frustration at not being heard.

Itis also a much bigger issue than just us or me. This happens at other universities, too — Michigan
State, Michigan, the list goes on and on. What this did to me is, it caused me to turn to alcohol and
drugs, which nearly killed me. And I'm having to deal with this stuff in therapy right now and it's
very, very difficult to get through this. | think especially as a man having to speak about, you know,
rape and sexual assault when it happens to you is very difficult. And my view on things is the same
as before.

| first spoke up because | didn’t want this to happen to anybody ever again. And | want to make

sure that there is real change on both sides — not just on the reporting side, but what happens to
people who work at Ohio State or volunteer at Ohio State who do this type of thing. And
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unfortunately, all | have heard from Ohio State is, you know, | hear the right things, but the actions
don’t match the words. “We’re going to do the right thing,” is what | hear, or “We’re sorry this
happened to you.” But then your attorneys move to dismiss the lawsuit; they don’t bargain in good
faith. Meanwhile, you are causing more pain to people — to me and to the other survivors. None of
us got into this for the money. We got into this because we know what is right and what is wrong.
And | want to see the university and the Board of Trustees do what is right — do, not say. Because
we’ve heard your words; we haven’t seen your actions. That’s all | have to say.

Mr. Snyder-Hill:

My name is Steve Snyder-Hill and | wanted to intentionally not read off of a sheet today, | wanted
to just use bullet points, and then | forgot my reading glasses, so I'm going to have to do a lot of
this from memory. | don’t know the right words to say to you to appeal to your hearts. | know that
some of you are parents, some of you are grandparents. And | stayed up thinking that | could come
in here and yell at you and tell you how awful | feel you have treated us survivors. And that’s not
productive. | don’t want to do that. | want you to be better than that, and | know that you can be
better than that. | know that deep down inside there has to be a caring human being in there
somewhere, that cares about the 300-plus people that got dismissed — 300 hurting people out
there who are dismissed, and that’s terrible. | just want you to stop for a moment and think about
this.

Please put your child, anybody you know, any family member, in any of our situations. | want you
to imagine that your child goes to a university, the one that you're in charge of right now, and |
want you to imagine that your child gets molested by somebody. And your child goes and tries to
tell somebody. And then they take your child into a room and put them in front of powerful doctors
and in front of the person who molested them, and your child tells a story to this person, and he
slams his hand down on the table and says, “You're trying to ruin my reputation,” in front of all
these OSU doctors, in front of the guy that [they] reported this to. Imagine that was your child. And
then imagine Louise Douse, your employee, looking at your child and telling your child, “You're
confused and mistaken about what happened to you.” Imagine how humiliated your child would
feel in that situation, if they looked at them and said, “You're confused and mistaken about what
happened to you.” That's what happened to me and I'm no different than anybody, any of these
reporters that I've talked to from The Lantern. That'’s the first thing | tell them, “| know | come across
as angry, but there’s a reason, because | worry about you.” That's what this is about for me.

| would like you to acknowledge to me if you have had a chance to review the video that | asked
you to review from The Lantern. Can you raise your hands if you've reviewed that? | would love
for you to take the time and listen to my story. Because that would mean the world to me. That's
what we want. We want to be heard. That'’s all we want. We don’t want to be dismissed; we want
to be heard. You know, | don’t want to come across, | want to appeal to you, | don’t want to come
across as angry. | want you to understand the trauma that is caused when Ben Johnson gets up
and makes a statement — and I'm not attacking Ben Johnson, | know this is his job — but when he
gets up and tells me, “We’re trying to know who may have known and what may have happened.”
| heard that so many times. And at the same time, you released the clean personnel file saying
Richard Strauss did nothing to the public. You knew because you had my paperwork saying he
pushed his erect penis against me. So, how do you think that makes me feel, trauma-wise, to hear
Ben Johnson say, “We don’t know what may have happened or who may have known”? How do
you think that makes me feel when | ask over and over to come to speak to you today and | don'’t
get a response? And then a reporter reaches out and says, “Oh they told me that they thought
your complaint was not active.” What does that mean? Like, what if this was your child? Would
you guys let anybody treat your child the way you’re treating us?
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| don’t want to be angry at you. You are better than this. The OSU that | believe in is better than
this. | want you to listen to us. | want you to know that the OSU of 20, 30, 40 years ago is the same
OSU of today. And I'm really concerned that if you have another Richard Strauss, based on the
actions that I've seen from 2018 on, nothing is going to change. Nothing. And that's what we want
to stop. Please listen to us. That’s all we want you to do. God, | don’t know the right words to say
to you guys, because | don’t want to scald you, | want to appeal to the human being inside of you,
to understand that we’re no different than your kids. We shouldn’t come in here and be a threat.
You shouldn’t worry all day long that we’re going to say awful words that Ben Johnson is going to
have to rectify in some press release later. We are on the same team. | guarantee nobody in this
room wants a Richard Strauss to do what he did. Nobody. You or us. So, we should be on the
same team. | should be your biggest ally. | should be your biggest advocate to make sure this
doesn’t happen. Because that's what | want. That's what all of us want. Nobody wanted to be
dismissed in court. You guys decided that course of action, you decided that that was going to be
your defense. And that’s the defense you took — that it's just been too long. But | can tell you, |
would love to see if you would do that to your own child. Because that’s what you did to us. | want
to look into each one of your faces and know who the people are that make these decisions.
Because it's awful to us. And | just want you to think about that. | want you to think about that when
we’re gone and the cameras aren’t on us, when you go home, that we’re no different than your
child. And that’s really all | have to say.

We have one other speaker who does not want to be on camera. So, if we can get the cameras
not on him, please.

John Doe:

I'd like to thank you for this opportunity. It's going to be very difficult. As early as being four years
old, | was a Buckeye. | was an Ohio State fan. | was born and raised here in Ohio. Scarlet and
gray were my colors. As | grew older, | knew my passion was to become an Olympic gymnast.
After becoming a state champion in high school, | knew my path was to move forward to reach my
dream. | was given the opportunity to join the Ohio State men’s gymnastics team — to join a
prestigious brotherhood, an amazing athletic department, my Ohio State family. | was on cloud
nine. Fresh out of high school, chasing my dreams. After being brought into Ohio State and
practicing with my Olympic Coach, Peter Kormann — who they did an amazing job hiring — | thought
with hard work and dedication | could earn my degree and represent the university that | loved and
admired.

In gymnastics, we are taught everything counts — every toe point, every move makes a difference.
| had no idea | would be introduced to an Ohio State doctor who would sexually and mentally
abuse me. | had no idea that the university would harbor and protect a sexual predator for over 20
years. He should have been removed before | showed up. And you guys may not have known
about it, you may not have been here, but we were. The people that were in your seats, they knew
about it, the people before you. It is up to you guys to make things right. By now everybody knows
the stories, so I'm not going to continue down the path of telling you everything you already know.
You guys are all very intelligent people. We are all very intelligent people. | want to move forward.
We can’t move forward unless you guys do something to help us move forward. We've been
treated like you don’t care. The politicians have lied to us. The university has failed to support us.
We are at the point that you have to do something.

And like Steve said, these were kids. Your grandkids — what example are you setting for them?
Eventually they’re going to get older and they’re going to know what happened. They're going to
come up to you and say, “Grandma, grandpa, what did you do? You were on the Board.” What are
you going to tell them? We teach our children to be accountable for their actions. That's what |
teach my daughter. We teach our children that their actions speak louder than words. | ask you to
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step up and hold yourselves accountable. As a member of the Board, please make a change. This
should never happen to any other students ever again. Never! And if you don’t change it, it will.
Speaking on behalf of my fellow gymnasts and survivors, many that couldn’t be here today, we
are not going to stop. We are not going to fade away. We are going to be here until something is
done. Until the day | die, | am going to continuously try to move things. We are alumni of The Ohio
State University. We are proud alumni. We need you to restore our dignity, not just look at us like
we’re nobodies. Thank you.

Mr. Snyder-Hill:

We want to close by saying one thing that | forgot to mention. Judge Watson said specifically, he
quoted Chairman Gasser when he said that you were going to do the right thing. He quoted that,
that’'s why he ordered us to mediation. And then Mr. Heminger said he wanted to be clear that
they were committed to a monetary resolution. | want to be clear — | don’t understand why we are
still sitting here. And maybe I’'m not clear on what you meant by that; | don’t know. The judge just
threw out the remaining lawsuits and, again, a federal judge said that he hopes, the court hopes,
that you will do the right thing. Our governor, a federal judge, lawmakers, and the undergraduate
student government all supported House Bill 249. How many people have to prod you to do the
right thing? A federal judge twice now has said that the court hopes you will. How can you guys
live with yourselves? That's all we have.

Mr. Heminger:

Gentlemen, thank you for coming today. As President Johnson said, we have heard you and we
appreciate your time. The Board will now take a short recess.

F*kk

RECONVENE MEETING
Mr. Heminger:

I will now reconvene this meeting of the Board of Trustees, and | want to start by welcoming our
newest undergraduate student trustee — Tanner Hunt of Westerville — to his first in-person, full-
Board meeting. Tanner was appointed to the Board over the summer, but due to a research trip in
Alaska, he was unable to join us for our August meeting. Tanner, we are thrilled to have you and
glad you could be here this time, and we look forward to working with you.

Mr. Hunt:
Thank you.
*kk
APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Mr. Heminger:
Our first order of business is the approval of our August Board meeting minutes, which were

distributed to all trustees. If there are no additions or corrections, the minutes are approved as
distributed.

*kk
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PRESIDENT’S REPORT

Mr. Heminger:

Before | turn the floor over to President Johnson, | want to pause for a moment to acknowledge
what a momentous week this is for The Ohio State University. Tomorrow, we will celebrate the
formal investiture of the 16th president of this great institution. It has been a busy week filled with
activities honoring this special time, and | want to join the university community in expressing how
important this milestone is for Ohio State.

President Johnson, you took the helm of this university during an unprecedented time. Our world
had turned upside down at just about the same time you became a Buckeye. But you have led
Ohio State with a calm, steady hand — keeping this community together and moving forward during
a situation unlike anything we had ever seen. Your accomplishments over this past year are truly
remarkable. My colleagues and | could not be more pleased to congratulate you on your
investiture. And we look forward to celebrating you tomorrow. May | have a round of applause for
President Johnson? (applause)

Thank you. Now, | will turn it over to President Johnson for her report. Dr. Johnson?
Dr. Johnson:

Thank you very much, Chairman Heminger. And good afternoon. | would like to also acknowledge
Tanner’s first meeting with us in person as and as our undergraduate student representative.
Thank you and welcome!

Also, thanks to Buckeyes like Tanner and Carly Sobol, our graduate student trustee, as well as
our faculty, staff, partners and supporters, Ohio State is thriving as we go into this week.

Reactivating our campuses and returning to so many of the activities and traditions we love has
been a success thanks to our students and the entire university community. Ohio State’s
vaccination rate for the entire community is over 92% — which is exceptional. We had a terrific
Homecoming Weekend, Parent & Family Weekend, Saturdays in the 'Shoe and more. Sadly, this
Saturday will be our last home football game. | am also honored and very proud that our fall break
was able to happen once again this year. It is a sign that we are prioritizing time for students to
build resilience, relax and renew.

During halftime of the Buckeyes’ win over Penn State late last month, we were pleased and
excited to announce the Jeffrey Schottenstein Program for Resilience, made possible by a $10
million gift from Jeanie and Jay Schottenstein and their family. After the challenges of the last
year, the timing and importance of this effort to support mental health and resilience cannot be
overstated. Thank you so much to the Schottenstein family for your generosity — and we will
continue to share details as this vital program is launched.

Along with our football Buckeyes, our athletics teams have had a terrific fall. Just a few highlights:
Our women’s hockey team opened its season as the second-ranked team in the nation, and
Coach Nadine Muzerall had her 100th career win. Field hockey’s Emma Goldean, women'’s cross
country’s Addie Engel and men’s soccer’s Laurence Wooten all earned All-Big Ten Conference
honors. And women’s soccer advanced to the NCAA tournament for the 15th time. Buckeyes on
the men’s and women’s tennis teams won ITA All-American doubles championships and
women'’s volleyball has been ranked in the top 10 for a school-record 12 weeks. We have also
found ways to get more Buckeyes from around the world involved. The university has launched
a livestream of the Skull Session before home football games. We have had more than 15,000
live views since making this exciting, pre-game tradition available online. Congratulations to all
our student-athletes, coaches and Athletics Director Gene Smith and his staff on a great fall.
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Our number-one priority remains the safety of our campus community. We have worked with The
Ohio State University Police Department and the Columbus Division of Police to increase the
presence of law enforcement, security personnel, lighting and security cameras off campus. In
September, we announced an additional $2 million a year, every year, in this decade — in
addition to our annual investment of $32 million — bringing our total to $34 million to enhance
safety on and around campus. Each week, | provide a safety update video along with the regular
Ohio State News alerts, which are also available to parents and families through text messaging.
We have seen a significant decline in major crimes in the off-campus area, and we will continue
to communicate broadly and frequently on Ohio State’s efforts and enhanced resources.

Throughout the fall, and as we look ahead, we continue to make academic excellence a priority.
We welcomed one of the brightest and most diverse classes in our history this fall. Among the
record number of enrolled Buckeyes in Columbus, 64% of new first-year students were in the top
10% of their high school class — and 94% were in the top 25%. We also had record-high minority
student enrollment at all campuses.

Our Department of Agricultural, Environmental, and Development Economics was ranked first
out of 39 such departments in the U.S. for scholarly research. Our AEDE department is located
in the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences. And congratulations to Dean
Cathann Kress and her faculty and staff.

Dance professor Nyama McCarthy-Brown has been selected as a 2021 Dance Teacher Award
honoree. Dr. McCarthy-Brown is a renowned performer, scholar and author — a testament to the
critical importance of the arts and creative expression in helping to shape our world. Dr.
Wondwossen Gebreyes has been elected to the National Academy of Medicine’s 2021 class of
inductees. He serves as a professor of veterinary preventive medicine and executive director of
the Global One Health Initiative — and is on the leading edge of molecular epidemiological
research. This semester, he is doing an ACE fellowship at Michigan State University.

And congratulations to Dr. Umit Ozgiiner, who was awarded a Lifetime Achievement Award by
the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers Intelligent Transportation Systems Society.
Dr. Ozgiiner was recognized for his pioneering contributions to intelligent vehicles. Buckeyes are
leading the way in so many different areas of importance in the knowledge enterprise that that
impacts lives everywhere. The U.S. Department of Energy has selected Ohio State as one of 10
“Connected Communities.” Ohio State is convening partners to form an interdisciplinary team
that will develop a pilot cluster of campus buildings and energy assets as a microgrid controlled
by Al tools. Our team will receive a $4.2 million grant.

And last week, we were joined by Congresswoman Joyce Beatty, Congressman Troy Balderson
and Congressman Mike Carey, trustee Lou Von Thaer, and National Science Foundation Director
Sethuraman Panchanathan for the groundbreaking of Ohio State’s Energy Advancement and
Innovation Center. This hub for faculty, students, alumni, entrepreneurs, industry experts and
more will focus on the next generation of smart systems and sustainability solutions. It is part of
the first part of our Innovation District — and it was wonderful to welcome all of our friends and
guests, including Dr. Panchanathan.

Ohio State is home to two new artificial intelligence research institutes, part of 11 established by
the National Science Foundation this fall: they are the Al Institute for Future Edge Networks and
Distributed Intelligence (AI-EDGE) and the Al Institute for Intelligent Cyberinfrastructure with
Computational Learning in the Environment (ICICLE). Together, they will receive a total of $20
million over five years. We are excited to see the NSF recognize our centers as leading institutes
for Al research.

Ohio State also has been awarded a $15 million grant from the NSF to lead the creation of an

interdisciplinary institute and establish a new field that has the potential to transform biomedical,
agricultural, and basic biological sciences. The entity, called the Imageomics Institute, is part of
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the NSF’s Harnessing the Data Revolution initiative — a national collaborative of a research
network dedicated to computation-enabled discovery.

In terms of some other strategic priorities, we are so excited to share just a few examples of how
Buckeyes are impacting lives in our state, nation and world. Locally. last month, Collin’s Law,
Ohio’s anti-hazing act, went into effect. Ohio State has been a strong supporter of this legislation,
in addition to the Inter-University Council of Ohio’s Anti-Hazing Principles, which | joined
Governor Mike DeWine and my fellow presidents to unveil this summer. We continue to work
closely with our city and state leaders on issues important to our community. The STEAMM Rising
Columbus program is a new collaboration between Ohio State, Columbus City Schools and
Columbus State Community College. | joined Mayor Andrew Ginther, City Schools
Superintendent and CEO Talisa Dixon and Columbus State President David Harrison to
announce STEAMM. And that, of course, stands for science, technology, engineering, arts,
mathematics and medicine. The idea is to develop talent from grade school to college — ensuring
that talent thrives in our city and the university’s Innovation District and beyond.

This spring, | will be teaching my first course at Ohio State, entitled “Pathways to Net Zero Carbon
Neutrality.” Students will work in small teams to develop a strategic technology energy plan of
how we can reduce the university’s greenhouse gas emissions to net zero and estimate the cost
of achieving that by 2030, 2035 and 2040. As I've said before, | am always impressed by our
students’ thoughtful and innovative solutions to our most challenging and pressing problems.

Finally, when we consider service to the community, | cannot think of a better example than
BuckeyeThon. The student organization raises funds that support children fighting pediatric
cancer and blood disorders at Nationwide Children’s Hospital. The group’s dance marathon was
held earlier this month, and | was excited to be there. And | was there for the unveiling of the
amount raised this year, which was $1,025,812. | was excited that BuckeyeThon has raised a
remarkable $13 million since its founding.

At the same time, our faculty, staff and students at the Wexner Medical Center are focusing on
research and clinical advancements that positively impact many patients in our communities. Our
medical teams have received four federal awards totaling $55 million in funding from the National
Institutes of Health — including a five-year, $17 million grant from the National Institute of Child
Health and Human Development. The award will fund the creation of a knowledge bank to support
the study of drugs and medical treatments for children and pregnant and lactating women. These
awards follow a record year for the College of Medicine, which set a high in National Institutes of
Health funding in FY2021 at $195 million, and they garnered a total of $300 million in research
funding for the college.

All of this is taking place as our health care professionals continue to be on the front lines of
response and treatments, and particularly during Covid-19. Their dedication is phenomenal, and
we were pleased to provide a special recognition bonus to more than 15,000 medical center
employees this month. Thank you to our Wexner Medical Center co-leaders, Mr. Mark Larmore
and Dr. Andrew Thomas, for helping us lead this effort. On our consent agenda today is approval
of the Robert F. Wolfe and Edgar T. Wolfe Foundation Chief Clinical Officer Chair in the Wexner
Medical Center. This generous gift supports a chair position for the medical center’s chief clinical
officer, a position held by Dr. Thomas. Upon Dr. Thomas’ retirement — and we all hope that won’t
be for some time! — it will be named the Robert F. Wolfe and Edgar T. Wolfe Foundation-Dr.
Andrew M. Thomas Chief Clinical Officer. What an outstanding example of support for Ohio State
— and a well-deserved recognition for Dr. Thomas.

Finally, and also on our consent agenda, is approval for the naming of the Jane E. Heminger Hall
at our College of Nursing. Gary and Jane contributed a significant gift to make this gateway to
Ohio State’s health sciences campus a reality. Thank you, Jane and Gary, for your philanthropic
leadership.

(applause)
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| am thrilled to see this amazing new facility come together for the benefit of nursing students,
faculty, staff and, ultimately, the individuals and families they serve.

In terms of resource management, during Q1, we reaffirmed our AA credit rating and raised $715
million in the bond market. Proceeds will be used to build the $1.9 billion hospital tower. Revenues
in Q1 are up — $1.9 billion versus $1.88 billion over Q1 2021 — and expenses are down.

To close, tomorrow we will hold the university’s Presidential Investiture ceremony — and | look
forward to sharing more about our ambition to be the absolute model of a land-grant university in
the 21st century. | have enjoyed all the Investiture activities to date, including a wellness event
with our staff advisory committee and Chief Wellness Officer Dr. Bernadette Melnyk; a
distinguished faculty recognition event with EVPs Dr. Melissa Gilliam and Dr. Grace Wang; and
last night, clearly the highlight, our students hosted an investiture Sweet 16 Celebration, once
again demonstrating their unique Buckeye spirit.

Veronica and | enjoyed performances by five a cappella groups and a jersey from the women’s
lacrosse team — of course, number 16. Our USG, IPC and graduate-student council issued an
executive resolution, and the Morrill Tower — of course, the 16th floor — invited us to a pizza
party. Ice cream was specially made by students and faculty in CFAES and emceed by Student
Life. My favorite was called Sloopy scarlet smash. It was awesome! Anyway, Veronica and | were
very touched, and it reminded us of why we are here to do what we do. Being part of this incredible
community continues to be the honor and thrill of a lifetime. Thank you to the Board and everyone
at our university for what you do for Ohio State. That concludes my report. Go Buckeyes!

(See Appendix XXXV for background information, page 1121)

CONSENT AGENDA
Mr. Heminger:

Thank you, President Johnson.

We have now arrived at our consent agenda. Please note that we have placed one item for
action directly on the consent agenda today — our Resolutions in Memoriam, which recognize the
passing of emeritus faculty members.

President Johnson, would you please present the Consent Agenda to the Board?

President Johnson:

Thank you. We have 24 resolutions on the Consent Agenda. The university is seeking approval of
the following:

Kk

RESOLUTIONS IN MEMORIAM

Resolution No. 2022-49
WILLIAM P. BAKER

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on August 11, 2021, of William Perry Baker, Professor Emeritus in the School of Music in the
College of Arts and Sciences. He was 85.

Professor Baker received his bachelor's degree in Music Education from Southeastern Louisiana
College. During this time, he served as principal oboist of the Baton Rouge Symphony. Soon
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afterward, he earned his master’'s degree from Louisiana State University. He subsequently served
as associate professor at both Texas Wesleyan College and Southern lllinois University.

In 1962, Professor Baker joined the Ohio State faculty as associate professor of oboe, a newly
created position which he held until 1988. Funded by an Ohio State grant in 1973, Professor Baker
studied baroque oboe in Vienna, Austria with Jurg Sheftlien.

He served as principal oboist for the Columbus Symphony Orchestra for 16 years. A founding
member of the ProMusica Chamber Orchestra, he served as principal oboist during that ensemble’s
early years. During that time, he performed with such notable conductors as Igor Stravinsky, Aaron
Copland and Howard Hanson, among others.

In addition to performing, Professor Baker served as conductor of the Columbus Women’s
Symphony, the Upper Arlington Civic Symphony, and the Land of Legend Philharmonic (now known
as the Newark-Granville Symphony) based in Newark, Ohio. He also served on the Board of Trustees
of the latter orchestra.

A lifelong teacher and mentor, Professor Baker saw many of his students go on to teach at major
institutions and perform in prestigious ensembles. He established an oboe camp which met annually
at Put-In-Bay, the Procter Center in London, Ohio, and at Kenyon College-Gambier where he and
colleagues taught countless high school students. Upon his retirement from Ohio State, he served
as associate professor of woodwinds at Capital University until 1999. He then helped establish the
Lyric Wind Quintet, which held classes in the Licking County Public Schools and performed in
Europe.

Professor Baker emphasized the importance of hard work, a sense of humor, and love for the arts
as the means to give “color” and “soul” to the world.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor William Perry Baker its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is
directed that this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy
be tendered to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

ELEANOR S. BLOCK

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on January 21, 2021, of Eleanor S. Block, Associate Professor Emeritus with University
Libraries. She was 80.

Professor Block graduated from Drexel University and spent her career as a librarian at The Ohio
State University Libraries. Her late husband, Bernard Block, also worked for University Libraries as
a reference librarian at Thompson Library until his passing several years prior to his wife’s retirement.

For more than two decades, Professor Block served as the head of the former Journalism Library.
She was responsible for building the Journalism Library collection and had the foresight to acquire a
variety of materials including movies, editorials, documentaries and other non-print materials at a
time when these types of acquisitions were uncommon. Former colleagues describe her as an
excellent storyteller, opinionated, caring and warm, and they fondly remember her laugh and her
kindhearted spirit.

Professor Block was an important contributor to the library profession, having authored two books
and numerous articles, including interviews, surveys of reference sources, literature reviews and
more. She served as the national chair and co-founder of the Mass Communication Bibliographies
Committee of the Association for Education in Journalism and Mass Communication.
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In addition to her professional contributions to the community, Professor Block was an almost 50-
year member of Temple Beth Tikvah and a member of many clubs, groups and organizations. She
cherished her family, including her daughter, Nicole Wallace; grandchildren Steven Block, and Trevor
and Natalie Wallace; and great-granddaughter Charlie Mae Block. Upon her retirement from
University Libraries, she set out on a journey to see the world, traveling globally and enjoying life to
the fullest. In addition to traveling, she enjoyed reading, spending time with friends and family, and
honoring her Jewish faith.

Professor Block’s work at the Journalism Library created a wealth of resources at Ohio State that are
still available to students and researchers in the communication disciplines to this day. She modeled
University Libraries’ values of stewardship, integrity, connection and discovery in her work.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Eleanor S. Block its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed
that this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be
tendered to her family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

PHILIP M. CLARK

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on June 21, 2021, of Philip M. Clark, Professor Emeritus of Psychology in the College of Arts
and Sciences. He was 91.

Professor Clark received his AB degree from Harvard University and, after serving in the United
States Air Force, his PhD from the University of Michigan. He was appointed to the Ohio State
psychology faculty in 1963 and remained here until his retirement in 1995.

Professor Clark was a dedicated instructor who continued to teach well into his retirement. He also
offered substantial contributions to the profession with decades of service on the editorial boards of
journals in both psychology and education. Professor Clark was especially noted for his work on the
psychology of creativity.

Beyond his highly valued contributions to undergraduate and graduate training in the Developmental
Area of the Psychology Department, Professor Clark served the university in a number of capacities.
With his wife, Elaine, Professor Clark gave invaluable support for the Faculty Club, serving as
president in 1989-90.

Professor Clark was often described by colleagues as a “gentleman’s gentleman.” He was soft-
spoken, kind-hearted and caring of colleagues and students alike. He was an exceptionally sensitive
and active listener, and was consistently thoughtful, gracious and articulate in his responses. He
loved music, sports and conversation, and enjoyed serving in the choir at St. John’s Episcopal Church
in Worthington for more than 50 years.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Philip M. Clark its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed
that this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be
tendered to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

CHARLES E. CORBATO
Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the

death on July 28, 2021, of Charles Edward Corbatd, Professor and Associate Provost Emeritus in
the School of Earth Sciences in the College of Arts and Sciences. He was 89.
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Professor Corbatd earned his BA (1954) in geophysics and PhD (1960) in geology from UCLA.
Following a period as an instructor at UCLA and UC-Riverside, he joined the Department of Geology
at Ohio State in 1966 and served as a faculty member until his retirement in 1992. Professor Corbat6
was skilled in all quantitative aspects of geology, including mapping, geophysics, computer
programming and statistical analyses. His research utilized gravity and magnetic measurements to
map subsurface geology in ocean basins and bedrock configuration below thick glacial ice. He also
used x-ray diffraction to study the atomic structure of clay minerals that are ubiquitous on Earth, as
well as the rare mineral germanite, which contains the semiconductor element germanium. He was
elected Fellow of the Geological Society of America in recognition of his research accomplishments.

In 1972, Professor Corbatdé was appointed as the chair of the newly combined Departments of
Geology and Mineralogy until 1980. Through his kind-hearted and resolute leadership, Professor
Corbatd fostered an atmosphere of collegiality and camaraderie among all members of the
department. He and his wife of 64 years, Patricia, were known for opening their home to host
departmental gatherings, particularly around the holidays. He was appointed Associate Provost at
Ohio State in 1987 and also worked at the Ohio Board of Regents for five years after his retirement.
In retirement, he also volunteered for the Library for Health Information at the Ohio State Medical
Center and served as treasurer of the Ohio State Medical Center Service Board.

Professor Corbatd’s passion was in the field, and he led many expeditions. One of his most
memorable research expeditions took place during the 1972-73 austral summer, when he worked
and camped for seven weeks in Antarctica to map a remote section of the Transantarctic Mountain
Range. At an elevation of 1,730 meters and just 550 kilometers from the South Pole, Mt. Corbatd,
the highest point in the Duncan Mountains, is named in his honor. Professor Corbaté also spend two
decades helping to teach and lead a summer geology field camp for Ohio State students in Utah. His
dedication to this course will be recognized in June 2022 at the 75th anniversary of Field Camp in
Bryce Canyon, Utah.

He was the son of a father who had emigrated from Spain via China and a mother who had survived
the 1906 San Francisco earthquake and fire. He and Patricia have three children — Steven, Barbara
and Susan — and three grandchildren — Andrew, Esi and Mansah. He thoroughly enjoyed mountains,
a love that was fostered by childhood summers spent with family in Yosemite and later backpacking
trips in the Sierra Nevada with his older brother. He continued to backpack and hike whenever he
could, often with his son and grandson in mountains and canyons across the western United States.

Throughout the arc of his long life, Professor Corbaté made many lasting, meaningful friendships.
His body of influence can be felt from California to Ohio, and his favorite author was the naturalist
John Muir, who wrote “This grand show is eternal. It is always sunrise somewhere; the dew is never
all dried at once; a shower is forever falling; vapor is ever rising. Eternal sunrise, eternal sunset,
eternal dawn and gloaming, on sea and continents and islands, each in its turn, as the round earth
rolls.”

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Charles E. Corbaté its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is
directed that this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy
be tendered to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

ROBERT D. COTTRELL
Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on July 2, 2021 of Professor Emeritus Robert D. Cottrell in the Department of French and

Italian. He was 91.

Professor Cottrell graduated from high school in Des Moines, lowa and went on to serve his country
overseas in the United States Army during the Korean War. Upon his return, he earned his
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undergraduate degree from Columbia University in 1957 and his PhD in French Literature from Yale
in 1961.

An accomplished pianist, Professor Cottrell studied with Carl Friedberg in New York (1953-57) and
Paul Stoye in Los Angeles (1947-51). Prior to joining the Department of Romance Languages at Ohio
State in 1968 as an associate professor, he taught at Northwestern University, Amherst College and
Trinity College. He was appointed professor in 1971.

Professor Cottrell was the author of numerous scholarly articles and wrote or co-translated five
books. He remained a true scholar even in his retirement, reading widely and yet always with a copy
of Proust beside his chair. His scholarly pursuits were not limited to a particular century or period, as
his books show: Colette; Simone de Beauvoir; Sexuality and Textuality: A Study of the Fabric of
Montaigne’s Essays; and The Grammar of Silence: A Reading of Marguerite de Navarre’s Poetry.
He collaborated with his wife Jane E. Cottrell on a translation of Alain’s Propos sur le bonheur, and,
happily for French students stumbling over irregular verbs, Répondez-moi! Pratique orale des verbes
irréguliers francais. He was a member of the Renaissance Society of America (his area of
specialization), the Carl Friedburg Foundation, and the Société des Amis de Montaigne, among other
professional organizations.

As a senior faculty member and chair of what eventually became the Department of French and
Italian, Professor Cottrell not only encouraged faculty in their teaching and research pursuits — he
inspired them. While chair, he was also an active scholar, demonstrating that it was not only possible
but highly desirable for a chair to be active in the field (or fields, in his case). He brought a dignified
persona to his academic responsibilities, yet he also had a wicked sense of humor, often indicated
by a wry smile and a slightly raised eyebrow. To those who knew him, he was a passionate scholar
who was committed to fostering an atmosphere of sharp intellectual curiosity and wide-ranging
pursuits. He was a model of what every academic aspires to be: a dedicated teacher and scholar,
and a citizen of the department committed to both his colleagues and his students. As chair, he
handled the occasional crisis with even-handed judiciousness, and he was admired by all of his
colleagues as a formidable leader.

Professor Cottrell was a true institution to the members of his department. Once, a colleague joked
that no matter what his age, “Bob” always looked 70 — whether he was 50 or when he turned 90.
Professor Cottrell appreciated the joke — as a younger scholar and faculty member, he appeared
wise and knowledgeable; and as he aged, he lost none of his youthful enthusiasm. As a tall man with
lovely silver hair, he exuded both authority and accessibility. He was a wonderful colleague, open to
the ideas generated by related fields of inquiry, and always devoted to the highest standards of
excellence.

He was preceded in death by his wife, Jane, and is survived by his two children, Amelia and Andrew,
and three grandchildren.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Robert Cottrell its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed
that this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be
tendered to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

PATRICK M. EWING
Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on April 10, 2021, of Patrick M. Ewing, Assistant Professor Emeritus in the Department of
Mathematics at the Ohio State-Mansfield campus. He was 84.
Professor Ewing was a star athlete in his hometown at Wooster High School, where he graduated in

1954. He earned a BS in Physics from DePauw University in 1958, where he also played football
and was inducted into the DePauw Athletic Hall of Fame in 2002. He completed a MS in Math and
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Science Education at Harvard University in 1962 and earned a PhD from Ohio State in Math
Education in 1973.

His Ohio State teaching career began at the Lima campus in 1966 and continued at the Mansfield
campus in 1969, where he remained until his retirement in 1988. At Mansfield, he conducted summer
math camps for high school students and served as president of the Mid-Ohio Math Council. He was
a board member of the Ohio Council of Teachers of Mathematics and served on several committees
of the Mathematics Association of America Ohio Section.

Professor Ewing was active in Ohio State-Mansfield faculty governance and served on many campus
committees. He was the math coordinator for the Mansfield campus and also served as a member
of the University Senate on the Columbus campus where he represented the Mansfield Campus. He
was widely respected by his peers as a dedicated and effective teacher, a straight arrow, a hard
worker and a good guy who was much more conservative than most of his faculty colleagues. Student
evaluations reflected that he was perceived as rigorous and fair.

Professor Ewing was highly competitive in everything he did. Faculty and students got out of the way
when he charged the basketball net in faculty vs. student games. At faculty parties on his farm, his
volleyball spikes were wicked. In tennis matches, his serves could be deadly. He drove the golf ball
twice as far as mere mortals on the faculty.

He was also a full-time farmer. With his wife, Sharon, Professor Ewing raised sheep, veal calves and
beef cattle, along with corn and hay as cash crops on their farm in Ashland County. As he did for
math education, Professor Ewing served in a leadership role in several agricultural organizations. He
billed himself as “a farmer who teaches math, rather than a math professor who happens to farm.”

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Patrick M. Ewing its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed
that this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be
tendered to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

HOWARD P. FINK

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on August 2, 2021, of Howard P. Fink, Professor Emeritus in the Moritz College of Law. He
was 88.

Professor Fink received his undergraduate degree from Cornell University in 1955, and his law
degree from Yale University in 1958. Upon graduation, he remained at Yale to assist renowned
Professor James W. Moore in his classroom teaching and drafting of Moore’s Federal Practice
Judicial Code Pamphlet (1966).

Professor Fink joined Ohio State’s Moritz College of Law in 1965 and was later named the Isadore
& Ida Topper Professor (Emeritus) of Law. He was known for using the Socratic method, insisting
that the best way for students to learn to speak in court was to stand and respond to questions posed.

Throughout his more than half-a-century career at Ohio State, Professor Fink helped prepare
thousands of students to be successful lawyers, scholars and leaders. He wrote extensively in the
fields of federal courts, civil procedure and law, history and philosophy. He was a prolific legal scholar,
teacher, author and authority on civil practice and procedure. Throughout the span of his career, he
authored numerous books and publications, including the Ohio Rules of Civil Procedure and Federal
Courts in the 21st Century.

In addition to his indelible legacy as a law scholar, Professor Fink made numerous contributions to

the college. He was most proud of his work on the planning committee for the college’s expansion in
the 1990s and was a founding faculty member of the Pre-Law Program in Oxford, England.
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During his career, Professor Fink spent sabbaticals teaching at other universities, including the
University of lllinois, University of San Diego, George Washington University and, in his retirement,
at Santa Clara University, the University of Toledo, Wake Forest University, Emory University and
Stetson University. In recent years he was an active member of the Academy of Senior Professionals
at Eckerd College (ASPEC) and led a “Great Decisions” group on world affairs for his community at
Harborside in Florida.

Professor Fink enjoyed teaching and coached students to perform at their best. He was committed
to equipping law students with the right tools and expertise so they could thrive beyond the walls of
Drinko Hall on the Columbus campus. He fostered a welcoming classroom experience for law
students to sharpen their critical thinking and analysis skills while also being a source for support and
encouragement.

In addition to being an exceptional faculty member and colleague, Professor Fink demonstrated great
love and devotion for his family. He was also deeply committed to the Columbus Jewish community,
where he served in many leadership roles. Over the years, Professor Fink also served on the boards
of Hillel and the Columbus Jewish Federation and was active for many years with his inter-faith group
at Ohio State and the Melton Center for Jewish Studies.

Professor Fink was loved by many due to his loyal nature, outgoing personality, genuine heart,
intellectual curiosity and quick wit.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Howard Fink its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed that
this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be tendered
to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

RATE A. HOWELL

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on August 24, 2021, of Rate Andrew Howell, Associate Professor Emeritus in the Department
of Finance in the Max M. Fisher College of Business. He was 98.

Professor Howell received his BS (1943) from the University of lowa before enlisting in the United
States Army. He returned to the University of lowa and earned a JD in 1948. He began his teaching
career as an instructor at Washington State University in 1948 before becoming an assistant
professor in 1950. During this period, Professor Howell spent his summers as an employee with the
Yellowstone Park Company, which sparked his eventual passion for photography, painting and
travel.

Professor Howell arrived at Ohio State in 1951 as an instructor and was promoted to assistant
professor of finance within the College of Administrative Science in 1953. After earning admission to
the Ohio Bar in 1954, Professor Howell was elevated to associate professor in 1960. He spent a
lengthy academic career at Ohio State teaching finance and business law before being named an
emeritus faculty member by the Board of Trustees in 1986.

While at Ohio State, Professor Howell was involved in the authorship of two books. He co-authored
the first, Basic Business Law, which was published in 1959. The second, An Introduction to Business
Law, was written by Professor Howell and published in 1974.

On campus and off, Professor Howell was involved in a number of organizations that reflected his
passion for business and the law. He served as the faculty advisor for the business fraternity Alpha
Kappa Psi. He was a member of the National Business Law Association and the Tri-States Business
Law Association, for which he served as a past president. Professor Howell was involved with the
Ohio State Faculty Club, the American Legion, the Masonic Lodge, and his church, Indianola
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Presbyterian Church of Columbus, where he served as an elder and met his wife, Carolyn, while
singing in the church choir.

Known by his family, friends, colleagues and students for his quick wit and easy smile, Professor
Howell will be remembered as a dedicated educator who worked tirelessly to advance an
understanding of business and its intersection with the law.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Rate Howell its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed that
this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be tendered
to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

ALFRED C. LONG

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on March 4, 2021, of Alfred Curt Long, Professor Emeritus and Assistant Dean Emeritus in the
College of Dentistry. He was just shy of 97.

Dr. Long earned a bachelor’s degree from Franklin & Marshall College in Lancaster, Pennsylvania.
He continued his education by enrolling in the DDS degree program at Ohio State in the College of
Dentistry and graduated in 1948. After serving in the United States Navy during World War Il, Dr.
Long was honorably discharged from the military. He re-enlisted and served from 1952-54 during the
Korean War.

Early in his dental career, Dr. Long was a private practitioner in Pasadena, California, and in
Columbus, Ohio, prior to joining Ohio State’s College of Dentistry as an associate professor. He
eventually became a full professor and served as chair of the Department of Fixed Partial
Prosthodontics.

He was appointed to the position of Assistant Dean for Clinics in 1978, and he remained in that role
until his retirement in 1985.

Dr. Long was a golfing devotee. From 1958 until his passing, he was a member of the Scioto Country
Club. His passion for the sport led him to play internationally, traveling to Scotland to play in
tournaments on the United Kingdom’s world-renowned courses.

Dr. Long was preceded in death by his wife Carolyn Jean (Roshon) Long, to whom he was married
for 56 years. He is survived by his children, Wade (Marcy) Long of Santa Rosa Beach, Florida, and
Lisa (Bruce) Coleman of Mt. Lebanon, Pennsylvania; and his grandchildren, Max Long of Austin,
Texas; Hannah Long of Draper, Utah; and Audrey Coleman of Mt. Lebanon, Pennsylvania.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Dr. Alfred Long its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed that this
resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be tendered to his
family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

JULIAN H. MARKELS

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on July 22, 2021, of Julian H. Markels, Professor Emeritus in the Department of English in the
College of Arts and Sciences. He was 96.

Professor Markels served as a staff sergeant in the United States Army from 1943-46 and
participated in the liberation of the concentration camp at Buchenwald in Germany. Before and after
his military service, he studied as an undergraduate at the universities of Wisconsin and Chicago.
He received his PhD from the University of Minnesota in 1957, where he received the Moses Marston
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Prize and the University of Minnesota Fellowship Association Award. He joined Ohio State in 1956
and served as a faculty member until his retirement in 1991.

Specializing in Shakespearean studies and nineteenth-century American literature, Professor
Markels also had a keen interest in Marxist political discussions and in literary theory. His
contributions to Shakespeare studies included a textbook on Julius Caesar and a monograph entitled
The Pillar of the World: Antony and Cleopatra in Shakespeare’s Development. In American literary
studies, he published articles on Theodore Dreiser, Herman Melville and other writers. In his 1993
book, Melville and the Politics of Identity, he merged his research interests by writing about
Shakespeare’s King Lear and Melville’s Moby-Dick and the ways in which Shakespeare’s political
vision inspired Melville to envision an “ideal politics and the ethics they entail ... concerning the state
of nature, persons, and ‘politic society.”

From 1964-69, Professor Markels served as vice chair of instruction in the Department of English,
and then as chair from 1976-83. As chair, he was an eloquent and persuasive spokesperson for the
department and its mission in the College of the Humanities and the university as a whole. Among
other notable accomplishments, he led the department through its first external program review;
supported the growth of team-taught courses and of courses in critical theory; and oversaw the hiring
of a number of faculty members whose own contributions would prove critical to the department’s
continued success. He was also an advocate of the first-year writing program, with particular attention
to students who needed extra support in making the transition to college. His ambition, he wrote,
“was to make a difference in the daily life where our professional life was grounded, and the study
and teaching of writing had always been a big part of this life.” His commitment to writing instruction
was also evident in the fact that, over the course of his career, he taught the full range of first year
and advanced composition courses, including technical writing and a special course in formal logic
and composition for pre-law students.

In addition to his departmental leadership, Professor Markels served on the university’s Faculty
Council, Graduate Council, and Athletic Council. He was also secretary of the university’s first
diversity enhancement committee. A strong advocate for civil rights and for engagement with the
community, Professor Markels was a member of Columbus’s Committee on Racial Equality and later
a founding member and first President of Columbus’s North Market Development.

Professor Markels was a wonderful mentor to graduate students. His two-quarter graduate seminar
on Melville inspired dissertation work on Moby-Dick. The humanity of his presence and cohesiveness
of his leadership also inspired many faculty colleagues to embrace the spirit of collaboration and
community outreach that was central to his professional commitments. He was an ally to faculty who
were seeking to launch a Women'’s Studies program in the university; supported diversity initiatives;
and provided incisive comments on work in progress. A life-long learner, he continued attending
department lectures and other events for decades after his retirement and was generous in sharing
books from his personal library. He was also a fixture at home games of the Ohio State women’s
basketball team. His support of intellectual community, equity and justice, and student success
advanced the department and the university in innumerable ways.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Julian Markels its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed
that this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be
tendered to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

JAMES W. MARQUAND
Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the

death on September 12, 2021, of James William Marquand, Professor Emeritus Ohio State University
Extension in the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences. He was 96.
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Professor Marquand began working for OSU Extension in August 1953, as a 4-H agent in
Tuscarawas County. He was promoted to an area Extension agent in January 1965, working with
numerous counties in northeastern Ohio. He worked as an assistant state 4-H leader and state
specialist from 1971 until his retirement in January 1982. He was promoted from instructor to
assistant professor in July 1965, to associate professor in July 1968, and to full professor in July
1973.

In the emeritus granting letter that Professor Marquand received in 1981, Roy Kottman, director of
the Ohio Cooperative Extension Service, wrote: “Throughout his career, Jim Marquand has
continuously and conscientiously distinguished himself as a leader. He is respected and admired by
professionals throughout the country for his teaching expertise, his writings, and his success in the
field of 4-H youth work.”

Professor Marquand made a major national impact on 4-H curriculum, resource development and
recognition of 4-H members. He authored the first small animal projects now used throughout the
nation, developed the process of pilot-testing new project ideas, and provided leadership for piloting
many new 4-H projects. He also originated the interview judging process that is now used at county
fairs nationwide. Professor Marquand expanded the Ohio 4-H international program and helped to
grow the 4-H Labo Japanese Exchange Program. He also strengthened camping programs at the
county and state level; and he established the Jim Marquand Scholarship to help 4-H members
attend camp.

Professor Marquand received distinguished service awards from the National Association of County
Agricultural Agents (NACAA) in 1964, and the National Association of Extension 4-H Agents in 1971.
He served as vice president and president of the Ohio Cooperative Extension Agents’ Association in
the mid-1960s; and he participated on national committees for NACAA. Professor Marquand also
was a leader in Epsilon Sigma Phi, the national Extension honorary fraternity.

He was recognized by the United States Department of Agriculture for outstanding service, as well
as by the Ohio Poultry Association. He also served on many state- and program-related committees,
supporting and educating his peers. After retirement, Professor Marquand continued to provide fiscal
support and volunteer leadership for 4-H international programs, 4-H fund-raising campaigns and
expansion of the 4-H small animals program.

Before joining OSU Extension, Mr. Marquand conducted research with turkeys and worked at a
vegetable greenhouse. He also served in the United States Army medical corps during World War 1.
He earned a bachelor’s degree in agriculture with a horticulture focus in 1948, and a master’s degree
in agriculture with a poultry focus in 1951, both from Ohio State.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor James Marquand its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed
that this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be
tendered to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

WILLIAM L. MARSH

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on August 27, 2021, of William L. Marsh, Professor Emeritus in the Department of Pathology
in the College of Medicine. He was 74.

Dr. Marsh graduated magna cum laude with a BA (1968) in Chemistry at Bucknell University and
went on to receive his MD (1972) at the University of Virginia (UVA) School of Medicine. He stayed
at UVA to complete his internship and residency in Pathology (1976) and to begin his career as an
academic faculty member (1976-78).
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He then went on to the United States Navy, serving five years as Lieutenant Commander in the U.S.
Naval Reserve (USNR) and as Associate Director of the Hematopathology Laboratory in the
Department of Pathology at the Naval Regional Medical Center in San Diego, CA. In 1983 he rose
to a Commander in the Department of Laboratory Medicine, and he became director of Surgical
Pathology in 1985. During his time in the USNR, he was granted an academic appointment at the
University of California at San Diego (1981-87). He was a member of Phi Beta Kappa, Alpha Omega
Alpha and was a chief resident in Pathology.

Dr. Marsh joined the faculty of Ohio State’s College of Medicine in the Department of Pathology in
1986 as an associate professor of Pathology until his official retirement in 2013 as a full professor.
He came back to work as an emeritus professor to help fill a clinical need part-time and fully retired
in 2016. During his time at the Wexner Medical Center, he was heavily involved in clinical diagnostic
work, and in the teaching and mentoring of residents and colleagues.

He also served the department in multiple administrative roles during his tenure, including director of
the Histology Laboratory, director of the Immunohistochemistry Laboratory, director of the Pathology
Residency Program, director of Surgical Pathology and vice chair of Anatomic Pathology. He was
considered a general pathologist, but also had special interests in immunohistochemistry, breast
pathology, gastrointestinal pathology and hematopathology.

Dr. Marsh was known for his dedication, patience and kindness. Trainees held him in high regard as
he received teaching awards from every institution he served. His experience and wisdom —
combined with his patience and compassion — made him an ideal colleague and mentor.

In retirement, Dr. Marsh and his wife, Debra, found great joy in exploring the natural world and visited
all 50 states together, as well as spending time with their children and grandchildren.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Dr. William Marsh its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed that this
resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be tendered to his
family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

WILLIAM J. MEYERS

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on March 6, 2021, of William J. Meyers, Professor Emeritus with the College of Dentistry. He
was 90.

Dr. Meyers received his bachelor's and master's degrees in biological sciences from Marshall
University in Huntington, West Virginia, after which he earned a DMD degree at the University of
Louisville School of Dentistry in Louisville, Kentucky. He then completed an endodontic residency at
the Veteran’s Administration Hospital in Miami, Florida, and later earned a Master of Education
degree at the University of Miami.

Dr. Meyers joined Ohio State’s College of Dentistry in 1976 as a professor and chair of the Section
of Endodontics, serving in that role until 1995. From 1997 until 2002, he was the director of the
Section of Endodontics/Diagnostic Services. As a widely respected faculty member and
administrator, Dr. Meyers received the Student Government Association’s Outstanding Faculty
Award five times during his tenure in the college. In 2003, he was honored as the namesake of the
William J. Meyers Endowed Chair in Endodontics, which was established to support a distinguished
educator and researcher.

Prior to his tenure at Ohio State, Dr. Meyers served in various roles at the University of Louisville

School of Dentistry, including professor, assistant dean for clinical affairs, associate dean for clinical
health, and acting dean of the college.
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Dr. Meyers was a leader in organized dentistry, serving as past president of the Columbus Dental
Society and the Ohio Association of Endodontists. In 2005, he was recognized with the prestigious
1.B. Bender Lifetime Educator Award from the American Association of Endodontists.

He is survived by his daughter, Amy Meyers; brother, John David Meyers; and nephews, H. Michael
Czeskleba, Scott Czeskleba and James Berger.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Dr. William Meyers its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed that this
resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be tendered to his
family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

WILLIAM A. NEWTON JR.

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on February 25, 2021, of William A. Newton Jr., Professor Emeritus of Pathology and Pediatrics
in the College of Medicine. He was 97.

Dr. Newton was a Brigadier General in the United States Army Reserve, a pioneer in the field of
pediatric pathology at Nationwide Children’s Hospital (then known as Columbus Children’s), a widely
admired mentor, and a humanitarian who created an organization to improve pediatric cancer care
in China after his retirement.

Born in 1929 in Traverse City, Michigan, Dr. Newton attended medical school during World War Il at
the University of Michigan, where he also participated in the Army Specialized Training Program. He
completed a residency in Pediatric Pathology and a fellowship in Hematology/Oncology at Children’s
Hospital of Michigan. An additional pediatric residency was cut short because of the Korean War,
and Dr. Newton served as Chief of Laboratories at the Percy Jones Army Hospital from 1950 to 1952.

In 1952, he moved to Columbus Children’s Hospital and became the Chief of the Section of
Hematology/Oncology, Chief of the Division of Pathology and Chief and Director of the Department
of Laboratory Medicine. He held each of those leadership roles for decades and remained Chief of
Laboratory Medicine until his retirement in 1989.

Dr. Newton’s medical career is filled with achievements that continue to impact the study of pediatric
cancer around the world. As chairman of the Pathology Committee of the Children’s Cancer Study
Group from 1965-91, he led Columbus Children’s to begin storing (banking) pediatric tumor tissue,
which was then provided to childhood cancer researchers across the country. Nationwide Children’s
Hospital remains the sole pediatric location of the National Cancer Institute’s Cooperative Human
Tissue Network, one of Dr. Newton’s most important legacies.

He was a founder of the Society of Pediatric Pathology in 1965 and served as its second president.
He was also a founder of the Intergroup Rhabdomyosarcoma Study Group (IRSG) in 1972, founded
to integrate several groups separately studying this rare disease. Clinical trials that came from the
IRSG led to a significant increase in survival rates for young patients. Over Dr. Newton'’s five-decade
career, he published more than 140 peer-reviewed papers and 13 book chapters.

Astonishingly, much of his influential research occurred while he was also a commanding officer in
the United States Army Reserve. By November 1972, during the Vietnam War, Dr. Newton was
supervising commander of 23 medical units in Ohio and Kentucky, and he ultimately achieved the
aforementioned rank of Brigadier General.

After retirement from Columbus Children’s Hospital, he began working with Chinese doctors and
researchers, including those at Beijing Children’s Hospital, to address the relatively low pediatric
cancer survival rate in that country. His efforts resulted in the creation of CURE Childhood Cancer in
China, an advisory organization.
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On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Dr. William Newton Jr. its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed that
this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be tendered
to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

FRANCIS O’HARE

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on June 2, 2021, of Francis O’'Hare, Professor Emeritus in the Department of English in the
College of Arts and Sciences. He was 86.

Professor O’Hare was born and raised in Glasgow, Scotland, and received an undergraduate degree
from the University of Glasgow. He came to the United States in the 1950s to further his education
and subsequently received a PhD from Florida State University.

He launched his professional career serving as head of the English Department at the University of
Southern Mississippi. He joined Ohio State in 1978 and served as a faculty member until his
retirement in 2003. His research focused on the teaching of writing, and he was highly regarded in
the field of Rhetoric and Composition for his influential work on Sentence Combining, an exercise-
based approach to helping high school and college students develop greater diversity and flexibility
within with written syntax.

Professor O’Hare’s book, Sentencecraft: A Course in Sentence Combining, was widely used in
composition classes and was for many years the single best-selling publication of the National
Council of Teachers of English. He also co-wrote other textbooks used in writing courses, including
Writers Work and the Modern Writer's Handbook.

He enjoyed a long tenure directing the First Year Writing program in the Department of English,
training hundreds of graduate students to teach what was then known as Freshman English (Eng.
110). He was the first director of English 367 (now 2367, Second-Level Writing), and he served as
Director of the Center for the Study and Teaching of Writing in 2000, when its founder took a position
at Stanford University.

Before coming to the United States, Professor O’Hare pursued a professional soccer career with the
Celtic Football Club. At Ohio State, his love for sports led him to become a devoted fan of Buckeye
athletics and to enjoy golfing outings with colleagues. He enjoyed sharing a laugh just as much as
he enjoyed sharing his love of composition studies.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Francis O’Hare its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed
that this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be
tendered to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

CLYDE E. OPLIGER
Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on September 23, 2021, of Clyde Edward Opliger, Associate Professor Emeritus with the
Agricultural Technical Institute. He was just shy of 89.
Professor Opliger worked on the family farm in Holmesville, Ohio, until 1954, when he volunteered

for the United States Army. He was honorably discharged in 1956 after serving one year in Germany
as a tank driver with the 3rd Armored Division.
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He earned a BS in Mathematics from Kent State University, a master's degree in Chemistry from
Emory University, and a doctorate from Clemson University in Organic Chemistry. Prior to his
employment at Ohio State, he served as an Assistant Professor at Presbyterian College in Clinton,
South Carolina, and also worked at Southern Research in Birmingham, Alabama, studying
thalidomide and anti-cancer agents.

He started his professional career at Ohio State by working part-time in Wooster, Ohio, as a chemist
for the Dairy Department, while one again helping his parents on the family farm. In 1978, he became
an Assistant Professor at the Ohio State Agricultural Technical Institute (Ohio State ATI), teaching
chemistry to technical agricultural students. He later served as chair of the Arts and Sciences Division
from 1980-84.

During his time at Ohio State, Professor Opliger influenced the future of hundreds of young doctors
and scientists with his role at the National Science Foundation Young Scholars Program, for which
he served as Principal Investigator from 1987 until 1991. He retired from Ohio State in 1995.

Professor Opliger’s unique ability to teach chemistry concepts to technical students at Ohio State ATI
was legendary. He had the unique ability to take complex ideas and relate them to practical
agricultural situations that students could understand. He led students to establish a solid chemistry
foundation that was important to their future employment in agricultural industries. Many of his
students had never taken a chemistry course before enrolling in his classes. He constantly worked
with other ATI faculty to develop ideas for examples and labs that could be applied to students’
technical agricultural majors.

He was also an outstanding public servant leader. Professor Opliger served on multiple committees
and administrative assignments at Ohio State ATI, always accomplishing the tasks with humility,
compassion, empathy, and kindness for everyone. He went about his professional life with zest, quiet
virtue, an unshakeable moral compass, twinkling eyes, a captivating chuckle and a brilliant mind. He
was an extraordinary example and inspiration for students, faculty and staff alike.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Clyde Opliger its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed
that this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be
tendered to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

RICHARD N. PRATTE

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on June 5, 2021, of Richard Norman Pratte, Professor Emeritus in the School of Educational
Policy and Leadership in the College of Education and Human Ecology. He was 91.

Professor Pratte was born in Norwich, Connecticut. He was an outstanding football player in high
school and college and played in a competitive basketball league for the United States military while
stationed in Japan. He attended the American International College in Massachusetts for his
bachelor’s and master’s degrees. He earned a PhD from the University of Connecticut while teaching
at the University of Bridgeport. He began his career teaching history at Agawam High School in
Massachusetts and coaching the football team. His passion for teaching and coaching lasted a
lifetime.

Specializing in the philosophy and history of education, Professor Pratte believed in the importance
of teaching children in public schools to make their own value judgments. He created and taught
such a class to ninth graders in the Coventry, Ohio, public schools in 1973, so they would “not accept
the values of others without examining them,” as he said in an interview for a publication of the
American International College. He also taught the process of setting one’s own values to thousands
of students in the college’s education programs during his 25-year tenure.
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Professor Pratte authored seven books and many journal articles. In his 1988 volume from Teachers
College, The Civic Imperative: Examining the Need for Civic Education, he emphasized that in order
to teach social responsibility, student volunteer programs of community service should be included
in the school curriculum. He was interviewed on this topic in a 1991 article in The Lantern, where he
said, "It's one thing to tell someone it's good to be socially responsible; it's another to do it and see
the good consequences.”

He applauded the fact that Columbus-area teachers and their students were showing the way by
volunteering to work with Habitat for Humanity, food banks, community kitchens and nursing homes.
"It's hoped that the person will learn something worthwhile from the experience," he said to The
Lantern. In a spring 1991 article in Ohio State’s Quest magazine, Professor Pratte expanded on his
point in The Lantern: “Schools can’t change society by themselves,” he said. “But they have a role to
play by inculcating youngsters with a caring ethic.”

Professor Pratte imparted critical teaching concepts to his college students, including the art of
questioning and the functions of statements and arguments. He considered a critical perspective
fundamental in other Humanistic Foundations courses, such as History of Education, Applied Ethics
for Teachers and Comparative and International Education. In each, graduate students learned to
critically examine the subject matter and to make applications of their learning to classroom and
leadership practices and policies.

Professor Pratte was active in his field, being elected president of the Philosophy of Education
Society of North America, of which he was a member for many years. He also served as president
of the American Council of Learned Societies in Education. In service to the college and university,
he was chair of his department for a term. He was also elected to the University Senate for four years,
which included serving on its executive council for three of those years.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Richard Pratte its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed
that this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be
tendered to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

RANDALL R. REED

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on September 6, 2021, of Randall Robert Reed, Professor Emeritus of Animal Sciences in the
College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences. He was 100.

Professor Reed was born and raised on a 500-acre farm, Highland View Farm, in Canaan Valley,
West Virginia. He attended Cosner School, a one-room schoolhouse, and graduated from Davis High
School in 1939, and was very active in 4-H. He also served in the United States Navy during WWII.

He received both a BS and an MS degree in Animal Science from West Virginia University (WVU),
and later received a PhD at Ohio State in Animal Science with a focus on reproductive physiology
and genetics. Professor Reed served on the faculty of the Animal Science departments at WVU and
Rutgers University, but he spent the majority of his career — 27 years — at Ohio State, where he
taught from 1957 until his retirement in 1984.

While serving as a member of the faculty at Ohio State, Professor Reed coached the OSU Livestock
Judging Team. Under his leadership, the team would compete against 38 other colleges and
universities to win the 1964 national championship. Professor Reed was also an accredited judge for
many national breed associations, and he judged both state and national shows. Along the way, he
made lifelong friends, the dearest being his wife Marilyn, the OSU Radio Television Home Economics
Editor. They were happily married in 1967 and shared career ambitions until her early death at 55.
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Professor Reed held a national and international reputation in the field of beef research and extension
and was the first recipient of the Ohio Beef Industry Service Award in 1981, sponsored by the Agri
Broadcasting Network. He was a professional member of several organizations, including the
American Society of Animal Sciences, and an honorary member of Alpha Zeta, Gamma Sigma Delta
and Epsilon Sigma Phi. He traveled and studied the agriculture industry in 17 foreign countries and
47 states. After retirement, he spent the winters in Florida, while returning to the farm he loved in the
summer.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Randall Reed its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed
that this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be
tendered to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

DARYL L. SIEDENTOP

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on July 15, 2021, of Daryl L. Siedentop, Professor Emeritus in the School of Physical Activity
and Educational Services in the College of Education and Human Ecology. He was 82.

Professor Siedentop was born in Chicago and attended Hope College, going on to become a faculty
member and coach there for 10 years. During that time, he earned an MA from Western Michigan
University and a Doctor of Physical Education degree from Indiana University. He was recruited by
Ohio State in 1970.

He was one of the world’s leading authorities on physical education for children and youth, on
teaching effectiveness in physical education and on physical education teacher education. He
created the sport education curriculum for K-12 students that is now used worldwide in many
countries.

Professor Siedentop’s model changed physical education dramatically over 25 years by proposing
an effective, student-centered approach that gives students opportunities to take ownership and
responsibility for various aspects of their class experiences, an approach that better prepares
students to be lifelong participants in healthy physical activity and sport, an approach that creates
more engagement and success in physical education for all students. A prolific author with 12 books,
Professor Siedentop is particularly known for The Complete Guide to Sport Education, which
describes his sport education model. Written with two co-authors, one his former student, it was first
published in 1994 and updated to a third edition in 2019.

In recognition of his achievements, Professor Siedentop received many awards and honors during
his career. Among them, in 1984, he received the International Olympic Committee President’s
Award, which is the highest honor for work in sport pedagogy. He was selected as a Fellow of the
American Academy of Kinesiology and Physical Education in 1998 and received the National
Association for Sport and Physical Education Curriculum and Instruction Academy Honor Award in
1994. The academy also named him an Alliance Scholar in 1995. He was inducted into the College
of Education and Human Ecology’s Hall of Fame in November 2007.

Professor Siedentop spent most of his professional career as a professor at Ohio State and held
various administrative roles during that time, including senior associate dean of what was then the
College of Education. He was tapped to be interim dean in June 1998 and served until 2000. He was
highly regarded for his outstanding leadership and service to the college. Professor Siedentop retired
in 2001. Despite this, he assumed initial leadership of Ohio State’s new P-12 Project, a university-
wide outreach initiative to support urban school improvement in Ohio.

In 2005, he accepted an appointment as research professor and director for the Teacher Quality

Partnership, a consortium of Ohio’s 50 colleges and universities designed to enhance teacher quality
and ensure highly qualified teachers in every classroom. With impressive grant funding, these
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projects added to his already solid funding portfolio. In 2009, he was widely recognized for a paper
he published in the Journal of Physical Activity and Health. It addressed the role of the education
sector in implementing the plan created by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services to
confront the limited success in increasing physical activity at a population level, despite the
establishment of physical activity as a public health priority in the United States.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Daryl Siedentop its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed
that this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be
tendered to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

DONALD J. TOSI

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on July 21, 2021, of Donald J. Tosi, Professor Emeritus in the School of Physical Activity and
Educational Services in the College of Education and Human Ecology. He was 81.

Professor Tosi was born in Martins Ferry, Ohio, and earned his bachelor’s degree from what is now
Youngstown State University, his master's degree from the University of Toledo. and his PhD from
Kent State University. He was recruited by Ohio State in 1970 from Western Michigan University. He
was specifically recognized for his innovative research design and theoretical work in cognitive
therapy in the book Benefits of Psychotherapy, by Mary Lee Smith, Gene Glass and Thomas I. Miller,
published in 1980.

Throughout his 25 years on the Ohio State faculty, Professor Tosi advised to completion more than
60 doctoral students and more than 150 master's students. He maintained multiple professional
licenses and board certifications that qualified him to play an active role in the community. He was a
Licensed Psychologist through the Ohio Board of Psychology, a Registered Health Care Provider
through the American Psychological Association’s National Registry under the Clinical Psychology
Designation, a Licensed Professional Clinical Counselor by the state of Ohio and a Diplomate of the
Board of Psychological Specialties in Psychological Disability Evaluations and Counseling
Psychology, to name just a few. He also retained a staff appointment at Riverside Methodist Hospital.

Professor Tosi coordinated the Counselor Education program and its accreditation when it was
ranked No. 3 nationally by U.S. News and World Report. Project funding for the college and
Counselor Education PhD internships was provided by Riverside Methodist Hospital, Comprehensive
Drug Treatment, the Health Psychology Department of the Industrial Commission of Ohio and other
health maintenance organizations.

He consulted for more than 50 organizations ranging from business and industry to educational and
medical organizations to government agencies. He provided independent medical examinations for
the Ohio Bureau of Worker's Compensation and the Industrial Commission of Ohio. He conducted
individual and group psychotherapy, marital counseling, stress management and more, and he
testified in support of counselor licensure before the Ohio Legislature.

Professor Tosi published studies in health counseling, clinical psychology and behavioral science.
His work appeared in top-rated journals such as Psychotherapy published by the American
Psychological Association and the Journal of Clinical Psychology. He co-authored or co-edited eight
widely read books and monographs, including a monograph published in Italy. He served as a guest
columnist for Business First, a national newspaper with a Columbus edition, covering such topics as
corporate change and delegation for executives. He also presented advanced seminars in leadership
and development to professional societies and business organizations and at universities, including
internationally. A recurring theme was stress management for a variety of professions, from family
medical practitioners to small business owners and company executives.
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For his expertise, Professor Tosi was recognized in Princeton’s American Men and Women of
Science and in Who's Who in America. The College of Education presented him with its Distinguished
Research Award in 1986. Professor Tosi retired in 1995 but continued active practice in Ohio with
alumnus Michael Murphy.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Donald Tosi its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed that
this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be tendered
to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

BENNIE L. WHITE

Synopsis: The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University expresses its sorrow regarding the
death on February 18, 2021, of Bennie Lee White, Associate Professor Emeritus with Ohio State
University Extension in the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences. He was 87.

Professor White earned his bachelor's degree in agricultural education in 1955, and his master’s
degree in agricultural economics in 1970, both from Ohio State.

He began his career with OSU Extension in April 1970 as an agriculture agent in Adams County.
During his time in Extension, Professor White also served as an area agent focusing on farm
management, as well as office chairman. He provided a variety of educational options for local
citizens, which included providing advice via radio programs and weekly newspaper columns.

In 1979, Professor White received an achievement award from the National Association of County
Agricultural Agents. He was well-known among local farmers and his colleagues for his practical
advice and innovative ideas.

Before he worked with OSU Extension, Professor White taught vocational agriculture for 13 years.
After his first year at Manchester High School, he served in the United States Army for two years
before returning to teach again in Manchester. He also worked as a lecturer at the University of
Cincinnati and as a graduate student for the agricultural economics department at Ohio State.

After retiring from OSU Extension in December 1988, Professor White established a dairy consulting
business. He later became a co-owner of Moyer Winery and Restaurant in Manchester. In his
community, Professor White served on the board of First State Bank and was active in his local
church.

On behalf of the entire university community, the Board of Trustees expresses to the family and loved
ones of Professor Bennie White its deepest sympathy and compassion for their loss. It is directed
that this resolution be inscribed upon the minutes of the Board of Trustees and that a copy be
tendered to his family as an expression of the board’s heartfelt sympathy and appreciation.

*hk

RATIFICATION OF COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS FY 2022-2023
Resolution No. 2022-50
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the ratification of committee

appointments for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 are as follows:

Academic Affairs & Student Life:
Brent R. Porteus, Chair
Jeff M.S. Kaplan, Vice Chair
Abigail S. Wexner
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Elizabeth P. Kessler

Michael Kiggin

Elizabeth A. Harsh

Reginald A. Wilkinson

Tom B. Mitevski

Tanner R. Hunt

Susan Olesik (faculty member)
Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Audit, Finance & Investment:
John W. Zeiger, Chair
Erin P. Hoeflinger
Lewis Von Thaer
Jeff M.S. Kaplan
Michael Kiggin
Tom B. Mitevski
Carly G. Sobol
James D. Klingbeil
Amy Chronis
Kent M. Stahl
Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Legal, Risk & Compliance:
Elizabeth P. Kessler, Chair
Alan A. Stockmeister
Jeff M.S. Kaplan
Michael Kiggin
Elizabeth A. Harsh
Tom B. Mitevski
Tanner R. Hunt
Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Master Planning & Facilities:
Alexander R. Fischer, Chair
James D. Klingbeil, Vice Chair
Brent R. Porteus
Alan A. Stockmeister
Elizabeth A. Harsh
Reginald A. Wilkinson
Tanner R. Hunt
Robert H. Schottenstein
Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Research, Innovation & Strategic Partnerships
Lewis Von Thaer, Chair
Erin P. Hoeflinger, Vice Chair
Alexander R. Fischer
Hiroyuki Fuijita
Reginald A. Wilkinson
Carly G. Sobol
Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)
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Talent, Compensation & Governance:
Hiroyuki Fuijita, Chair
Lewis Von Thaer, Vice Chair
Brent R. Porteus
Abigail S. Wexner
Alexander R. Fischer
John W. Zeiger
Elizabeth P. Kessler
Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Wexner Medical Center:
Leslie H. Wexner, Chair
Abigail S. Wexner
Erin P. Hoeflinger
Hiroyuki Fujita
Alan A. Stockmeister
John W. Zeiger
Carly G. Sobol
Stephen D. Steinour
Robert H. Schottenstein
W.G. Jurgensen
Cindy Hilsheimer
Amy Chronis
Gary R. Heminger (ex officio, voting)
Kristina M. Johnson (ex officio, voting)
Melissa L. Gilliam (ex officio, voting)
Michael Papadakis (ex officio, voting)
MARK LARMORE / ANDREW THOMAS (ex officio, voting)

*kk

PERSONNEL ACTIONS
Resolution No. 2022-51

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the personnel actions as recorded
in the personnel budget records of the university since the August 18, 2021, meeting of the Board,
including the following appointments:

Appointments

Name:  Mark Larmore

Title: Interim Co-Leader of The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center
Unit: Wexner Medical Center

Term: September 9, 2021

Name: Andrew Thomas

Title: Interim Co-Leader of The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center
Unit: Wexner Medical Center

Term: September 9, 2021
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FACULTY PERSONNEL ACTIONS
Resolution No. 2022-52

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the faculty personnel actions as
recorded in the personnel budget records of the university since the August 19, 2021, meeting of
the Board, including the following appointments, appointments/reappointments of chairpersons,
faculty professional leaves and emeritus titles:

Appointments

Name: SUJIT BASU

Title: Professor (Jack C. Geer M.D. Professorship in Pathology)

College: Medicine

Term: September 1, 2021 through June 30, 2025

Name: MONICA F. COX

Title: Professor (Distinguished Professor of Engineering)

College: Engineering

Term: July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2026

Name: ERIC FOSLER-LUSSIER

Title: Professor (John |. Makhoul Professorship in Electrical and Computer
Engineering)

College: Engineering

Term: January 1, 2022 through June 30, 2026

Name: RUSSELL S. HASSAN

Title: Professor (Ambassador Milton A. and Roslyn Z. Wolf Chair)

College: John Glenn College of Public Affairs

Term: August 15, 2021 through August 14, 2026

Name: *TASHA LEWIS

Title: Associate Professor-Clinical (Nina Mae Mattus Professorship)

College: Education and Human Ecology

Term: January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2026

Name: *MARTA NOWAK

Title: Assistant Professor (Christos Yessios Endowed Professorship)

College: Engineering

Term: August 15, 2021 through June 30, 2026

Name: DHABALESWAR K. PANDA

Title: Professor (Distinguished Professor of Engineering)

College: Engineering

Term: July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2026

Name: ANDREW M. THOMAS

Title: Associate Professor - Clinical (Robert F. Wolfe and Edgar T. Wolfe
Foundation Chief Clinical Officer Chair in the Wexner Medical Center)

College: Medicine

Term: December 1, 2021 to June 30, 2025
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Name:
Title:
College:
Term:

Name:
Title:

College:
Term:

Name:
Title:
College:
Term:

Name:
Title:
College:
Term:

Name:
Title:

College:
Term:

Name:
Title:
College:
Term:

*New Hire

Reappointments

Name:
Title:
College:
Term:

Name:
Title:
College:
Term:

Name:
Title:

College:
Term:

Name:

REBECCA RECZEK

Professor (Berry Chair of New Technologies in Marketing)
Fisher College of Business

August 16, 2021 through August 15, 2026

SHANNON G. WASHBURN

Professor and Chair (Sanford G. Price and Isabelle P. Barbee Chair in
Teaching, Advising and Learning)

Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences

October 1, 2021 through June 30, 2026

BRUCE WEINBERG

Professor (Eric Byron Fix-Monda Endowed Professorship)
Arts and Sciences

August 15, 2021 through August 14, 2026

JENNIFER A. WOYACH

Professor (D. Warren Brown Designated Chair in Leukemia Research)
Medicine

November 1, 2021 through June 30, 2025

HSIN-JUNG JOYCE WU

Professor (Ronald L. Whisler MD Chair in Rheumatology and
Immunology)

Medicine

October 1, 2021 through June 30, 2025

DONGBIN XIU

Professor (Ohio Eminent Scholar in Scientific Computation)
Arts and Sciences

August 15, 2021 through August 14, 2026

TODD N. GANNON

Professor (Robert S. Livesey Professorship in Architecture)
Engineering

June 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

CREOLA JOHNSON

Professor (Presidents Club Designated Professorship in Law)
Moritz College of Law

October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2026

MATTHEW MAYHEW

Professor (William Ray and Marie Adamson Flesher Professorship in
Educational Administration)

Education and Human Ecology

August 15, 2021 through August 14, 2026

JAMI J. SHAH
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Title: Professor (Honda Designated Professorship in Engineering Design for
Manufacturing)

College: Engineering

Term: August 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

Name: KUI XIE

Title: Professor (Ted and Lois Cyphert Distinguished Professorship in Teacher
Education)

College: Education and Human Ecology

Term: August 15, 2021 through August 14, 2024

Name: DONGBIN XIU

Title: Professor (Ohio Eminent Scholar in Scientific Computation)

College: Arts and Sciences

Term: August 15, 2021 through August 14, 2026

Name: XIAODONG ZHANG

Title: Professor (Robert M. Critchfield Professorship in Engineering)

College: Engineering

Term: June 1, 2021 through June 30, 2026

(See Appendix XXXVI for background information, page 1134)

*kk

APPROVAL TO CHANGE THE NAME OF THE MASTER OF ARTS
IN SLAVIC AND EAST EUROPEAN STUDIES

Resolution No. 2022-53
TO THE MASTER OF ARTS IN SLAVIC, EAST EUROPEAN AND EURASIAN STUDIES

Synopsis: Approval to change the name of the Master of Arts in Slavic and East European Studies
to the Master of Arts in Slavic, East European and Eurasian Studies is proposed.

WHEREAS on May 20, 2021, the Board of Trustees approved a name change for the Center for
Slavic and East European Studies to the Center for Slavic, East European and Eurasian Studies,
located within the Office of International Affairs; and

WHEREAS the Center requests aligning the name of its Master of Arts in Slavic and East European
Studies with the new name of its Center, to become the Master of Arts in Slavic, East European and
Eurasian Studies; and

WHEREAS this is an interdisciplinary graduate program administered by the Center for the Graduate
School; and

WHEREAS the name change will more accurately reflect already existing course offerings and the
needs of graduating students who want to show their diverse regional expertise; and

WHEREAS the proposal has the support of the Office of International Affairs and the Center’s
Advisory Council; and

WHEREAS the proposal was reviewed and approved by the Graduate School and then the Council

on Academic Affairs at its meeting on July 28, 2021, and was presented for discussion with the
Faculty Council on September 2, 2021; and
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WHEREAS the University Senate approved this proposal on September 16, 2021:
NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the proposal to rename the Master
of Arts in Slavic and East European Studies to the Master of Arts in Slavic, East European and
Eurasian Studies.

*kk

APPROVAL TO ESTABLISH A MASTER OF ATHLETIC TRAINING DEGREE PROGRAM
Resolution No. 2022-54
IN THE SCHOOL OF HEALTH AND REHABILITATION SCIENCES, COLLEGE OF MEDICINE

Synopsis: Approval to establish a Master of Athletic Training degree program in the School of Health
and Rehabilitation in the College of Medicine is proposed.

WHEREAS based on new accreditation expectations the current Bachelor of Science in Athletic
Training program needs to be replaced with a Master of Athletic Training program; and

WHEREAS this entry-level professional athletic training program is designed for students who have
earned a bachelor's degree and who are seeking enrollment in a graduate professional health
program that includes athletic training; and

WHEREAS the 64-hour program will have 25 students per cohort enrolled full-time, and will extend
over six semesters across two academic years; and it will include in-person coursework, laboratory
activities, supervised clinical practice experiences, and a non-thesis capstone project; and

WHEREAS a staged transition plan has been developed for the movement from one degree level
program to another; and

WHEREAS the proposal has the support of the School of Health and Rehabilitation Sciences and
the College of Medicine; and

WHEREAS the proposal was reviewed and approved by the Graduate School, and then the Council
on Academic Affairs at its meeting on September 15, 2021, and was presented for discussion with
the Faculty Council on October 7, 2021; and

WHEREAS the University Senate approved this proposal on October 28, 2021:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the proposal to establish a Master

of Athletic Training degree program in the School of Health and Rehabilitation in the College of
Medicine.

*kk
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HONORARY DEGREES

Resolution No. 2022-55
Synopsis: Approval of the honorary degrees listed below is proposed.

WHEREAS pursuant to paragraph (A)(3) of rule 3335-1-03 of the Administrative Code, the President,
after consultation with the Steering Committee of the University Senate, recommends to the Board
of Trustees the awarding of the honorary degrees as listed below:

Christy K. Mack Honorary Doctor of Humane Letters
John J. Mack Honorary Doctor of Humane Letters

WHEREAS the Committee on Honorary Degrees of the University Senate, pursuant to rule 3335-5-
48.8 of the Administrative Code, have approved for recommendation to the Board of Trustees the
awarding of the honorary degrees as listed below:

Freeman Hrabowski Ill Honorary Doctor of Education
Bryan Stevenson  Honorary Doctor of Public Service

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the awarding of the above honorary
degrees.

(See Appendix XXXVII for background information, page 1137)

*kk

APPROVAL TO INCREASE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND
ENTER INTO/INCREASE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Resolution No. 2022-56
APPROVAL TO INCREASE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
Morrill Tower — Fire Alarm Replacement
North Residential - HVAC Modifications Phase 1

APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
WMC Loading Dock Expansion and Renovation

Synopsis: Authorization to enter into/increase professional services and construction contracts, as
detailed in the attached materials, is proposed.

WHEREAS in accordance with the attached materials, the University desires to increase
professional services and construction contracts for the following projects; and
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Prof. Serv.  Construction Total
Approval Approval Requested
Requested Requested

Morrill Tower — Fire Alarm $1.0M $4.6M $5.6M  Auxiliary Funds
Replacement

X . University Debt
North Residential - HVAC $0.5M $4.6M $5.1M

Modifications Phase 1

WHEREAS in accordance with the attached materials, the University desires to enter into
construction contracts for the following project; and

Construction Approval Total
Requested Requested

WMC Loading Dock Expansion and

Renovation $15.1M $15.1M  Auxiliary Funds

WHEREAS the Master Planning and Facilities Committee has reviewed the projects listed above
for alignment with all applicable campus plans and guidelines; and

WHEREAS the Audit, Finance and Investment Committee has reviewed the projects listed above
for alignment with the Capital Investment Plan and other applicable financial plans:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the President and/or Senior

Vice President for Business and Finance be authorized to enter into/increase professional services

and construction contracts for the projects listed above in accordance with established University
and State of Ohio procedures, with all actions to be reported to the Board at the appropriate time.

(See Appendix XXXVIII for background information, page 1142)

ek

APPROVAL OF SPECIAL FEE FOR THE COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING
Resolution No. 2022-57

Synopsis: Approval of a special fee for undergraduate engineering students at all campuses of The
Ohio State University for the Fiscal Year 2023, is proposed.

WHEREAS the Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University supports the university's continued
implementation of the Academic Plan and its initiatives to meet the needs of Ohio State students;
and

WHEREAS new first-year undergraduate engineering students enrolled at all campuses in 2022-23
will be part of a new special fee cohort; and
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WHEREAS transfer engineering students that were new first-year undergraduate students for
Autumn 2022 at another college or university will be part of a new special fee cohort; and

WHEREAS undergraduate engineering students enrolled at all campuses prior to 2022-23 will
continue to pay the existing program fee consistent with the Tuition Guarantee cohort they are part
of; and

WHEREAS Ohio Revised Code 3345.11 establishes that institutions may charge a special fee, and
section 381.160 (A)(1)(C) of Sub. H.B. 110 of the 134th General Assembly establishes that
institutions may seek increases for all other special fees, including the creation of new special fees,
and are subject to the approval of the Chancellor of Higher Education:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the recommendation of the
administration and hereby approves the undergraduate engineering special fee for the 2022-23
academic year for all campuses, effective Autumn semester 2022, as outlined in the attached
document.

(See Appendix XXXIX for background information, page 1145)

*kk

APPROVAL TO SUBMIT AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (DRAFT) TO
THE AUDITOR OF STATE
Resolution No. 2022-58

Synopsis: Approval to submit the draft audited consolidated financial statements to the Auditor of
State, is proposed.

WHEREAS The Ohio State University annually seeks an independent audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a matter of strong financial oversight; and

WHEREAS the Auditor of State is required under Ohio law to audit each public office; and

WHEREAS the university is a public office and is required under Ohio law to file a financial report
with the Auditor of State for each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS the university operates on a fiscal year ending June 30 of each year; and
WHEREAS the university has produced consolidated financial statements for the 2020 and 2021
fiscal years, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America; and

WHEREAS the university engages an outside auditing firm, currently PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC,
to audit its consolidated financial statements; and

WHEREAS the university management and PricewaterhouseCoopers have produced a final draft of
the audited consolidated financial statements for the 2020 and 2021 fiscal years; and

WHEREAS the Auditor of State may accept the audited consolidated financial statements in lieu of
the audit required by Ohio law; and

WHEREAS the audited consolidated financial statements will not be final until approved by the
Auditor of State:
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NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby accepts the draft audited consolidated
financial statements for the 2020 and 2021 fiscal years; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the submission of these
consolidated financial statements to the Auditor of State for review and approval.

(See Appendix XL for background information, page 1148)

*kk

APPROVAL OF FY21 PROGRESS REPORT ON OHIO TASK FORCE
ON AFFORDABILITY AND EFFICIENCY IN HIGHER EDUCATION RECOMMENDATIONS

Resolution No. 2022-59
Synopsis: Approval of The Ohio State University’s FY21 progress report on the Ohio Task Force on
Affordability and Efficiency recommendations, which will be submitted to the Chancellor of Higher
Education, is proposed.
WHEREAS Governor John R. Kasich established the Ohio Task Force on Affordability and Efficiency
in Higher Education in 2015 to recommend solutions for state colleges and universities to enhance
affordability and efficiency; and

WHEREAS Ohio State supported the goals and work of this task force; and

WHEREAS the task force delivered its recommendations in the report “Action Steps to Reduce
College Costs” on October 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS House Bill 49 (Section 381.550) requires the Board of Trustees of each state college and
university to approve an efficiency report based on the task force recommendations each fiscal year
and submit it to the Chancellor of Higher Education; and

WHEREAS consultations have taken place within the university to review and apply the
recommendations to Ohio State’s circumstances; and

WHEREAS Ohio State’s strategic plan, which includes a pillar focused on operational excellence and
resource stewardship, is in strong alignment with task force recommendations:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the university’s FY21 progress
report in response to the task force recommendations, as detailed in the attached document; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the attached document be delivered to the Chancellor of the
Ohio Department of Higher Education.

(See Appendix XLI for background information, page 1255)
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*kk

AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE GOLF COURSE MEMBERSHIP
DUES AND FEES
Resolution No. 2022-60

Synopsis: Approval of golf course membership dues and fees for calendar year 2022 at the
recommended levels is proposed.

WHEREAS The Ohio State University Department of Athletics has a long history of self-sustainability
in supporting 36 world-class athletics programs and providing needed revenues back to the university
for scholarships and academic programs; and

WHEREAS each year the Athletic Council reviews projections for the coming year’s budget and
recommends golf course membership dues and fees; and

WHEREAS the Athletic Council has approved golf course membership dues and fees as shown on
the attached tables; and

WHEREAS the Athletic Council’'s recommendations have been reviewed and are recommended by
the appropriate University administration:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the recommended golf course
membership dues and fees for calendar year 2022.

(See Appendix XLII for background information, page 1276)

*kk

UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION REPORT
Resolution No. 2022-61

Synopsis: Approval of the University Foundation Report as of September 30, 2021, is proposed.

WHEREAS monies are solicited and received on behalf of the university from alumni, industry and
various individuals in support of research, instructional activities and service; and

WHEREAS such gifts are received through The Ohio State University Foundation; and

WHEREAS this report includes: (i) the establishment of one (1) endowed chair: The Robert F. Wolfe
and Edgar T. Wolfe Foundation Chief Clinical Officer Chair in the Wexner Medical Center; two (2)
endowed professorships: the Seth Andre Myers Professorship in Global Military History, and the
College of Arts and Sciences Alumni Professorship; one (1) endowed fellowship: the Richard R.
Duncan Fellowship; and twenty-six (26) additional named endowed funds; and (ii) the revision of
eleven (11) named endowed funds:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves The Ohio State University
Foundation Report as of September 30, 2021.

(See Appendix XLIII for background information, page 1278)
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*kk

NAMING OF THE JEFFREY SCHOTTENSTEIN PROGRAM
FOR RESILIENCE IN STUDENTS

Resolution No. 2022-62

AT THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF MEDICINE

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the Program for Resilience at The Ohio State University College
of Medicine, is proposed.

WHEREAS the College of Medicine, one of the largest and most diverse academic medical centers
in the country, combines innovative medical education with cutting-edge research and science-based
patient care to train physicians and health care professionals; and

WHEREAS the Program for Resilience, facilitated through the Department of Psychiatry and
Behavioral Health, will fight against stigma and provide education to our students to reduce the
shame that comes with mental iliness, and normalize these challenges that affect students with a
focus on promotion of positive health and on prevention so that disease is averted or does not
worsen; and

WHEREAS this program will offer services that cultivate resilience, conduct advanced research on
building resilience skills, and train a new generation of mental health advocates and providers on this
new model of care; and

WHEREAS Jean and Jay Schottenstein have provided significant contributions to The Ohio State
University College of Medicine; and

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming
of University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of Jean and Jay Schottenstein’s philanthropic support,
the Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of the

Ohio Administrative Code, that the Program for Resilience be named The Jeffrey Schottenstein
Program for Resilience in Students.

NAMING OF JANE E. HEMINGER HALL

Resolution No. 2022-63
IN THE COLLEGE OF NURSING

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the Jane E. Heminger Hall located at 1577 Neil Avenue is
proposed.

WHEREAS the College of Nursing’s vision is to be the world’s leader in thinking and achieving the
impossible in order to transform health and improve lives; and

WHEREAS the new facility is a gateway to the university’s health science campus and supports the
academic, research, innovation, wellness and evidence-based practice pillars of the college; and
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WHEREAS Gary and Jane Heminger have provided significant contributions to the College of
Nursing; and

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming
of University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of Gary and Jane Heminger’s philanthropic support,
the Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of the
Ohio Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned space be named
Jane E. Heminger Hall.

*kk

NAMING OF THE ENCOVA INSURANCE TUNNEL

Resolution No. 2022-64
AT OHIO STADIUM

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the home team tunnel at Ohio Stadium, located at 411 Woody
Hayes Drive, is proposed.

WHEREAS the Ohio Stadium is one of the most recognizable landmarks in all of college athletics,
built in 1922 and renovated in 2001; and

WHEREAS the Ohio Stadium continues to advance Ohio State’s athletic reputation and to help attract
and retain the best prospective student-athletes; and

WHEREAS the home team tunnel is the path the football student-athletes and staff take to enter the
field at Ohio Stadium on game days; and

WHEREAS Encova Mutual Insurance Group has provided significant contributions to the Department
of Athletics; and

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming
of University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of Encova Mutual Insurance Group’s philanthropic
support, the Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-
08 of the Ohio Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned space
be named the Encova Insurance Tunnel.

*kk

NAMING OF ALEX’S SUNNYSIDE PLAYROOM
Resolution No. 2022-65

IN THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY COMPREHENSIVE CANCER CENTER —
ARTHUR G. JAMES CANCER HOSPITAL AND RICHARD J. SOLOVE RESEARCH INSTITUTE

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the patient and family visitation room (Room A1402) in The

Ohio State University Comprehensive Cancer Center — Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and Richard
J. Solove Research Institute (OSUCCC — James), located at 460 West 10th Avenue, is proposed.
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WHEREAS the OSUCCC - James strives to create a cancer-free world by integrating scientific
research with excellence in education and patient-centered care — a strategy that leads to better
methods of cancer prevention, detection and treatment; and

WHEREAS the 21-level hospital is one of 51 National Cancer Institute (NCI)-designated
Comprehensive Cancer Centers and one of the top cancer hospitals in the nation as ranked by U.S.
News & World Report; and

WHEREAS Alex’s Sunnyside Playroom and Gwendolyn Porter have provided significant
contributions to the OSUCCC - James; and

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming
of University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of Alex’s Sunnyside Playroom and Gwendolyn Porter’s
philanthropic support, the Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of
rule 3335-1-08 of the Ohio Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the
aforementioned space be named Alex’s Sunnyside Playroom.

*kk

NAMING OF INTERNAL SPACES
Resolution No. 2022-66

IN THE FRANK STANTON VETERINARY SPECTRUM OF CARE CLINIC

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of internal spaces in the Frank Stanton Veterinary Spectrum of
Care Clinic, located at 655 Vernon L. Tharp Street, is proposed.

WHEREAS the College of Veterinary Medicine is consistently recognized as a leading veterinary
education and research program and is among the largest of its kind, uniquely located in a heavily
populated urban area surrounded by a strong rural and agricultural base; and

WHEREAS the veterinary primary care clinic will serve as a hands-on clinical training opportunity for
veterinary students and support the continuum of clinical training and Spectrum of Care education
that results in more confident and competent veterinary graduates; and

WHEREAS the donors listed below have provided significant contributions to the Frank Stanton
Veterinary Spectrum of Care Clinic; and

e Dr. Colleen Currigan
. Dr. James & Susan Link
. College of Veterinary Medicine Class of 1985

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming
of University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of the aforementioned donors’ philanthropic support,
the Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of the

Ohio Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned spaces be named
the following:
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e  Colleen E. Currigan, DVM 1985, AAFP President 2016 (Room 178)

e  Supported by: James F. Link, DVM Class of 1978 (Room 112)

. From the Class of 1985 “You can never really pay back. You can only pay forward.” —
Woody Hayes (Room 173)

*kk

NAMING OF INTERNAL SPACES
Resolution No. 2022-67
IN THE VETERINARY MEDICAL CENTER

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of internal spaces in the Veterinary Medical Center, located at
601 Vernon L. Sharp Street, is proposed.

WHEREAS the Veterinary Medical Center serves the citizens of the State of Ohio through the support
of the clinical education of veterinary students, post-graduate veterinarians and others, and promotes
animal well-being through the operation of a state-of-the-art center; and

WHEREAS since 1885, the College of Veterinary Medicine has had a comprehensive referral
veterinary medical center that admits more than 35,000 animal patients each year, representing a
wide range of species including companion, farm, equine and service animals; and

WHEREAS the donors listed below have provided significant contributions to the Veterinary Medical
Center; and

. College of Veterinary Medicine Class of 1982
. College of Veterinary Medicine Class of 1989
e Wolff Family Charitable Foundation Trust

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming
of University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of the aforementioned donors’ philanthropic support,
the Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of the
Ohio Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned spaces be named
the following:

e Class of 1982 Exam Room (Room 1014)
. Class of 1989 Conference Room (Room A236)
e Wolff Family Trust Exam Room (Room 1012)

*kk

NAMING OF THE BILL AND KATIE SHELLEY HUDDLE ROOM

Resolution No. 2022-68
IN BOLZ HALL

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the Huddle Room (430A) in Bolz Hall, located at 236 Neil
Avenue, is proposed.
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WHEREAS the Department of Civil, Environmental and Geodetic Engineering is committed to
providing opportunities for students to work in a professional environment before beginning their
careers post-graduation; and

WHEREAS the renovations include new student-centered spaces to create an environment where
students can collaborate with each other, faculty and industry professionals; and

WHEREAS William and Katie Shelley have provided significant contributions to the College of
Engineering; and

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming
of University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of William and Katie Shelley’s philanthropic support,
the Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of the
Ohio Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned space be named
the Bill and Katie Shelley Huddle Room.

*kk

NAMING IN HONOR OF HELGA AND ROBERT MULADORE
(INGRID MULADORE ROBECHEK AND NILS MULADORE)

Resolution No. 2022-69
IN THE WOSU PUBLIC MEDIA HEADQUARTERS

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the phone room (413) in the WOSU Public Media Headquarters,
located at 1800 North Pearl Street, is proposed.

WHEREAS since its first broadcast in 1920, WOSU Public Media has delivered engaging local and
global news and public affairs programming, provided front-row access to musical performances, and
inspired Central Ohio citizens through lifelong learning experiences; and

WHEREAS with state-of-the-art facilities, the new headquarters will enable WOSU to expand and
enhance its programming for the more than 2 million citizens it reaches through television, radio,
digital and its WOSU Classroom services; and

WHEREAS the donors listed below have provided significant support to WOSU; and

. Stacey Wideman Muladore and Nils Muladore
e  Ingrid Muladore Robechek and John Robechek

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming
of University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of the aforementioned donors’ philanthropic support,
the Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of the

Ohio Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned space be named
In Honor of Helga and Robert Muladore (Ingrid Muladore Robechek and Nils Muladore) (413).
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*kk

NAMING OF GENEROUS GIFT FROM KAREN AND STEVE SKILKEN

Resolution No. 2022-70
IN OUTPATIENT CARE NEW ALBANY

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the surgery consult room (Room 2310) in the Outpatient
Care New Albany facility, to be located at 6100 North Hamilton Road, is proposed.

WHEREAS the Outpatient Care New Albany facility is part of a new suburban outpatient care
program at the Wexner Medical Center that supports growth in the region and excellence in academic
health care; and

WHEREAS the New Albany facility will include program offerings such as ambulatory surgery,
endoscopy, primary care, specialty medical and surgical clinics, and related support spaces; and

WHEREAS Karen and Steve Skilken have provided significant contributions to the Wexner Medical
Center and the Outpatient Care New Albany facility; and

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming
of University Spaces and Entities policy, and if at any time following the approval of the naming,
circumstances change so that the continued use of the name may compromise the integrity or
reputation of the University, the University may remove the name with the approval of the President
and the Board of Trustees and notification of the donor, if possible:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of Karen and Steve Skilken’s philanthropic support,
the Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of the
Ohio Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned space be named
the following: Generous Gift from Karen and Steve Skilken.

*kk

NAMING OF THE CONTROLLED ENVIRONMENT AGRICULTURE RESEARCH COMPLEX
Resolution No. 2022-71
IN THE COLLEGE OF FOOD, AGRICULTURAL, AND ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES
Synopsis: Approval for the administrative renaming of the Controlled Environment Food Production
Research Complex in the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences to the

Controlled Environment Agriculture Research Complex, is proposed.

WHEREAS the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences works to sustain life every
day through teaching, research and extension statewide on all of our campuses; and

WHEREAS the College focuses on agricultural products holistically through this facility; and
WHEREAS the College recommends the name change; and

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming
of University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE
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BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D)
of rule 3335-1-08 of the Ohio Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the
aforementioned space be named the Controlled Environment Agriculture Research Complex.

*kk

APPOINTMENT TO THE SELF INSURANCE BOARD
Resolution No. 2022-72
Synopsis: Appointment of a member to the Self Insurance Board is proposed.

WHEREAS the Board of Trustees directed that a Self Insurance Board be established to oversee the
University Self Insurance Program; and

WHEREAS all members of the Self Insurance Board are appointed by The Ohio State University
Board of Trustees upon recommendation of the President; and

WHEREAS the term of member Charlotte Agnone, MD expired on June 30, 2021:
NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the following individual be
appointed as a member of the Self Insurance Board effective December 1, 2021, for the term
specified below:

. Demetries J. Neely, Esq. term ending June 30, 2024
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That this appointment entitles the member to any immunity, insurance

or indemnity protection to which officers and employees of the University are, or hereafter may
become, entitled.

Mr. Heminger:
Thank you, President Johnson. We will now hold two roll-call votes. First, we will vote on item No.
15 — the “Naming of Jane E. Heminger Hall,” and | will abstain. May | have a motion to approve
this naming?
Upon the motion of Mr. Zeiger, seconded by Mr. Kaplan, the Board of Trustees adopted the foregoing
resolution by majority roll call vote, cast by the following trustees: Mrs. Wexner, Mr. Porteus, Mrs.
Hoeflinger, Dr. Fujita, Mr. Stockmeister, Mr. Zeiger, Ms. Kessler, Mr. Von Thaer, Mr. Kaplan, Mrs.
Harsh, Dr. Wilkinson, Mr. Kiggin, Mr. Mitevski, Ms. Sobol and Mr. Hunt. Mr. Heminger abstained.
Ms. Eveland:
Motion carries.

Mr. Heminger:

Thank you. Now we will vote on the remainder of the items listed on the consent agenda.
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Upon the motion of Mr. Heminger, seconded by Mr. Von Thaer, the Board of Trustees adopted the
foregoing resolutions by unanimous roll call vote, cast by the following trustees: Mr. Heminger, Mrs.
Wexner, Mr. Porteus, Mrs. Hoeflinger, Dr. Fujita, Mr. Stockmeister, Mr. Zeiger, Ms. Kessler, Mr. Von
Thaer, Mr. Kaplan, Mrs. Harsh, Dr. Wilkinson, Mr. Kiggin, Mr. Mitevski, Ms. Sobol and Mr. Hunt.
Ms. Eveland:
Motion carries.
Mr. Heminger:
Thank you. The next meetings of the Board of Trustees and its committees will take place in
February. And the formal investiture of President Johnson will take place tomorrow afternoon. |
look forward to seeing all of you at this special event. Is there any further business to come before
the Board at this time?
Hearing none, this meeting is adjourned. Thank you.

The meeting adjourned at 4:08 p.m.

Attest:
Gary R. Heminger Jessica A. Eveland
Chairman Secretary
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APPENDIX XXVII

SUMMARY OF ACTIONS TAKEN

November 16, 2021 - Wexner Medical Center Board Meeting

Members Present:

Leslie H. Wexner
Abigail S. Wexner
Erin P. Hoeflinger
Hiroyuki Fujita

Alan A. Stockmeister
John W. Zeiger

Carly G. Sobol

Robert H. Schottenstein

Cindy Hilsheimer

Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)
Kristina M. Johnson (ex officio)
Melissa L. Gilliam (ex officio)

Board of Trustees

210 Bricker Hall
190 North Oval Mall
Columbus, OH 43210-1388

Phone (614) 292-6359
Fax (614) 292-5903
trustees.osu.edu

Michael Papadakis (ex officio)
Mark Larmore (ex officio)
Andrew Thomas (ex officio)

Members Present via Zoom:

Stephen D. Steinour

Amy Chronis

Members Absent:

W.G. “Jerry” Jurgensen

PUBLIC SESSION

The Wexner Medical Center Board convened for its 40th meeting on Tuesday, November 16, 2021, in person at
the Longaberger Alumni House on the Columbus campus and virtually over Zoom. Board Secretary Jessica A.
Eveland called the meeting to order at 1:01 p.m.

Item for Action

1.

Approval of Minutes: No changes were requested to the August 17, 2021, meeting minutes; therefore, a
formal vote was not required, and the minutes were considered approved.

Items for Discussion

2.

Interim Co-Leaders’ Report: Mark Larmore, CFO, and Andrew Thomas, Chief Clinical Officer, were named
interim co-leaders of the Wexner Medical Center following the resignation of former Chancellor and
Executive Vice President Hal Paz. Mr. Larmore and Dr. Thomas will serve as co-members of the Wexner
Medical Center Board for the interim period, sharing one vote between them and alternating their votes
at each meeting. For this meeting, Mr. Larmore will serve as the voting member.

In honor of Veterans Day, Mr. Larmore began this report by expressing gratitude for all of the servicemen
and women who have served and currently serve our country, including the 500 veterans and active-duty
service members across the medical center. He also announced that the Robert F. Wolfe and Edgar T.
Wolfe Foundation awarded a $5 million gift to endow the chief clinical officer position at the medical center.
Dr. Thomas is the first designee in this endowed position, the Wolfe Foundation Chief Clinical Officer
Chair. Upon his retirement, the chair will be funded in perpetuity and renamed the Wolfe Foundation Dr.
Andrew M. Thomas Chief Clinical Officer Chair.

Dr. Thomas thanked the Jay and Jeanie Schottenstein Foundation for a $10 million gift to the College of
Medicine to support mental health and resilience programs across the medical center and, especially,
directed to support the student body. He also spoke about the 12th Annual Faces of Resilience event,
which was hosted in September by Dr. Lee Shackelford and Ms. Patti Shorr. The event honored Governor
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Mike DeWine, First Lady Fran DeWine and Nationwide Children’s Hospital CEO Tim Robinson. It raised
more than $420,000 to benefit Ohio State’s Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral Health and Harding
Hospital. Additionally, Dr. Thomas highlighted the medical center’s new TALK suicide prevention program
as well as the good news that both the University Hospitals and Ross Heart Hospital nursing teams won
a prestigious international award from the Magnet program of the American Nurses Credentialing Center.
It was a $75,000 prize and a unanimous vote by the awards committee — the first time ever— to recognize
the nursing teams’ creation of a remote glucose monitoring system during the COVID-19 pandemic.
Additionally, he shared that the medical center set a record in terms of NIH funding last year with $195
million in grants, and the College of Medicine’s research funding topped $300 million.

Mr. Larmore noted that Fifth Third Bank selected the medical center as one of nine centers to receive a
grant of $20 million to continue developing the PACT program on the Near East Side. PACT was
established in 2010 with the City of Columbus and other Near East stakeholders. This is a great example
of how the medical center can work with community partners to address health disparities. Additionally,
five of our health sciences graduate programs received 2021 Health Professions HEED awards, which
stands for Higher Education Excellence in Diversity, and the health system was selected by Becker’s
Hospital Review as one of the 10 most-trusted health system brands.

Finally, the group watched a pre-recorded performance of the “To the Builders” poem by Dr. Antoinette
Pusateri, a current fellow at the medical center, in celebration of the new inpatient hospital tower being
constructed on the Columbus campus.

3. Leading the Way: Military Medicine: Amy Moore, Professor and Chair of the Department of Plastic and
Reconstructive Surgery, shared a presentation on Ohio State’s plastic surgery efforts related to wounded
veterans. Ohio has the fourth-largest veteran community in the United States. As such, the medical center
is working to expand its Military Medicine Program, which will serve the needs of our nation’s servicemen
and women through integrated efforts designed to augment the range and quality of care available to our
injured service members, enhance the capability of our military providers, foster meaningful research
collaboration, and provide a community space for our military personnel and patients.

(See Attachment XXXVIII for background information, page 772)

4. New Albany Ambulatory Update: Jay Anderson, Chief Operating Officer, gave an update on the medical
center’'s newest ambulatory site, Outpatient Care New Albany, which opened in late July. The 250,000-
square-foot facility offers comprehensive health care in a convenient, community setting, and it will serve
as the model for the medical center's next ambulatory locations. The facility features more than 200
patient exam rooms, more than 50 clinic procedure rooms, a mammography unit, a surgery and
endoscopy unit, and more. There are more than 130 providers there supported by 350-plus staff, and less
than three months after opening the facility had already seen more than 40,000 patient visits.

(See Attachment XXXIX for background information, page 799)

5. James Cancer Hospital Report: William Farrar, CEO of the James Cancer Hospital, shared a variety of
updates, including the hiring of the James’ new CFO Ryan Goerlitz, who previously served as Associate
Vice President of Finance in the College of Medicine. He also discussed the impact that COVID-19 has
had on cancer screening rates and prevention efforts. Data from multiple journals indicates that,
nationally, there has between a decrease of 56% to 85% in breast, colon, prostate and lung cancer
screenings. To mitigate these declines, the James has invested significantly in its marketing efforts,
targeting both the community and referring providers. Additionally, the James has worked to provide
expanded access through the development of six new mammography screening locations around the
central Ohio area. He also discussed the work of the Center for Cancer Health Equity at the OSUCCC-
James to educate the community on the importance of screening and prevention. In the past five years,
the center has hosted more than 600 events that reached 27,000 people.
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Dr. Farrar also shared that Ohio has the fourth-highest level of radon in the nation. Radon exposure is the
second-leading cause of lung cancer and the primary cause among non-smokers. Dr. David Carbone,
director of the OSUCCC-James Thoracic Oncology Center, spearheaded the work to raise awareness of
radon exposure to state leaders in order to create a statewide radon awareness month. Known as the
Annie Cacciato Act, the new legislation, signed by Governor Mike DeWine in July, designated January as
Radon Awareness Month in Ohio.

Additionally, Dr. Farrar shared that the OSUCCC-James recently added an additional member to the
James Cancer Network — an affiliation with Mercy Health-Springfield. This affiliation will enhance cancer
care services for patients throughout Clark and Champaign counties. With seven affiliations overall, the
James Cancer Network is enhancing and expanding the scope of oncology care and research throughout
the region and state. Also, the James has received national recognition for excellence in patient care after
receiving the Press Ganey Guardian of Excellence in Patient Experience Award for the sixth time, as well
as two Pinnacle of Excellence Awards.

(See Attachment XL for background information, page 811)

6. Wexner Medical Center Financial Report: Mr. Larmore shared the medical center’s first quarter financial
results, ending September 30. The health system — which includes the seven hospitals — saw an excess
of revenue over expenses of $79.6 million, which was approximately $17 million more than anticipated.
This was a 27.9% improvement over the same time last year. The combined Wexner Medical Center
results, consisting of the health system, College of Medicine and OSU Physicians, showed $89.2 million
excess of revenue over expenses, which was approximately $19 million more than anticipated, and a
26.8% improvement year-over-year. This shows 10.6% growth in revenue and 9.3% growth in expenses.

(See Attachment XLI for background information, page 822)

Items for Action

7. Resolution No. 2022-47, Recommend Approval to Enter Into Construction Contracts:

APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO Construction CONTRACTS
WMC Loading Dock Expansion and Renovation

Synopsis: Authorization to enter into construction contracts, as detailed in the attachedmaterials, is
proposed.

WHEREAS in accordance with the attached materials, the University desires to enter into construction
contracts for the following project:

Construction Total
Approval Requested
Requested
WMC Loading Dock $15.1M $15.1M  Auxiliary Funds

Expansion and Renovation

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Wexner Medical Center Board hereby approves and proposes that the
construction contracts for the project listed above be recommended to the University Board of
Trustees for approval.

(See Attachment XLII for background information, page 827)
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8. Resolution No. 2022-48, Ratification of Committee Appointments FY2022-2023:

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Wexner Medical Center Board hereby approves that the ratification of
appointments to the Quality and Professional Affairs Committee for FY2022-2023 are as follows:

Quality and Professional Affairs Committee

Alan A. Stockmeister, Chair
Erin P. Hoeflinger
Carly G. Sobol
Melissa L. Gilliam
Michael Papadakis
Jay M. Anderson
MARK E. LARMORE
Andrew M. Thomas
David E. Cohn
Elizabeth Seely
Scott A. Holliday
lahn Gonsenhauser
Jacalyn Buck
Kristopher M. Kipp
Lisa Keder
Alison R. Walker
Abigail S. Wexner (ex officio)

Action: Upon the motion of Mr. Zeiger, seconded by Mr. Stockmeister, the board approved the foregoing motions
by unanimous roll call vote with the following members present and voting: Mr. Wexner, Mrs. Wexner, Mrs.
Hoeflinger, Dr. Fujita, Mr. Stockmeister, Mr. Zeiger, Ms. Sobol, Mr. Schottenstein, Ms. Hilsheimer, Ms. Chronis,

Mr. Heminger, Dr. Johnson, Mr. Larmore, Dr. Gilliam and Mr. Papadakis. Mr. Steinour was not present.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

It was moved by Mrs. Wexner, and seconded by Mr. Heminger, that the board recess into executive session to
consider business-sensitive trade secrets and quality matters required to be kept confidential by federal and state
statutes, to consult with legal counsel regarding pending or imminent litigation, and to discuss personnel matters
involving the appointment, employment and compensation of public officials, which are required to be kept

confidential under Ohio law.

A roll call vote was taken, and the board voted to go into executive session with the following members present
and voting: Mr. Wexner, Mrs. Wexner, Mrs. Hoeflinger, Dr. Fujita, Mr. Stockmeister, Mr. Zeiger, Ms. Sobol, Mr.
Schottenstein, Ms. Hilsheimer, Ms. Chronis, Mr. Heminger, Dr. Johnson, Mr. Larmore, Dr. Gilliam and Mr.

Papadakis. Mr. Steinour was not present.

The board entered executive session at 2:05 p.m. and adjourned at 5:36 p.m.
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Thank You

Wexnermedical.osu.edu
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ATTACHMENT XLII
Project Data Sheet for Board of Trustees Approval

WMC Loading Dock Expansion and Renovation
OSU-200238 (CNI#19000137)

Project Location: Doan Hall

e approval requested and amount
construction w/contingency $15.1M
(includes installed equipment)

e project budget

professional services $1.8M
construction w/contingency $15.1M
total project budget $16.9M

e project funding
O university debt
O fundraising
O university funds
X auxiliary funds
[ state funds

e project schedule

BoT professional services approval 11/19
design/bidding 6/20 — 2/22
BoT construction approval 11/21
construction 4/22 - 6/23
facility opening 7/23

e project delivery method
O general contracting
O design/build
X construction manager at risk

e planning framework
o this project is included in the FY 2020, FY 2021 and FY2022 Capital Investment Plans and is based on a
study of dock operations completed in March 2018. Project scope was updated and validated during
design.
o additional project funding will be included in the FY 2023 Capital Investment Plan

e project scope
o the project will renovate 28,000 sf of existing dock area and add 6,000 sf; the expanded dock will support
the continued growth of the Wexner Medical Center
o renovation work will include the clean and soiled staging areas with the expansion adding new soiled
dock doors and space for pneumatic trash and a linen fan room
o the project will replace cart washers, dock levelers, and dock door equipment
o structural, mechanical and electrical upgrades are included

e approval requested
o approval is requested to enter into construction contracts

. project team

University project manager: Robin Faires
AE/design architect: Davis Wince
CM at Risk Elford
Office of Administration and Planning November 2021
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APPENDIX XXIX

Board of Trustees

210 Bricker Hall
190 North Oval Mall
Columbus, OH 43210-1388

Phone (614) 292-6359

Fax (614) 292-5903
trustees.osu.edu

SUMMARY OF ACTIONS TAKEN

November 17, 2021 — Talent, Compensation & Governance Committee Meeting
Members Present:

Hiroyuki Fujita Abigail S. Wexner Elizabeth P. Kessler
Lewis Von Thaer John W. Zeiger Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Members Present via Zoom:

N/A

Members Absent:

Brent R. Porteus

Alexander R. Fischer
PUBLIC SESSION

The Talent, Compensation & Governance Committee of The Ohio State University Board of Trustees
convened on Wednesday, November 17, 2021, in person at Longaberger Alumni House on the
Columbus campus. Committee Chair Hiroyuki Fujita called the meeting to order 11:08 a.m.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

It was moved by Dr. Fujita, and seconded by Mr. Zeiger, that the committee recess into executive
session to discuss business-sensitive trade secrets required to be kept confidential by federal and state
statutes, and to discuss personnel matters regarding the appointment, employment and compensation
of public employees.

A roll call vote was taken, and the committee voted to go into executive session, with the following
members present and voting: Dr. Fujita, Mr. Von Thaer, Mrs. Wexner, Mr. Zeiger, Ms. Kessler and Mr.
Heminger.

The committee entered executive session at 11:10 a.m.
PUBLIC SESSION

Dr. Fujita reconvened the committee meeting in public session at 12:06 p.m.
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Items for Discussion

1.

Strategy, Structure and Talent: In his new role as Senior Vice President for Talent, Culture, and
Human Resources, Dr. Jeff Risinger shared his approach to strategy, structure and talent in the
Human Resources space. He shared his overall strategic approach, an overview of the
organizational structure he inherited and an overview of the new structure he is establishing.

(See Attachment XLIII for background information, page 832)

Workday Optimization: Dr. Risinger shared his Workday Optimization Strategy Map with a vision
for successfully implementing the Workday enterprise management system.

(See Attachment XLIV for background information, page 837)

Key Critical Searches: Dr. Risinger shared the high-level searches that are in motion, including
searches for the next CEO and CFO of the Wexner Medical Center, the university’s Chief
Information Security Officer, Dean of the College of Social Work, Dean of the College of Arts
and Sciences, and Vice Provost for Graduate Studies and Dean of the Graduate School.

Items for Action

4.

Approval of Minutes: No changes were requested to the August 18, 2021, meeting minutes;
therefore, a formal vote was not required, and the minutes were considered approved.

Resolution No. 2022-51, Personnel Actions

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the personnel actions as
recorded in the personnel budget records of the university since the August 18, 2021, meeting
of the Board, including the following appointments and contract updates:

Appointments

Name: Mark Larmore

Title: Interim Co-Leader of The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center
Unit: Wexner Medical Center

Term: September 9, 2021

Name: Andrew Thomas

Title: Interim Co-Leader of The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center
Unit:. Wexner Medical Center

Term: September 9, 2021
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6. Resolution No. 2022-50, Ratification of Committee Appointments FY2022-23

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the ratification of
committee appointments for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 are as follows:

Academic Affairs & Student Life:

Brent R. Porteus, Chair

Jeff M.S. Kaplan, Vice Chair
Abigail S. Wexner

Elizabeth P. Kessler
Michael Kiggin

Elizabeth A. Harsh

Reginald A. Wilkinson

Tom B. Mitevski

Tanner R. Hunt

Susan Olesik (faculty member)

Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Audit, Finance & Investment:
John W. Zeiger, Chair
Erin P. Hoeflinger
Lewis Von Thaer
Jeff M.S. Kaplan
Michael Kiggin
Tom B. Mitevski
Carly G. Sobol
James D. Klingbeil
Amy Chronis
Kent M. Stahl
Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Legal, Risk & Compliance:
Elizabeth P. Kessler, Chair
Alan A. Stockmeister
Jeff M.S. Kaplan
Michael Kiggin
Elizabeth A. Harsh
Tom B. Mitevski
Tanner R. Hunt
Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Master Planning & Facilities:
Alexander R. Fischer, Chair
James D. Klingbeil, Vice Chair
Brent R. Porteus
Alan A. Stockmeister
Elizabeth A. Harsh
Reginald A. Wilkinson
Tanner R. Hunt
Robert H. Schottenstein
Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Research, Innovation & Strategic Partnerships

Lewis Von Thaer, Chair

Erin P. Hoeflinger, Vice Chair
Alexander R. Fischer
Hiroyuki Fujita

Reginald A. Wilkinson

Carly G. Sobol

Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Talent, Compensation & Governance:
Hiroyuki Fujita, Chair
Lewis Von Thaer, Vice Chair
Brent R. Porteus
Abigail S. Wexner
Alexander R. Fischer
John W. Zeiger
Elizabeth P. Kessler
Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Wexner Medical Center:
Leslie H. Wexner, Chair
Abigail S. Wexner
Erin P. Hoeflinger
Hiroyuki Fujita
Alan A. Stockmeister
John W. Zeiger
Carly G. Sobol
Stephen D. Steinour
Robert H. Schottenstein
W.G. Jurgensen
Cindy Hilsheimer
Amy Chronis
Gary R. Heminger (ex officio, voting)
Kristina M. Johnson (ex officio, voting)
Melissa L. Gilliam (ex officio, voting)
Michael Papadakis (ex officio, voting)
MARK LARMORE / ANDREW THOMAS (ex
officio, voting)
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Action: Upon the motion of Dr. Fujita, seconded by Mr. Von Thaer, the foregoing motions were adopted by
unanimous voice vote with the following members present and voting: Dr. Fujita, Mr. Von Thaer, Mrs. Wexner,
Mr. Zeiger, Ms. Kessler and Mr. Heminger.

Written Report
In the public session materials, there was one written report shared for the committee to review:

a. Human Resources Summary (See Attachment XLV for background information, page 838)

EXECUTIVE SESSION

It was moved by Dr. Fujita, and seconded by Ms. Kessler, that the committee recess back into executive session
to discuss business-sensitive trade secrets required to be kept confidential by federal and state statutes.

A roll call vote was taken, and the committee voted to go into executive session, with the following members
present and voting: Dr. Fujita, Mr. Von Thaer, Mrs. Wexner, Mr. Zeiger, Ms. Kessler and Mr. Heminger.

The committee entered executive session at 12:29 p.m. and adjourned at 12:49 p.m.
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ATTACHMENT XLV

Human Resources Summary Report

Talent, Compensation and Governance Committee
November 2021

The following overview of Human Resource initiatives has been prepared for the Talent,
Compensation and Governance committee of the Board of Trustees to summarize important updates
since the last committee meeting.

In addition to updates that align with the HR strategic plan (2018-2023) there is also a brief update on
the work of the HR Return to Campus Task Force. During Autumn 2021 semester, the focus of HR
shifted to vaccination requirement compliance along with continued guidance on health and safety
protocols as more of the Ohio State community returned to campus.

Additionally, data and metrics with current analytics, specific to workforce demographics have been
updated as of October 2021. The content outlined in this report is inclusive of HR efforts across all
campus locations and the Wexner Medical Center.

Since joining Ohio State in August, | have listened to the input of stakeholders from across campus
representing both internal and external perspectives and assessed their feedback on the current state
of HR, its reputation as a service provider and as an employee experience for HR staff. | am
appreciative of the candor consistently shared with openness and support, which have helped inform
the approach that will guide our path forward.

On October 15, 2021, | announced an interim HR structure along with several leadership updates to
address some of the more immediate needs expressed through the input received. A brief overview
of that announcement is also included in this report.

| am confident in the leaders and talent we have in HR and optimistic about the work ahead of us to
influence and deliver positive change. We will be mindful and deliberate as we chart a refreshed
strategy. | look forward to sharing our progress with you along this journey.

Thank you for the warm welcome extended to me during this period of onboarding and transition as
well as your steadfast commitment to the success of the Ohio State community.

Kind regards,

Jeff

Jeff Risinger, PhD

Senior Vice President,

Talent, Culture & Human Resources

HR.OSU.EDU

1590 N. High Street, Suite 300 | Columbus, OH 43201 | 614-292-1050
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HR Transformation at Ohio State
In alignment with the 2018-2023 HR Strategic Plan focused on three strategic pillars,
and a strong foundational culture.

Talent Management
o_0 Recruit, retain and develop the most talented and high-quality faculty,
... staff, and physicians.

Leadership Development and Manager Training Portal

The development of Phase | of the multi-modal Leadership Development curriculum titled Advancing
Managers Program (AMP) for early career managers at Ohio State is complete. The curriculum
consists of a participant/manager kick-off, participant self-assessment, and five core modules
followed by self-paced modules.

The first pilot of the Advancing Managers Program began in July with 23 participants. In follow-up of
the first five core modules, 97% of participants surveyed were either satisfied or extremely satisfied.
The first cohort is moving on to their self-paced portion of the program.

The second cohort kicked off in September with 22 participants. The second cohort also includes
involvement with the participant’s leaders to assist with the transfer of the learning back on the job
utilizing a “Leader’s Guide.”

Four cohorts a year will participate in AMP -- HR can actualize segments of the breadth of tactics
under each strategic pillar in the following ways:

= Leadership Development:
Develop high performing faculty and staff into leaders and positive influencers.

= Inclusive Work
Implement a manager toolkit that empowers leaders to develop inclusive and engaging work
environments.

= Innovative Workplace Practices
Integrate Wellness initiatives throughout the Employee Lifecycle.

= Performance & Growth:
Provide leaders with a toolkit for performance and growth.

To support the Leadership Development strategy, enhancements to the Gateway to Learning website
and the new Manager Portal design will begin at the end of Q1.
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Leader Listening Series: Viewpoints

A new leadership series is in the design phase to promote various topics and perspectives through
active listening with the intent to take positive action (Topics: Belonging; Career Development;
Psychological Safety; Innovative Workplace Practices).

Staff Development

In partnership with USAC, the one-year contract with LinkedIn Learning has been signed and
communicated through the July USAC newsletter. Communications for LinkedIn learning licenses is
ongoing and to date we have 417 licenses distributed across the organization.

Talent Acquisition
Recruiting

Over the last three months, we have continued to evolve the recruiting support for the organization to
meet the growth needs of the colleges and business units. There has been a specific focus on hiring
experienced recruiting talent who are dedicated to better supporting the increased talent acquisition
needs of the enterprise.

For 2022, our focus in recruiting will be continuing to identify and implement new and innovative
recruitment practices to further streamline the hiring and onboarding experience.

HR Excellence
! Improve the employee experience through transformed HR core processes that
deliver strategic HR services and transactional accuracy and efficiency.

HR Service Delivery

Ohio State’s shared service operation continues to implement ongoing improvements to raise
operational efficiency and effectiveness. Efforts are two-fold focused both on immediate relief of
challenges impacting operations and on key areas of ‘root-cause’ opportunity.

The start of Autumn semester has brought the expected surge in hiring, benefits enrollment, and foot
traffic to HR. The HR Connection lobby began welcoming customers in person on August 1, and the
HR Connection phone line was updated to offer additional options to better support Ohio State
employees, job seekers, and unit HR professionals. Over 12,000 phone calls were received in HR
Connection during the month of August. This number settled back to the more normal average of
10,000 calls per month for September. The team is preparing for another surge in volume as the
annual benefits open enroliment process is set to open on November 1 (representing the first-time
open enrollment is completed by employees in Workday).
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Consistency in business process is producing data not available prior to the Workday implementation,
and this data is being used to refine the HR delivery model, resource levels, and scope determination.
This data is also being used to identify the priority areas for system and process enhancements.

The need for additional training in both system and context continues to be highlighted in feedback
and validated by data. Transaction errors are driving focus areas for targeted training while an overall
(re)training surge is being planned for all Workday stakeholders.

Opportunity Areas

e Workday Training: The need for improvements in training is evident in much of the feedback
around Workday dissatisfaction. Data around the impact of transactional errors — such as
incorrect pay cases or requests for off-cycle checks — validates this need and will be used to
objectively measure effectiveness of improvement efforts. Plans to implement both focused
retraining as well as an ongoing training capability are underway.

e Prioritization of Improvements: While lists of improvement requests are quite long, careful
evaluation and balance must identify what changes to make as soon as possible and what
changes can be evaluated later (perhaps after a focused training effort has been re-
introduced).

Total Rewards
2 | 2 Ensure competitive Total Rewards while balancing fiscal responsibility.

Career Roadmap

Ohio State’s Career Roadmap will be a new approach for hiring, managing and developing staff. The
scope of Career Roadmap focuses on 26,000 staff positions across the medical center, main campus
and regional campuses. Not included are physicians, faculty, executives, athletic coaches, student
employees or bargaining units.

Career Roadmap will be implemented in 2022. The final months of development will include
significant change management efforts.

An updated compensation policy will include changes covering salary administration, additional
compensation and staff recognition. A public review of the updated policy by the university community
is expected in the coming months.

In September 2021, the project team began preparing stakeholders for the manager and employee

review period. This phase will be the opportunity for staff to review how they are mapped and agree
with or suggest changes.
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In preparation, 150 HR partners and 2,000 managers have received training on Career Roadmap
fundamentals and the employee review process. An additional 2,600 managers have access to the
recorded training. A second round of manager training will be held in November and will focus on
using pay ranges to confirm mapping decisions.

Prior to their initial mapping notification, staff will also receive training, and an all-staff town hall will be
hosted by the University Staff Advisory Council with Jeff Risinger, Senior Vice President of Talent,
Culture and Human Resources.

Implementing Career Roadmap as Ohio State’s job catalog and compensation structure will bring
visible career paths, market relevance, common language and regulatory compliance. The
university’s current system relies on out-of-date job classification and pay structures with poor
visibility to the market position of base pay.

The pay ranges in the catalog will be reviewed annually, informed by industry-leading market
research, and updated as appropriate. Standardized pay ranges and job functions will foster equity
across colleges and units.

We appreciate the Board’s commitment to this initiative and its continued support of these changes
as a university strategy.

HR Spotlight: COVID-19 Vaccine Requirement & Compliance

The university announced in autumn semester 2021 a requirement that all students,

faculty and staff be vaccinated for COVID-19 by October 15, 2021. The requirement

provided a reporting element as well as a process for exemptions from the vaccine
for medical, religious or personal reasons.

An exemption process was established, and all students, faculty and staff were required to either
have a granted exemption or have the at least the first dose of a two-dose vaccine by October 15,
2021. Second doses were required to be completed by November 15, 2021.

The HR team led and supported this initiative by taking a leadership role as an executive sponsor; co-
leading the vaccination response team; helping to develop and implement the programs, compliance
measures and communications for the initiative; supporting leaders, managers and employees with
compliance and helping to document the overall response. The team continues to support the
implementation of the initiative, through managing compliance for faculty and staff with the
requirement and assisting compliance activities for those who have been granted exemptions and for
new employees.

As of October 15™, more than 90% of students, faculty and staff were compliant with the vaccine
requirement. Exemptions were granted for several thousand students, faculty and staff. Those with
exemptions were required to complete an e-Learning on COVID-19 vaccines, wear masks indoors at
all times, and complete a weekly COVID-19 test beginning the week of October 25%.
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Additionally, compliance measures were established for any student, faculty or staff member who
failed to comply with the vaccine requirement. Effective disciplinary measures included restriction
from campus activities, denial of access to IT resources and up to and including termination of
employment. A full communications and personal assistance plan to comply with the requirement was
implemented.

As we transition from fall to spring semester, the HR team will continue to support compliance efforts
and become increasingly engaged in individual support and management of those employees who
remain out of compliance with the vaccine requirement.

October 2021 HR Structure Update

Several organization updates were announced on October 15, 2021, in support of a new HR structure
for Ohio State focused on:

e providing quality HR service to our faculty and staff
o further developing the HR centers of expertise; and
e strengthening our HR community to foster creativity, collaboration, innovation and accountability

The goal of the updated HR organizational structure is to work more collaboratively across the
enterprise to meet the unique and diverse needs of our customers.

By further aligning our collective HR expertise and resources across all campuses consistent with
President Johnson’s 10-year strategic vision to operate more fully as one cohesive university, we will
experience and impact much desired positive change.

The structural design focuses on 5 key organizational elements — including three core service areas:

e Centers of Expertise
e HR Operations
¢ HR Business Partnerships

To support the functionality of these core service areas, there is also a function devoted to each of
the following areas:

e HR Strategy and Optimization
¢ |Institutional Strategy and Effectiveness
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APPENDIX XXX

Board of Trustees

210 Bricker Hall
190 North Oval Mall
Columbus, OH 43210-1388

Phone (614) 292-6359

Fax (614) 292-5903
trustees.osu.edu

SUMMARY OF ACTIONS TAKEN

November 17, 2021 — Research, Innovation & Strategic Partnerships Committee

Members Present:

Lewis Von Thaer Hiroyuki Fujita Carly G. Sobol
Alexander R. Fischer Reginald A. Wilkinson Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Members Present via Zoom:

Erin P. Hoeflinger

Members Absent:

N/A

PUBLIC SESSION

The Research, Innovation & Strategic Partnerships Committee of The Ohio State University Board of Trustees
convened on Wednesday, November 17, 2021, in person at Longaberger Alumni House on the Columbus campus
and virtually via Zoom. Committee Chair Lewis Von Thaer called the meeting to order at 1:32 p.m.

Items for Discussion

1.

Committee Chair's Remarks: Mr. Von Thaer kicked off the meeting by congratulating the team on the
exciting progress that had been made in the research and innovation space at the university over the past
quarter, including the groundbreaking of the Energy Advancement and Innovation Center on November
12, which drew visits by the Director of the National Science Foundation, Congresswoman Joyce Beatty
and Congressmen Troy Balderson and Mike Carey. He also commented on seeing the university’s new
30-second research and innovation PSA, which was developed by the University Marketing &
Communications team, during a recent Ohio State football game. He reiterated the importance of research
at Ohio State, not just for the additional funds that it brings into the university, but even more so for the
experiences it provides our students, the outcomes and creations it produces that make the world a better
place, and the entrepreneurship and jobs that it brings to the state of Ohio, which add to our economic
wellbeing for the long-term future of the state.

Enterprise For Research, Innovation and Knowledge Report: Dr. Grace Wang, Executive Vice President
of the Enterprise for Research, Innovation and Knowledge, shared a presentation on four strategic
priorities — 1) Enable curiosity-drive discoveries and creative expression; 2) Build large-scale,
interdisciplinary research and innovation centers; 3) Design and develop the Innovation District; and 4)
Nurture innovation and entrepreneurship. A few highlights included the induction of Professor
Wondwossen Gebreyes to the National Academic of Medicine; the awarding of Catalyst funds from the
President’s Research Excellence Program to seven interdisciplinary teams to enable their pursuit of large-
scale, high impact research that addresses emerging or existing challenges of societal importance; the
groundbreaking of the Energy Advancement and Innovation Center; and the launch of the President’s
Buckeye Accelerator program to support Ohio State student entrepreneurs.

(See Attachment XLVI for background information, page number 847)
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Items for Action

3. Approval of August 2021 Committee Meeting Minutes: No changes were requested to the August 18,
2021, meeting minutes; therefore, a formal vote was not required, and the minutes were considered
approved.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

It was moved by Mr. Von Thaer, and seconded by Dr. Wilkinson, that the committee recess into executive session
to consider business-sensitive trade secrets required to be kept confidential by federal and state statutes.

A roll call vote was taken, and the committee voted to go into executive session with the following members
present and voting: Mr. Von Thaer, Mrs. Hoeflinger, Mr. Fischer, Dr. Fujita, Dr. Wilkinson and Ms. Sobol. Mr.
Heminger was not present for this vote.

The committee entered executive session at 1:54 p.m. and the meeting adjourned at 3:00 p.m.
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APPENDIX XXXI

Board of Trustees

210 Bricker Hall
190 North Oval Mall
Columbus, OH 43210-1388

Phone (614) 292-6359

Fax (614) 292-5903
trustees.osu.edu

SUMMARY OF ACTIONS TAKEN

November 17, 2021 — Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee Meeting

Members Present:

Brent R. Porteus (joined late) Elizabeth A. Harsh Tanner R. Hunt
Jeff M.S. Kaplan Reginald A. Wilkinson Susan V. Olesik
Elizabeth P. Kessler Tom B. Mitevski Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)

Members Present via Zoom:

Abigail S. Wexner
Michael Kiggin

Members Absent:

N/A

PUBLIC SESSION

The Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee of The Ohio State University Board of Trustees convened on
Wednesday, November 17, 2021, in person at Longaberger Alumni House on the Columbus campus and virtually
via Zoom. Committee Vice Chair Jeff Kaplan called the meeting to order at 3:34 p.m.

Mr. Kaplan kicked off the meeting by thanking Susan Olesik for her service as the committee’s faculty
representative. This was the final meeting of Dr. Susan Olesik’s two-year term in this role.

Items for Discussion

1.

Provost's Report: This was Provost Melissa Gilliam’s second meeting with the Academic Affairs and
Student Life Committee, and the first meeting where she gave her official Provost’s Report. She focused
on a series of reflections from her first months at Ohio State and her early experiences, such as listening
tours at all of the university’s regional campuses, conversations with various colleges’ faculty and staff,
tours of several academic facilities, and meetings with individual faculty. She also highlighted the
appointment of new academic leaders and described her vision for enhancing the success of Ohio State’s
faculty. Finally, she concluded her report with a discussion of how she plans to promote the success of
Ohio State’s students.

(See Attachment XLVII for background information, page 877)

Senior Vice President for Student Life’s Report: Dr. Melissa Shivers shared an update on Student Life’s
strategic planning efforts and fundraising priorities, with a focus on ensuring alignment with the university’s
enterprise goals and highlighting accomplishments achieved in resource management and organizational
effectiveness.

(See Attachment XLVIII for background information, page 891)

870



November 16-18, 2021, Board of Trustees Meetings

3. Overview of the Institute for Democratic Engagement and Accountability (IDEA): Dr. Michael Neblo, a

Professor of Political Science and Director of IDEA, gave a quick overview of the institute, which aims to
further our land-grant mission by mobilizing the resources of the academy to serve the public good in our
local, state, national, and international communities. IDEA focuses on three related areas: generating and
disseminating knowledge about American political institutions, with a special emphasis on elections;
studying and fostering high-quality political dialogue and deliberation; and furthering the university’s
mission of education for citizenship.

(See Attachment XLIX for background information, page 903)

From Succeeding to Thriving: Student Health and Well-Being: Dr. Shivers kicked off this presentation and
was joined by Dr. Shawnte’ Elbert, Associate Vice President for Health and Well-being; Dr. Micky Sharma,
Director of Counseling and Consultation; Dr. Gladys Gibbs, Director of Student Health Services; Mr. Andre
Love, Director of Recreational Sports; and Mr. Blake Marble, Director of the Student Life Student Wellness
Center. Together, they shared a high-level look at the state of student health and well-being at Ohio State;
an overview of the newly created area within Student Life, including utilization rates; how this new
approach creates operational synergies and advances service delivery; and how Student Life is
strategically positioning its resources and areas of focus to best support students.

(See Attachment L for background information, page 914)

Items for Action

Approval of Minutes: No changes were requested to the August 18, 2021, meeting minutes; therefore, a
formal vote was not required, and the minutes were considered approved.

Resolution No. 2022-52, Faculty Personnel Actions:

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the faculty personnel actions as recorded
in the personnel budget records of the university since the August 19, 2021, meeting of the Board,
including the following appointments, appointments/reappointments of chairpersons, faculty professional
leaves and emeritus titles:

Appointments

Name: SUJIT BASU

Title: Professor (Jack C. Geer M.D. Professorship in Pathology)
College: Medicine

Term: September 1, 2021 through June 30, 2025

Name: MONICA F. COX

Title: Professor (Distinguished Professor of Engineering)
College: Engineering

Term: July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2026

Name: ERIC FOSLER-LUSSIER

Title: Professor (John |. Makhoul Professorship in Electrical and Computer Engineering)
College: Engineering

Term: January 1, 2022 through June 30, 2026
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Name: RUSSELL S. HASSAN
Title: Professor (Ambassador Milton A. and Roslyn Z. Wolf Chair)
College: John Glenn College of Public Affairs
Term: August 15, 2021 through August 14, 2026
Name: *TASHA LEWIS
Title: Associate Professor-Clinical (Nina Mae Mattus Professorship)
College: Education and Human Ecology
Term: January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2026
Name: *MARTA NOWAK
Title: Assistant Professor (Christos Yessios Endowed Professorship)
College: Engineering
Term: August 15, 2021 through June 30, 2026
Name: DHABALESWAR K. PANDA
Title: Professor (Distinguished Professor of Engineering)
College: Engineering
Term: July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2026
Name: ANDREW M. THOMAS
Title: Associate Professor - Clinical (Robert F. Wolfe and Edgar T. Wolfe Foundation Chief
Clinical Officer Chair in the Wexner Medical Center)
College: Medicine
Term: December 1, 2021 to June 30, 2025
Name: REBECCA RECZEK
Title: Professor (Berry Chair of New Technologies in Marketing)
College: Fisher College of Business
Term: August 16, 2021 through August 15, 2026
Name: SHANNON G. WASHBURN
Title: Professor and Chair (Sanford G. Price and Isabelle P. Barbee Chair in Teaching,
Advising and Learning)
College: Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences
Term: October 1, 2021 through June 30, 2026
Name: BRUCE WEINBERG
Title: Professor (Eric Byron Fix-Monda Endowed Professorship)
College: Arts and Sciences
Term: August 15, 2021 through August 14, 2026
Name: JENNIFER A. WOYACH
Title: Professor (D. Warren Brown Designated Chair in Leukemia Research)
College: Medicine
Term: November 1, 2021 through June 30, 2025
Name: HSIN-JUNG JOYCE WU
Title: Professor (Ronald L. Whisler MD Chair in Rheumatology and Immunology)
College: Medicine
Term: October 1, 2021 through June 30, 2025
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Name:
Title:

College:

Term:

DONGBIN XIU

Professor (Ohio Eminent Scholar in Scientific Computation)
Arts and Sciences

August 15, 2021 through August 14, 2026

Reappointments

Name:
Title:

College:

Term:

Name:
Title:

College:

Term:

Name:
Title:

College:

Term:

Name:
Title:

College:

Term:

Name:
Title:

College:

Term:

Name:
Title:

College:

Term:

Name:
Title:

College:

Term:

TODD N. GANNON

Professor (Robert S. Livesey Professorship in Architecture)
Engineering

June 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

CREOLA JOHNSON

Professor (Presidents Club Designated Professorship in Law)
Moritz College of Law

October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2026

MATTHEW MAYHEW

Professor (William Ray and Marie Adamson Flesher Professorship in
Educational Administration)

Education and Human Ecology

August 15, 2021 through August 14, 2026

JAMI J. SHAH

Professor (Honda Designated Professorship in Engineering Design for
Manufacturing)

Engineering

August 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

KUI XIE

Professor (Ted and Lois Cyphert Distinguished Professorship in Teacher
Education)

Education and Human Ecology

August 15, 2021 through August 14, 2024

DONGBIN XIU

Professor (Ohio Eminent Scholar in Scientific Computation)
Arts and Sciences

August 15, 2021 through August 14, 2026

XIAODONG ZHANG

Professor (Robert M. Critchfield Professorship in Engineering)
Engineering

June 1, 2021 through June 30, 2026

(See Appendix XXXVI for background information, page 1134)

873



November 16-18, 2021, Board of Trustees Meetings

7. Resolution No: 2022-53, Approval to Change the Name of the Master of Arts in Slavic and East European
Studies:

TO THE MASTER OF ARTS IN SLAVIC, EAST EUROPEAN AND EURASIAN STUDIES

Synopsis: Approval to change the name of the Master of Arts in Slavic and East European Studies to the
Master of Arts in Slavic, East European and Eurasian Studies is proposed.

WHEREAS on May 20, 2021, the Board of Trustees approved a name change for the Center for Slavic
and East European Studies to the Center for Slavic, East European and Eurasian Studies, located within
the Office of International Affairs; and

WHEREAS the Center requests aligning the name of its Master of Arts in Slavic and East European
Studies with the new name of its Center, to become the Master of Arts in Slavic, East European and

Eurasian Studies; and

WHEREAS this is an interdisciplinary graduate program administered by the Center for the Graduate
School; and

WHEREAS the name change will more accurately reflect already existing course offerings and the needs
of graduating students who want to show their diverse regional expertise; and

WHEREAS the proposal has the support of the Office of International Affairs and the Center’'s Advisory
Council; and

WHEREAS the proposal was reviewed and approved by the Graduate School and then the Council on
Academic Affairs at its meeting on July 28, 2021, and was presented for discussion with the Faculty
Council on September 2, 2021; and

WHEREAS the University Senate approved this proposal on September 16, 2021:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the proposal to rename the Master of

Arts in Slavic and East European Studies to the Master of Arts in Slavic, East European and Eurasian
Studies.
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8. Resolution No: 2022-54, Approval to Establish a Master of Athletic Training Degree Program:

IN THE SCHOOL OF HEALTH AND REHABILITATION SCIENCES, COLLEGE OF MEDICINE

Synopsis: Approval to establish a Master of Athletic Training degree program in the School of Health and
Rehabilitation in the College of Medicine is proposed.

WHEREAS based on new accreditation expectations the current Bachelor of Science in Athletic Training
program needs to be replaced with a Master of Athletic Training program; and

WHEREAS this entry-level professional athletic training program is designed for students who have
earned a bachelor's degree and who are seeking enroliment in a graduate professional health program
that includes athletic training; and

WHEREAS the 64-hour program will have 25 students per cohort enrolled full-time, and will extend over
six semesters across two academic years; and it will include in-person coursework, laboratory activities,

supervised clinical practice experiences, and a non-thesis capstone project; and

WHEREAS a staged transition plan has been developed for the movement from one degree level program
to another; and

WHEREAS the proposal has the support of the School of Health and Rehabilitation Sciences and the
College of Medicine; and

WHEREAS the proposal was reviewed and approved by the Graduate School, and then the Council on
Academic Affairs at its meeting on September 15, 2021, and was presented for discussion with the Faculty
Council on October 7, 2021; and

WHEREAS the University Senate approved this proposal on October 28, 2021:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the proposal to establish a Master of
Athletic Training degree program in the School of Health and Rehabilitation in the College of Medicine.
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9. Resolution No: 2022-55, Honorary Degrees:

Synopsis: Approval of the honorary degrees listed below is proposed.

WHEREAS pursuant to paragraph (A)(3) of rule 3335-1-03 of the Administrative Code, the President,
after consultation with the Steering Committee of the University Senate, recommends to the Board of
Trustees the awarding of the honorary degrees as listed below:

Christy K. Mack Honorary Doctor of Humane Letters
John J. Mack Honorary Doctor of Humane Letters

WHEREAS the Committee on Honorary Degrees of the University Senate, pursuant to rule 3335-5-48.8
of the Administrative Code, have approved for recommendation to the Board of Trustees the awarding of
the honorary degrees as listed below:

Freeman Hrabowski Il Honorary Doctor of Education
Bryan Stevenson Honorary Doctor of Public Service
NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the awarding of the above honorary
degrees.

(See Appendix XXXVII for background information, page 1137)

Action: Upon the motion of Mr. Porteus, seconded by Dr. Wilkinson, the committee adopted the foregoing
resolutions by unanimous voice vote with the following members present and voting: Mr. Porteus, Mr. Kaplan,
Mrs. Wexner, Ms. Kessler, Mrs. Harsh, Dr. Wilkinson, Mr. Kiggin, Mr. Mitevski, Mr. Hunt, Dr. Olesik and Mr.
Heminger.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

It was moved by Mr. Kaplan, and seconded by Dr. Wilkinson, that the committee recess into executive session to
discuss business-sensitive trade secrets required to be kept confidential by federal and state statutes, to consult
with legal counsel regarding pending or imminent litigation, and to discuss personnel matters involving the
appointment, employment and compensation of public officials, which are required to be kept confidential under
Ohio law.

A roll call vote was taken, and the committee voted to go into executive session with the following members
present and voting: Mr. Porteus, Mr. Kaplan, Mrs. Wexner, Ms. Kessler, Mrs. Harsh, Dr. Wilkinson, Mr. Mitevski,
Mr. Hunt, Dr. Olesik and Mr. Heminger. Mr. Kiggin was not present for this vote.

The committee entered executive session at 4:42 p.m. and the meeting adjourned at 5:15 p.m.
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OFFICE OF STUDENT LIFE: SUPPORTING
OHIO STATE’S ENTERPRISE STRATEGIC GOALS

The Ohio State University’s rich legacy was born in a single building that served multiple purposes: classroom,
laboratory, living space. Over the years, these complementary uses have emerged as hallmarks of the iconic
Ohio State education generations of students have come to expect: Learning. Innovation. Residential experience.

At the same time, as Ohio’s flagship and land-grant institution, we continue to serve as the leading center of
education and knowledge creation, and the way we deliver the Ohio State experience continues to evolve in
ways that make our university ever-more accessible.

Accordingly, the Office of Student Life has developed a strong set of strategic focus areas and defined
fundraising priorities that directly support President Kristina Johnson’s vision of becoming the best land-grant
institution in the country and align with Ohio State’s Enterprise Goals for FY22.

Below is a visual representation of this comprehensive alignment:

President Johnson’s Enterprise Strategic Goal Areas

Academic Knowledge Talent and Resource

q Service
Excellence Enterprise Culture Management

Student Life Strategic Plan Goals

Promote a culture of holistic well-being and safety of

students and staff. ® ©

Foster opportunities for community and cultivate an

environment of belonging, equity and inclusion for students, . . . . .
staff and the campus community.

Invest in the intellectual, personal and professional growth

and development of students and staff. ° ° °

Student Life Fundraising Focus Areas

Foster Leadership . . . °
Diversity, Equity and Inclusion ° ° ° . .
High Impact Practices and Co-Curricular Impact . . . .
Wellness Programming and Services ° ° . .
Mentoring . . .

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
OFFICE OF STUDENT LIFE
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STRATEGIC GOAL #1 ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE

Recruit and retain outstanding faculty and staff who educate and graduate
students well-equipped to compete in an open, global and inclusive society.

Second-year Transformational Experience Commitment and Action Planning Team (CAPT)

Program (STEP,
9 ¢ ) The Commitment and Action Planning Team (CAPT)

The Second-year Transformational Experience reaffirms our culture commitments and illuminates
Program (STEP) continues to show enhanced results our dedication to diversity, equity, inclusion (DEI) and
in student persistence, graduation rates and self- racial justice. The CAPT team takes the following
reported learning outcomes. Student Life continues action steps to advance this work:
to advance this program and is in the process of ) /
analyzing unique needs and possibilities of an » Hosts ongoing lunch and learn series for staff
initiative designed for third-year students. members to share expertise and presentations.
. Students who participate in STEP persist at the + Offers affinity groups to provide spaces for
university at a higher rate than their peers dialogue and connection for Student Life staff
(98.7% compared to 94.3%). with marginalized identities to interact, network
and develop a sense of community and belonging
« Participants in the 2019-20 STEP cohort achieved on campus.
79.4% four-year graduation rates compared to
68.8% of students not in STEP. - Is developing a climate survey to assess staff
members’ experiences of diversity, equity and
« 5% of our STEP participants are students inclusive and overall culture within Student Life.

on regional campuses.

Culture Commitments

Student Life has developed an intentional and
sustained culture-strengthening effort that focuses on
appreciation, support, connection and care. Examples
of how we are advancing these elements include:

« Weekly "High Five Friday" emails where leadership
and team members express appreciation of the
work being done across the organization.

» Regular “All-Team” meetings that promote
connection and community among staff.

« Bi-weekly "Slice of Student Life" email messages
that consistently share information and share
institutional efforts.

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
OFFICE OF STUDENT LIFE
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STRATEGIC GOAL #1 ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE cont.

Advancing Student Retention through the Belonging and Inclusion Efforts

Residential Experience / .
It has never been more critical to create experiences

Research consistently shows living on campus is the and social engagement opportunities for all students
single most important college experience in terms and staff. Student Life is actively looking to build

of contributing to learning and student success structures that foster and lead to a sense of belonging.
outcomes. This remains true today at Ohio State; on The organization is currently exploring and working with
nearly all campuses, students who live in residence students to develop an LGBTQ+ Center. Additionally,
halls their first year on campus have higher retention work is underway to construct a National Pan-Hellenic
rates than their peers who live off-campus. As part Council (NPHC) Plaza that honors the Divine Nine, the
of our strategic realignment, Student Life is also nine historically Black Greek Letter Organizations.

redefining the “Residential Experience” as not strictly s

about what happens in the residence halls. Rather, + LGBTQ* students reported a significantly lower
it is about the comprehensive experience that our sense’ of belonglng and acceptance on Ohio
students are having as they “live their lives” as State.s campus In 2018 compared to peers
community members at Ohio State. (Multi-Institutional Study of Leadership, 2018).

« 61% of African American students, 53% of Asian
New First-Year Student Retention from 2019 to 2020 students and 34% of multi-ethnic or multi-racial
students reported that they encountered
discrimination while attending Ohio State

Campus Resea el el (Multi-Institutional Study of Leadership, 2018).
Columbus 94.3% 87.7%
Mansfield 78.7% 66.1%
Newark 77.0% 69.6%
CFAES - Wooster 74.6% 76.9%

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
OFFICE OF STUDENT LIFE
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STRATEGIC GOAL #2 KNOWLEDGE ENTERPRISE EXCELLENCE

Through our research, creative expression and scholarship, generate innovative
ideas and discoveries to better society and serve those we influence in the communities
in which they live.

Leadership and Service Area of Focus Focus on High Impact Practices
As part of the strategic realignment of the Office High-impact practices (HIPs) are shown to improve
of Student Life, a new Leadership and Service retention and graduation rates for students nationally,
area of focus is in development. This area of focus and Student Life is committed to increasing access
will oversee the various leadership and service to HIPs. Student Life and the Office of Student
opportunities offered by the Office of Student Life, Academic Success have started an advisory
including: committee on HIPs to track, promote and encourage
) these offerings across campus. Additionally, the
+ Buckeye Leadership Fellows restructuring of career resources and support within
. Buck-I-SERV Student Life will lead to better support for students

seeking HIPs experiences.
« Keith B. Key Buckeye Social
Entrepreneurship Program

« Leadership Development
» OSU Votes

- Pay It Forward

« Student Philanthropy

Being involved in leadership and service is associated
with a higher sense of belonging on campus and
greater satisfaction at the university.

« Students involved in leadership positions were
1.7 times more likely to have received a job offer at
the time of graduation (Graduation Survey, 2020)

« Students who are engaged in co-curricular
activities are 2.1 times more likely to agree that
Ohio State has contributed to their personal
growth and 2.6 times more likely to agree that
they have developed as a leader during their time
at Ohio State compared to peers who are not
engaged (Student Life Survey, 2021)

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
OFFICE OF STUDENT LIFE
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STRATEGIC GOAL #3 TALENT AND CULTURE

Leverage our land-grant purpose and rich traditions to maximize individual
potential, benefit the whole society, cultivate an inclusive culture and become
a premier employer of choice.

Most Promising Places to Work in Student Affairs Commitment to Staff Professional Development
For seven years in a row, the Office of Student Life Student Life is currently in the process of developing
has been named one of the Most Promising Places a philosophy of and template for professional

to Work in Student Affairs by ACPA-College Student development plans. Each staff member will have
Educators International and Diverse: Issues in Higher the opportunity to craft a professional development
Education. Metrics that lead to this distinction include:  plan that suits their professional and personal goals,
with support for staff learning, cross-training and
shadowing with other units within Student Life, and
leadership development.

« Diversity of staff within Office of Student Life

« Policies, practices and commitment to diversity,
equity and inclusion

« Recruitment, compensation, retention and
professional development support for staff

« Overall culture of Office of Student Life

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
OFFICE OF STUDENT LIFE
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STRATEGIC GOAL #4 RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Ensure excellence in our resource management, operations, revenue generation,
and advancement for fueling our vision and mission.

Advancing Student Life’s Strategic Realignment

Given the unprecedented pace of change on today's
college campuses, it is more important than ever that
Ohio State’s Student Life organization be strategically
positioned as innovative, forward-thinking, flexible
and proactively meeting the needs of our always-
changing student body and those of our staff
members. Student Life’s recent restructuring will
continue to place emphasis on excellence,

resource stewardship and ensuring that staffing
models support strategy.

ot Engagement angy sllpp
ory

Senior Vice President
for Student Life

ce
4"'ninistrative Excelle”™

Strategic Departmental Integration

In effort to create efficiencies and effectiveness, over
the past year Student Life has integrated a series of
groups of departments. All career service operations
have been consolidated into one team that will continue
offering umbrella career coaching and development
support, as well as serve as the central administrative
support for employers, university-wide programming
and administration of Ohio State’s central student
career search platform. All internal Student Life facilities
operations and support have also been streamlined
into one reporting line to achieve higher levels of
coordination, avoid duplication of efforts and advance
customer service metrics.

Audit of Programs and Services

As part of the strategic planning process, each
Student Life unit will conduct a comprehensive audit
of their programming and services to ensure offerings
are meeting and projecting the needs of students,
sunsetting those that are no longer relevant, and
identifying potential efficiencies or collaborations with
other units in order to better manage our human and
financial resources. This is another example of staffing
to support strategy.

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
OFFICE OF STUDENT LIFE
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STRATEGIC GOAL #4 RESOURCE MANAGEMENT cont.

Recent Updates
« Transitioned HR, payroll, wireless network « Continued the 10-year cost reduction program
management and 40 Building and Mechanical due to the following fund redirections:

Services employees to central shared services - $100 million was redirected to other

» Consolidation of 10 departments into 3 university priorities

- $9.6 million annually in additional funds

« Student Life pandemic expense reduction goal being redirected

of $26 million was exceeded by $15 million
. Office annual fundraising goal is $5.2 million as
established by University Advancement

NUMBER OF STUDENTS COMPARED TO NUMBER OF FULL-TIME
STUDENT AFFAIRS STAFF (Largest Campus Comparison)

191

200

159
160

120

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
OFFICE OF STUDENT LIFE
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STRATEGIC GOAL #5 SERVICE

Promote Ohio State as an institution that is accessible and affordable,
diverse and inclusive, innovative and caring, and one that continuously

seeks ways to serve our communities.

Commission on Mental Health and Well-being

To support the changing mental health and well-being
needs of the Buckeye community, the university’s
Commission on Mental Health and Well-being

has put forth a series of short, mid- and long-term
recommendations. These recommendations include
implementing an evidence-based quality improvement
approach to enhancing student mental health and well-
being, as well as conducting intentional outreach and
engagement with BIPOC/marginalized communities,
removing barriers to accessing support. The commission
report, recommendations and action strategies are
under review, with a goal of implementation launch
during the autumn 2021 semester.

- In spring 2021, one-third of Ohio State students
reported that they had previously been diagnosed
with anxiety and 24% reported being previously
diagnosed with depression (2021 National College
Health Assessment).

Basic Needs Resource Center

Ohio State has many university programs and community
partnerships established to help meet the basic needs of
students, often including food and affordable housing, as
well as other resources such as transportation, childcare
and healthcare. However, given the size of Ohio State
and the decentralized nature of those programs and
partnerships, barriers exist for students when accessing
timely, seamless, holistic basic needs support. To fill this
gap, the Office of Student Life will develop a Basic Needs
Resource Center. The center will provide resources and
support, like clothing and food, individual coaching and
community space. It will be grounded in equity, health,
belonging, persistence and holistic well-being.

+ 95.1% of students who received emergency
grants from the Student Advocacy Center either
graduated from or are still enrolled at Ohio State.

» 62% of Ohio State students report that they
would not be able to come up with $400 in case
of an emergency (Study on Collegiate Financial
Wellness, 2020)

+ 15% of students report experiencing very low
food security (Healthy Minds Study, 2020)

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
OFFICE OF STUDENT LIFE
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APPENDIX XXXII

Board of Trustees

210 Bricker Hall
190 North Oval Mall
Columbus, OH 43210-1388

Phone (614) 292-6359

Fax (614) 292-5903
trustees.osu.edu

SUMMARY OF ACTIONS TAKEN

November 18, 2021 — Master Planning & Facilities Committee Meeting

Members Present:

Alexander R. Fischer Elizabeth A. Harsh Robert H. Schottenstein
Brent R. Porteus Reginald A. Wilkinson Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)
Alan A. Stockmeister Tanner R. Hunt

Members Present via Zoom:

James D. Klingbeil

Members Absent:

N/A

PUBLIC SESSION

The Master Planning & Facilities Committee of The Ohio State University Board of Trustees convened on
Thursday, November 18, 2021, in person and over Zoom at the Longaberger Alumni House on the Columbus
campus. Committee Chair Alex Fischer called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m.

Items for Discussion

1.

Physical Environment Scorecard and Safety Metrics Deep Dive: The Physical Environment Scorecard
shared FY21 data through September 2021. Seven metrics were coded red and four of those were red
the previous meeting, in August, as well — All Parking Garage Peak Time Occupancy %, WMC Parking
Garage Peak Time Occupancy %, Sum of Daily Temporary Parking Space Closures and WOSU Digital
Audience. The % Total Projects Completed on Time metrics moved from being coded red in August to
green at this meeting. The Facility Condition Index % continues to be yellow.

In addition to the standard scorecard report, Jay Kasey, Senior Vice President of Administration &
Planning, also presented a deeper dive on each of the safety metrics included in the scorecard, as well
as a summary of the fall semester safety initiatives. The overall trend for off-campus crimes and traffic
accidents (with and without injury) is favorable to pre-COVID levels. Major on-campus crimes are up due
to a city-wide trend of thefts from motor vehicles, specifically catalytic converters, and thefts of motor
vehicles. Other on-campus crimes are down from previous years. The average response time to in-
progress calls for service is above the target due to construction around Blankenship Hall and staffing
vacancies. Several safety resources were implemented during fall semester, including adding police and
security personnel, mobile lighting, and fixed and mobile cameras in the University District. The Lyft Ride
Smart service hours and boundaries were expanded, more than doubling the number of unique riders and
the number of total rides from the start of the semester. Lastly, portable personal safety devices were
made available to students free of charge. These and other safety measures had a positive impact on the
number of crime incidents.

(See Attachment LI for background information, page 928)
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2.

Sustainability Goals Update and Ohio State Energy Partners Scorecard: The only metric coded as red on
this scorecard is the goal to Reduce Carbon Footprint of University Fleet Per Thousand Miles Traveled
by 25% by 2025. Mr. Kasey explained that the reason for this was due to COVID-19 precautions and the
requirement to physically distance passengers on buses. With those restrictions in place, only 18
passengers were allowed on a 60-passenger bus to ensure appropriate spacing. In order to keep up with
demand, particularly from the Wexner Medical Center parking lots, more buses had to be put into service
than ever before.

(See Attachment LII for background information, page 944)

Major Project Updates: Mark Conselyea, Vice President for Facilities Operations and Development,
shared this standard report that includes an on-time and on-budget indicator for all projects over $20
million. Four projects are being watched closely — the Combined Heat & Power Plan and District Heating
& Cooling Loop for budget and schedule; the Wexner Medical Center Outpatient Care West Campus and
the Interdisciplinary Research Facility for schedule; and the Lacrosse Stadium and Wexner Medical
Center Inpatient Hospital for budget.

(See Attachment LIl for background information, page 948)

Facilities Operations and Development Annual Report: Mr. Conselyea also shared the FOD Annual report,
which focused on projects completed and initiated during FY21. Of the Board-approved projects that were
completed, two were over budget and overdue (Service Building Annex Renovation and the Postle Partial
Replacement) and one was overdue (Wooster — New Lab Building). The majority of the projects, however,
were on time and on budget.

(See Attachment LIV for background information, page 965)

Items for Action

Approval of Minutes: No changes were requested to the August 19, 2021, meeting minutes; therefore, a
formal vote was not required, and the minutes were considered approved.

Resolution No. 2022-56, Approval to Increase Professional Services and Enter Into/Increase
Construction Contracts

APPROVAL TO INCREASE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
Morrill Tower — Fire Alarm Replacement
North Residential - HVAC Modifications Phase 1

APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
WMC Loading Dock Expansion and Renovation

Synopsis: Authorization to enter into/increase professional services and construction contracts, as detailed in
the attached materials, is proposed.

WHEREAS in accordance with the attached materials, the University desires to increase professional services
and construction contracts for the following projects; and
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Prof. Serv. Construction Total
Approval Approval Requested
Requested Requested
Morrill Tower — Fire Alarm $1.0M $4.6M $5.6M  Auxiliary Funds
Replacement
North Residential - HVAC $0.5M $4.6M $5.1M  University Debt

Modifications Phase 1

WHEREAS in accordance with the attached materials, the University desires to enter into construction contracts
for the following project; and

Construction Approval Total
Requested Requested

WMC Loading Dock Expansion and $15.1M $15.1M  Auxiliary Funds
Renovation

WHEREAS the Master Planning and Facilities Committee has reviewed the projects listed above for alignment
with all applicable campus plans and guidelines; and

WHEREAS the Audit, Finance and Investment Committee has reviewed the projects listed above for alignment
with the Capital Investment Plan and other applicable financial plans:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the President and/or Senior Vice President
for Business and Finance be authorized to enter into/increase professional services and construction contracts
for the projects listed above in accordance with established University and State of Ohio procedures, with all
actions to be reported to the Board at the appropriate time.

(See Appendix XXXVIII for background information, page 1142)

Action: Upon the motion of Mr. Fischer, seconded by Mr. Porteus, the committee adopted the motion by
unanimous voice vote with the following members present and voting: Mr. Fischer, Mr. Klingbeil, Mr. Porteus, Mr.
Stockmeister, Mrs. Harsh, Dr. Wilkinson, Mr. Hunt, Mr. Schottenstein and Mr. Heminger

EXECUTIVE SESSION

It was moved by Mr. Fischer, and seconded by Dr. Wilkinson, that the committee recess into executive session to
discuss the purchase of property, to consider business-sensitive trade secrets required to be kept confidential by
federal and state statutes, and to consult with legal counsel regarding pending or imminent litigation.

A roll call vote was taken, and the committee voted to go into executive session, with the following members
present and voting: Mr. Fischer, Mr. Klingbeil, Mr. Porteus, Mr. Stockmeister, Mrs. Harsh, Dr. Wilkinson, Mr. Hunt,
Mr. Schottenstein and Mr. Heminger. The committee entered executive session at 8:40 a.m.

The meeting adjourned at 9:47 a.m.
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21 ATTACHMENT LII
OHIO STATE SUSTAINABILITY GOALS

STRATEGIC VISION

Ohio State is recognized as a world leader in developing durable solutions to the pressing challenges of sustainability
and in evolving a culture of sustainability through collaborative teaching, pioneering research, comprehensive outreach,

and innovative operations, practices and policies.

= L] 2

TEACHING AND RESEARCH AND OUTREACH AND
LEARNING INNOVATION ENGAGEMENT

151 642 24

Undergraduate sustainability Faculty and researchers Central Ohio leaders who
majors, minors, certificates and conducting sustainability welcomed United Kingdom
specializations scholarship diplomats to Ohio State

for United Nations climate

5,000+ 1 OF 14 discussions

Undergraduate students Global universities to launch

enrollegd in core sustainability EMERGE, a new Biology 1 ,000+

majors Integration Institute to study Participants in inaugural
ecosystem and climate Midwest Climate Summit,

5 interaction co-founded by Ohio State

Ohio State students winning 8 000+ 6
9

honors in the Midwest Climate

Summit “Climate Stories” Arctic animals tracked within Zero-waste strategies in
competition OhiojStateidevalgped research new MOU with Solid Waste
ClEiEIEER Authority of Central Ohio

»>> )
COMPREHENSIVE, UNIVERSITY-WIDE GOAL STATEMENTS

Deliver a sustainability curriculum throughout the university

Teach sustainability in innovative ways in and out of the classroom
Reward sustainability scholarship and engagement

Encourage new sustainability knowledge and solutions

Foster sustainability culture on and off campus

Encourage local and global sustainability partnerships

No o s wp S

Implement world-leading, university-wide goals to reduce resource consumption

Achieve carbon neutrality by 2050 per Presidents’ Climate Leadership Commitment
Increase the energy efficiency of the university by 25% per building sq. ft. by 2025

Reduce potable water consumption by 10% per capita every 5 years — reset every 5 years
Increase Ecosystem Services Index score to 85% by 2025

Reduce carbon footprint of university fleet per thousand miles traveled by 25% by 2025
Achieve Zero Waste by 2025 by diverting 90% of waste away from landfills

Increase production and purchase of locally and sustainably sourced food to 40% by 2025

Te 0 a0 T o

Develop university-wide standards for targeted environmentally preferred products and fully
implement preferable products and services by 2025

944

&

RESOURCE
STEWARDSHIP

o,
25%
University electricity that is
carbon neutral

98%
Columbus Campus buildings

with smart utility meters installed
by Ohio State Energy Partners

126M™m

Gallons of water saved due to
COVID-19 impacts

11TH

Year to receive Tree Campus
USA certification

12%

University fleet running on
CNG or electric

4,500+

Fewer tons of materials
generated compared to
pre-pandemic levels
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APPENDIX XXXIII

Board of Trustees

210 Bricker Hall
190 North Oval Mall
Columbus, OH 43210-1388

Phone (614) 292-6359

Fax (614) 292-5903
trustees.osu.edu

SUMMARY OF ACTIONS TAKEN

November 18, 2021 — Audit, Finance & Investment Committee Meeting

Voting Members Present:

John W. Zeiger Jeff M.S. Kaplan Kent M. Stahl
Erin P. Hoeflinger Tom B. Mitevski Gary R. Heminger (ex officio)
Lewis Von Thaer Carly G. Sobol (joined late)

Member Present via Zoom:

Michael Kiggin
James D. Klingbeil
Amy Chronis

Members Absent:

N/A

PUBLIC SESSION

The Audit, Finance & Investment Committee of The Ohio State University Board of Trustees convened on
Thursday, November 18, 2021, in person in the Longaberger Alumni House on the Columbus campus and virtually
over Zoom. Committee Chair John Zeiger called the meeting to order at 9:59 a.m.

Items for Discussion

1.

University Financial Scorecards: CFO Michael Papadakis and Deputy CFO Kristine Devine shared
financial scorecards through September 2021 for the consolidated entity, university-only and Wexner
Medical Center. On the consolidated entity scorecard, the Change in Net Financial Assets was coded as
red (far below goal) and the 3-Year LTIP Average Return was coded as yellow (below goal). On the
medical center scorecard, Patient Admissions, Patients in Inpatient Beds, Patient Discharges, ED Visits,
Adjusted Admissions and Expense/Adjusted Admit were all coded red. Patient Discharges and Total
Surgeries had been coded yellow at the committee’s August meeting, but both areas improved to green
on this scorecard.

(See Attachment LV for background information, page 990)

Special Fee for the College of Engineering: Mr. Papadakis and Ms. Devine presented the university
strategy around increasing the number of in-demand STEM graduates with a proposed special fee for the
College of Engineering. The current fee is $1,180 for incoming students. The proposal is to increase that
special fee for incoming students to $4,000, which is a $2,820 increase.

(See Attachment LVI for background information, page 993)
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3.

Audit Update: Mr. Papadakis, Ms. Devine and Mark Larmore, CFO of the Wexner Medical Center,
presented the university’s FY21 financial results and draft audited consolidated financial statements,
which are required to be submitted to the Auditor of State. Then, Christa Dewire from PwC shared an
update on the FY21 external audit results. This was the final meeting with PwC as our external auditor.

(See Attachment LVII for background information, page 998)

Advancement Update: Michael Eicher, Senior Vice President for Advancement, shared the Advancement
scorecard, on which the Gifts & Pledges and Cash metrics are coded as yellow (93% and 90.7%,
respectively) and trending upward. All metrics related to Total Donors are coded green, which is an
improvement over what was presented at the committee’s August meeting. On overall progress for the
Time and Change Campaign, Capital fundraising progress is coded as red — 43% of goal, 90% of target.
During his presentation, Mr. Eicher also acknowledged the Naming of Jane E. Heminger Hall, which was
brought forward for approval at this meeting with the other items for action. This naming was made
possible by a donation from Board Chair Gary Heminger and his wife, Jane, to the College of Nursing.
Chairman Heminger was not present for this discussion.

(See Attachment LVIII for background information, page 1047)

Items for Action

5.

6.

Approval of Minutes: No changes were requested to the August 19, 2021, meeting minutes; therefore, a
formal vote was not required, and the minutes were considered approved.

Resolution No. 2022-57, Approval of Special Fee for the College of Engineering

Synopsis: Approval of a special fee for undergraduate engineering students at all campuses of The Ohio
State University for the Fiscal Year 2023, is proposed.

WHEREAS the Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University supports the university's continued
implementation of the Academic Plan and its initiatives to meet the needs of Ohio State students; and

WHEREAS new first-year undergraduate engineering students enrolled at all campuses in 2022-23 will
be part of a new special fee cohort; and

WHEREAS transfer engineering students that were new first-year undergraduate students for Autumn
2022 at another college or university will be part of a new special fee cohort; and

WHEREAS undergraduate engineering students enrolled at all campuses prior to 2022-23 will continue
to pay the existing program fee consistent with the Tuition Guarantee cohort they are part of; and

WHEREAS Ohio Revised Code 3345.11 establishes that institutions may charge a special fee, and
section 381.160 (A)(1)(C) of Sub. H.B. 110 of the 134th General Assembly establishes that institutions
may seek increases for all other special fees, including the creation of new special fees, and are subject
to the approval of the Chancellor of Higher Education:

NOW THEREFORE
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BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the recommendation of the
administration and hereby approves the undergraduate engineering special fee for the 2022-23 academic
year for all campuses, effective Autumn semester 2022, as outlined in the attached document.

(See Appendix XXXIX for background information, page 1145)

7. Resolution No 2022-58, Approval to Submit Audited Consolidated Financial Statements (DRAFT) to the
Auditor of State

Synopsis: Approval to submit the draft audited consolidated financial statements to the Auditor of State,
is proposed.

WHEREAS The Ohio State University annually seeks an independent audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a matter of strong financial oversight; and

WHEREAS the Auditor of State is required under Ohio law to audit each public office; and

WHEREAS the university is a public office and is required under Ohio law to file a financial report with
the Auditor of State for each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS the university operates on a fiscal year ending June 30 of each year; and

WHEREAS the university has produced consolidated financial statements for the 2020 and 2021 fiscal
years, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and
WHEREAS the university engages an outside auditing firm, currently PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC, to
audit its consolidated financial statements; and

WHEREAS the university management and PricewaterhouseCoopers have produced a final draft of the
audited consolidated financial statements for the 2020 and 2021 fiscal years; and

WHEREAS the Auditor of State may accept the audited consolidated financial statements in lieu of the
audit required by Ohio law; and

WHEREAS the audited consolidated financial statements will not be final until approved by the Auditor
of State:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby accepts the draft audited consolidated financial
statements for the 2020 and 2021 fiscal years; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the submission of these

consolidated financial statements to the Auditor of State for review and approval.

(See Appendix XL for background information, page 1148)
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8. Resolution No. 2022-59, Approval of FY21 Progress Report on Ohio Task Force on Affordability and
Efficiency in Higher Education Recommendations

Synopsis: Approval of The Ohio State University’s FY21 progress report on the Ohio Task Force on
Affordability and Efficiency recommendations, which will be submitted to the Chancellor of Higher
Education, is proposed.

WHEREAS Governor John R. Kasich established the Ohio Task Force on Affordability and Efficiency in
Higher Education in 2015 to recommend solutions for state colleges and universities to enhance
affordability and efficiency; and

WHEREAS Ohio State supported the goals and work of this task force; and

WHEREAS the task force delivered its recommendations in the report “Action Steps to Reduce College
Costs” on October 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS House Bill 49 (Section 381.550) requires the Board of Trustees of each state college and
university to approve an efficiency report based on the task force recommendations each fiscal year and

submit it to the Chancellor of Higher Education; and

WHEREAS consultations have taken place within the university to review and apply the
recommendations to Ohio State’s circumstances; and

WHEREAS Ohio State’s strategic plan, which includes a pillar focused on operational excellence and
resource stewardship, is in strong alignment with task force recommendations:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the university’s FY21 progress report in
response to the task force recommendations, as detailed in the attached document; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the attached document be delivered to the Chancellor of the Ohio
Department of Higher Education.

(See Appendix XLI for background information, page 1255)

9. Resolution No. 2022-60, Authorization to Approve Golf Course Membership Dues and Fees

Synopsis: Approval of golf course membership dues and fees for calendar year 2022 at the
recommended levels is proposed.

WHEREAS The Ohio State University Department of Athletics has a long history of self-sustainability in
supporting 36 world-class athletics programs and providing needed revenues back to the university for

scholarships and academic programs; and

WHEREAS each year the Athletic Council reviews projections for the coming year’s budget and
recommends golf course membership dues and fees; and
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10.

11.

WHEREAS the Athletic Council has approved golf course membership dues and fees as shown on the
attached tables; and

WHEREAS the Athletic Council’'s recommendations have been reviewed and are recommended by the
appropriate University administration:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the recommended golf course
membership dues and fees for calendar year 2022.

(See Appendix XLII for background information, page 1276)

Resolution No. 2022-61, Approval of the University Foundation Report

Synopsis: Approval of the University Foundation Report as of September 30, 2021, is proposed.
WHEREAS monies are solicited and received on behalf of the university from alumni, industry and
various individuals in support of research, instructional activities and service; and

WHEREAS such gifts are received through The Ohio State University Foundation; and

WHEREAS this report includes: (i) the establishment of one (1) endowed chair: The Robert F. Wolfe
and Edgar T. Wolfe Foundation Chief Clinical Officer Chair in the Wexner Medical Center; two (2)
endowed professorships: the Seth Andre Myers Professorship in Global Military History, and the
College of Arts and Sciences Alumni Professorship; one (1) endowed fellowship: the Richard R.
Duncan Fellowship; and twenty-six (26) additional named endowed funds; and (ii) the revision of eleven
(11) named endowed funds:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves The Ohio State University Foundation
Report as of September 30, 2021.

(See Appendix XLIII for background information, page 1278)

Resolution No. 2022- 62, Naming of the Jeffrey Schottenstein Program for Resilience in Students:

AT THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF MEDICINE

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the Program for Resilience at The Ohio State University College of
Medicine, is proposed.

WHEREAS the College of Medicine, one of the largest and most diverse academic medical centers in

the country, combines innovative medical education with cutting-edge research and science-based
patient care to train physicians and health care professionals; and
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12.

WHEREAS the Program for Resilience, facilitated through the Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral
Health, will fight against stigma and provide education to our students to reduce the shame that comes
with mental illness, and normalize these challenges that affect students with a focus on promotion of
positive health and on prevention so that disease is averted or does not worsen; and

WHEREAS this program will offer services that cultivate resilience, conduct advanced research on
building resilience skills, and train a new generation of mental health advocates and providers on this
new model of care; and

WHEREAS Jean and Jay Schottenstein have provided significant contributions to The Ohio State
University College of Medicine; and

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming of
University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of Jean and Jay Schottenstein’s philanthropic support,
the Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of the Ohio

Administrative Code, that the Program for Resilience be named The Jeffrey Schottenstein Program for
Resilience in Students.

Resolution No. 2022-63, Naming of Jane E. Heminger Hall

IN THE COLLEGE OF NURSING

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the Jane E. Heminger Hall located at 1577 Neil Avenue is
proposed.

WHEREAS the College of Nursing’s vision is to be the world’s leader in thinking and achieving the
impossible in order to transform health and improve lives; and

WHEREAS the new facility is a gateway to the university’s health science campus and supports the
academic, research, innovation, wellness and evidence-based practice pillars of the college; and

WHEREAS Gary and Jane Heminger have provided significant contributions to the College of Nursing;
and

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming of
University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of Gary and Jane Heminger’s philanthropic support, the
Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of the Ohio

Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned space be named Jane E.
Heminger Hall.
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13.

14.

Resolution No. 2022-64, Naming of the Encova Insurance Tunnel

AT OHIO STADIUM

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the home team tunnel at Ohio Stadium, located at 411 Woody
Hayes Drive, is proposed.

WHEREAS the Ohio Stadium is one of the most recognizable landmarks in all of college athletics, built
in 1922 and renovated in 2001; and

WHEREAS the Ohio Stadium continues to advance Ohio State’s athletic reputation and to help attract
and retain the best prospective student-athletes; and

WHEREAS the home team tunnel is the path the football student-athletes and staff take to enter the
field at Ohio Stadium on game days; and

WHEREAS Encova Mutual Insurance Group has provided significant contributions to the Department of
Athletics; and

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming of
University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of Encova Mutual Insurance Group’s philanthropic
support, the Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of

the Ohio Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned space be
named the Encova Insurance Tunnel.

Resolution No. 2022-65, Naming of Alex’s Sunnyside Playroom

IN THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY COMPREHENSIVE CANCER CENTER —
ARTHUR G. JAMES CANCER HOSPITAL AND RICHARD J. SOLOVE RESEARCH INSTITUTE

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the patient and family visitation room (Room A1402) in The Ohio
State University Comprehensive Cancer Center — Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and Richard J.
Solove Research Institute (OSUCCC — James), located at 460 West 10th Avenue, is proposed.

WHEREAS the OSUCCC - James strives to create a cancer-free world by integrating scientific
research with excellence in education and patient-centered care — a strategy that leads to better
methods of cancer prevention, detection and treatment; and

WHEREAS the 21-level hospital is one of 51 National Cancer Institute (NCI)-designated Comprehensive
Cancer Centers and one of the top cancer hospitals in the nation as ranked by U.S. News & World

Report; and

WHEREAS Alex’s Sunnyside Playroom and Gwendolyn Porter have provided significant contributions to
the OSUCCC - James; and
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15.

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming of
University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of Alex’s Sunnyside Playroom and Gwendolyn Porter’s
philanthropic support, the Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule

3335-1-08 of the Ohio Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned
space be named Alex’s Sunnyside Playroom.

Resolution No. 2022-66, Naming of Internal Spaces

IN THE FRANK STANTON VETERINARY SPECTRUM OF CARE CLINIC

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of internal spaces in the Frank Stanton Veterinary Spectrum of Care
Clinic, located at 655 Vernon L. Tharp Street, is proposed.

WHEREAS the College of Veterinary Medicine is consistently recognized as a leading veterinary
education and research program and is among the largest of its kind, uniquely located in a heavily
populated urban area surrounded by a strong rural and agricultural base; and

WHEREAS the veterinary primary care clinic will serve as a hands-on clinical training opportunity for
veterinary students and support the continuum of clinical training and Spectrum of Care education that
results in more confident and competent veterinary graduates; and

WHEREAS the donors listed below have provided significant contributions to the Frank Stanton
Veterinary Spectrum of Care Clinic; and

« Dr. Colleen Currigan
» Dr. James & Susan Link
 College of Veterinary Medicine Class of 1985

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming of
University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of the aforementioned donors’ philanthropic support, the
Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of the Ohio
Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned spaces be named the
following:

« Colleen E. Currigan, DVM 1985, AAFP President 2016 (Room 178)

« Supported by: James F. Link, DVM Class of 1978 (Room 112)

« From the Class of 1985 “You can never really pay back. You can only pay forward.” — Woody
Hayes (Room 173)
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17.

Resolution No. 2022-67, Naming of Internal Spaces

IN THE VETERINARY MEDICAL CENTER

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of internal spaces in the Veterinary Medical Center, located at 601
Vernon L. Sharp Street, is proposed.

WHEREAS the Veterinary Medical Center serves the citizens of the State of Ohio through the support of
the clinical education of veterinary students, post-graduate veterinarians and others, and promotes
animal well-being through the operation of a state-of-the-art center; and

WHEREAS since 1885, the College of Veterinary Medicine has had a comprehensive referral veterinary
medical center that admits more than 35,000 animal patients each year, representing a wide range of
species including companion, farm, equine and service animals; and

WHEREAS the donors listed below have provided significant contributions to the Veterinary Medical
Center; and

» College of Veterinary Medicine Class of 1982
 College of Veterinary Medicine Class of 1989
» Wolff Family Charitable Foundation Trust

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming of
University Spaces and Entities policy:
NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of the aforementioned donors’ philanthropic support, the
Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of the Ohio
Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned spaces be named the
following:

 Class of 1982 Exam Room (Room 1014)
 Class of 1989 Conference Room (Room A236)
» Wolff Family Trust Exam Room (Room 1012)

Resolution No. 2022-68, Naming of the Bill and Katie Shelley Huddle Room

IN BOLZ HALL

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the Huddle Room (430A) in Bolz Hall, located at 236 Neil Avenue,
is proposed.

WHEREAS the Department of Civil, Environmental and Geodetic Engineering is committed to providing
opportunities for students to work in a professional environment before beginning their careers post-

graduation; and

WHEREAS the renovations include new student-centered spaces to create an environment where
students can collaborate with each other, faculty and industry professionals; and

984



November 16-18, 2021, Board of Trustees Meetings

18.

WHEREAS William and Katie Shelley have provided significant contributions to the College of
Engineering; and

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming of
University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of William and Katie Shelley’s philanthropic support, the
Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of the Ohio
Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned space be named the Bill
and Katie Shelley Huddle Room

Resolution No. 2022-69, Naming In Honor of Helga and Robert Muladore (Ingrid Muladore Robechek
and Nils Muladore)

IN THE WOSU PUBLIC MEDIA HEADQUARTERS

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the phone room (413) in the WOSU Public Media Headquarters,
located at 1800 North Pearl Street, is proposed.

WHEREAS since its first broadcast in 1920, WOSU Public Media has delivered engaging local and
global news and public affairs programming, provided front-row access to musical performances, and
inspired Central Ohio citizens through lifelong learning experiences; and

WHEREAS with state-of-the-art facilities, the new headquarters will enable WOSU to expand and
enhance its programming for the more than 2 million citizens it reaches through television, radio, digital
and its WOSU Classroom services; and

WHEREAS the donors listed below have provided significant support to WOSU; and

» Stacey Wideman Muladore and Nils Muladore
« Ingrid Muladore Robechek and John Robechek

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming of
University Spaces and Entities policy:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of the aforementioned donors’ philanthropic support, the
Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of the Ohio

Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned space be named In
Honor of Helga and Robert Muladore (Ingrid Muladore Robechek and Nils Muladore) (413).
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19. Resolution No. 2022-70, Naming of Generous Gift from Karen and Steve Skilken

20.

IN OUTPATIENT CARE NEW ALBANY

Synopsis: Approval for the naming of the surgery consult room (Room 2310) in the Outpatient Care New
Albany facility, to be located at 6100 North Hamilton Road, is proposed.

WHEREAS the Outpatient Care New Albany facility is part of a new suburban outpatient care program
at the Wexner Medical Center that supports growth in the region and excellence in academic health
care; and

WHEREAS the New Albany facility will include program offerings such as ambulatory surgery,
endoscopy, primary care, specialty medical and surgical clinics, and related support spaces; and

WHEREAS Karen and Steve Skilken have provided significant contributions to the Wexner Medical
Center and the Outpatient Care New Albany facility; and

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming of
University Spaces and Entities policy, and if at any time following the approval of the naming,
circumstances change so that the continued use of the name may compromise the integrity or
reputation of the University, the University may remove the name with the approval of the President and
the Board of Trustees and notification of the donor, if possible:

NOW THEREFORE
BE IT RESOLVED, That in acknowledgement of Karen and Steve Skilken’s philanthropic support, the
Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of rule 3335-1-08 of the Ohio

Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the aforementioned space be named the
following: Generous Gift from Karen and Steve Skilken.

Resolution No. 2022-71, Naming of the Controlled Environment Agriculture Research Complex

IN THE COLLEGE OF FOOD, AGRICULTURAL, AND ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES
Synopsis: Approval for the administrative renaming of the Controlled Environment Food Production
Research Complex in the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences to the Controlled

Environment Agriculture Research Complex, is proposed.

WHEREAS the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences works to sustain life every
day through teaching, research and extension statewide on all of our campuses; and

WHEREAS the College focuses on agricultural products holistically through this facility; and
WHEREAS the College recommends the name change; and

WHEREAS the naming has been reviewed according to the approval process outlined in the Naming of
University Spaces and Entities policy:
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NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves, in accordance with paragraph (D) of
rule 3335-1-08 of the Ohio Administrative Code, that for the life of the physical facility the
aforementioned space be named the Controlled Environment Agriculture Research Complex.

21. Resolution No. 2022-56, Approval to Increase Professional Services and Enter Into/Increase
Construction Contracts
APPROVAL TO INCREASE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
Morrill Tower — Fire Alarm Replacement
North Residential - HVAC Modifications Phase 1
APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
WMC Loading Dock Expansion and Renovation
Synopsis: Authorization to enter into/increase professional services and construction contracts, as
detailed in the attached materials, is proposed.
WHEREAS in accordance with the attached materials, the University desires to increase professional
services and construction contracts for the following projects; and
Prof. Serv. Construction Total
Approval Approval Requested
Requested Requested
Morrill Tower — Fire Alarm $1.0M $4.6M $5.6M  Auxiliary Funds
Replacement
North Residential - HVAC $0.5M $4.6M g5.1\ University Debt

Modifications Phase 1

WMC Loading Dock Expansion and
Renovation

WHEREAS in accordance with the attached materials, the University desires to enter into construction
contracts for the following project; and

Construction Approval Total
Requested Requested

$15.1M $15.1M  Auxiliary Funds

WHEREAS the Master Planning and Facilities Committee has reviewed the projects listed above for
alignment with all applicable campus plans and guidelines; and

WHEREAS the Audit, Finance and Investment Committee has reviewed the projects listed above for
alignment with the Capital Investment Plan and other applicable financial plans:

NOW THEREFORE
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22.

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the President and/or Senior Vice
President for Business and Finance be authorized to enter into/increase professional services and
construction contracts for the projects listed above in accordance with established University and State
of Ohio procedures, with all actions to be reported to the Board at the appropriate time.

(See Appendix XXXVIII for background information, page 1142)

Resolution No. 2022-72, Appointment to the Self Insurance Board

Synopsis: Appointment of a member to the Self Insurance Board is proposed.

WHEREAS the Board of Trustees directed that a Self Insurance Board be established to oversee the
University Self Insurance Program; and

WHEREAS all members of the Self Insurance Board are appointed by The Ohio State University Board
of Trustees upon recommendation of the President; and

WHEREAS the term of member Charlotte Agnone, MD expired on June 30, 2021:
NOW THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby approves that the following individual be
appointed as a member of the Self Insurance Board effective December 1, 2021, for the term specified
below:

« Demetries J. Neely, Esq. term ending June 30, 2024

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That this appointment entitles the member to any immunity, insurance or
indemnity protection to which officers and employees of the University are, or hereafter may become,
entitled.

Action: Upon the motion of Mr. Zeiger, seconded by Mr. Kaplan, the committee adopted the foregoing motions
by unanimous voice vote with the following members present and voting: Mr. Zeiger, Mrs. Hoeflinger, Mr. Von
Thaer, Mr. Kaplan, Mr. Kiggin, Mr. Mitevski, Ms. Sobol, Mr. Klingbeil, Ms. Chronis and Mr. Stahl. Mr. Heminger
was not present for this vote.

Written Reports

In the public session materials, there were three written reports shared for the committee to review:

a.
b.

C.

FY22 Interim Financial Report (See Attachment LIX for background information, page 1052)
Detailed Foundation Report (See Attachment LX for background information, page 1057)

Major Project Updates (See Attachment LXI for background information, page 1098)
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EXECUTIVE SESSION

It was moved by Mr. Zeiger, and seconded by Mr. Von Thaer, that the committee recess into executive session
to discuss the purchase of property, to consider business-sensitive trade secrets required to be kept confidential
by federal and state statutes, and to consult with legal counsel regarding pending or imminent litigation.

A roll call vote was taken, and the committee voted to go into executive session with the following members
present and voting: Mr. Zeiger, Mrs. Hoeflinger, Mr. Von Thaer, Mr. Kaplan, Mr. Kiggin, Mr. Mitevski, Ms. Sobol,
Mr. Klingbeil, Ms. Chronis, and Mr. Stahl. Mr. Heminger was not present for this vote. The committee entered
executive session at 10:46 a.m. The meeting adjourned at 12:45 p.m.
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Date: October 25, 2021

To: The Ohio State University Audit, Compliance and Finance Committee
From: Christa Dewire, Audit Partner

Subject: External Audit — FY21 Audit Results

Purpose

To report to the Committee on the status and results of the external audit of the University’s financial
statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, as well as share certain Committee-level
communications required by professional auditing standards.

Committee Action

No action needed.

Executive Summary

e We will have substantively completed our audit procedures by November 19, 2021 and expect to
issue unqualified opinions on the financial statements of the University.

e Materiality thresholds were updated. There were no significant changes to our planned audit
strategy or significant risks; nor were there significant findings in procedures performed over
significant risk areas. There were no significant unusual transactions identified during our audit.

e There were no significant changes in the estimation methodology used by management in
relation to its valuation of particularly sensitive estimates.

e Key events/transactions and other areas of focus in the current year included:
o Implementation of Workday (Finance and HR) in January 2021
o Receipt of additional funds in conjunction with federal COVID-19 assistance programs

e There was one out of period adjustment reflected in the current year results related to the fair
value of alternative investments reflected one quarter in arrears. This is a recurring item, due to a
management decision to improve operational efficiencies associated with the year-end close
process and was deemed immaterial.

e There was One unadjusted misstatement identified by management in the current year impacting
the prior year statement of net position — specifically a gross up in other noncurrent assets and
other noncurrent liabilities to appropriately reflect the nature of the certain supplemental
retirement plans. This item was appropriately reflected in the FY2021 statement of net position
and the impact on the prior year comparative was deemed immaterial.

e Other matters we are required to bring to the Committee’s attention are included within our
materials.
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Tomorrow's audit, today

Report to the

Audit, Finance &
Investment Committee
FY21 audit results

The Ohio State University
November 18, 2021

CONFIDENTIAL
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Tomorrow’s audit, today: your results

October 25, 2021
Dear Members of the Audit, Finance & Investment Committee of The Ohio State University:

We are pleased to submit our Report to the Audit, Finance & Investment Committee related to the results
of our FY2021 audit of The Ohio State University’s (the “University") financial statements. Our report
includes an update on the status of our audit, a summary of the results of our audit work and other
required communications. We’ve also taken the opportunity to highlight how our technology and people-
driven approach is delivering enhanced quality and other key benefits like greater customization, time-
savings and insights from the audit.

This report has been prepared in advance of our meeting and prior to the completion of our procedures.
Other matters of interest to the Audit, Finance & Investment Committee may arise, which we will bring to
your attention at our meeting.

Consistent with the Auditor of State’s external audit firm rotation requirements, the fiscal 2021 year-end
audit cycle will be our last. Having served 11 years in the role as your external audit firm, we wanted to
share our sincere appreciation for the University’s cooperation and responsiveness throughout. We value
both the role we played in ensuring a high-quality deliverable, as well as the opportunity to build many
meaningful relationships with University management as well as Committee members past and present.

We look forward to presenting this report, addressing your questions and discussing any other matters of
interest. Please feel free to contact me at christa.l.dewire@pwc.com with any questions you may have.

Very truly yours,
Chaa Qoo
Christa L Dewire
Engagement Partner

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 41 South High Street, 25th Floor, Columbus, OH 43215-6101
T: (614) 225 8700 F: (614) 224 1044

Rooted in our core values
Through our

Delivering unique Make a difference @ Work together

except!onal combination % Reimagine the possible |§| Care
quality of people and

technology Act with integrity

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today 2
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What’s inside

Highlights 5

Audit results

Status of our audit (as of Oct 25th) 9

Audit risks and results 10
Other required communications 17
Appendices

Appendix | — Draft audit reports
Appendix Il — Draft management representation letter

Appendix Il — Status of other audit deliverables

This report and the information that it contains is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit, Finance & Investment
Committee or management, if appropriate, and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today
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Auditing smarter (not just auditing) People -powered Efficient

Audit and digital IQ combined Less data preparation, less
to deliver exceptional service disruption, saves you time

Tomorrow's audit, today

The optimal blend of people and technology, along with the application of Automations incorporating judgment Enhanced quality, relevant

well-reasoned professional judgement, allows us to deliver an audit that's tailored specifically to your audit audit plans, focused testing

tailored to your business. With our powerful integrated suite of technology

tools, your digitally savvy team enhances the quality of your audit and Transparent Insightful

makes it more consistent and less burdensome for your people. A real-time view across the Relevant insights into your
organization like never before business as a result of the audit

Customized Precise

PwC | fomorrow's 4
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Highlights

S

Status of the audit

» Substantially completed our audit of the
University’s financial statements pending the
following:

» Completion of subsequent event procedures

* Receipt of signed management
representation letter (Appendix I1)

» Expect to issue unqualified opinions on the
financial statements upon approval of the
Committee

« Draft audit reports in Appendix |

« Status of other audit/attest deliverables in
Appendix llI

I

Significant changes to audit plan

» Updated materiality thresholds

» No significant changes to the audit plan
previously communicated to the Committee

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today

J

Audit findings

» One out of period adjustment reflected in the
current year results related to the fair value of
alternative investments reflected one quarter in
arrears.

* Recurring item, due to a management
decision to improve operational efficiencies
associated with the year-end close process

* Deemed immaterial

One unadjusted misstatement identified by
management in the current year impacting the
prior year statement of net position — specifically
a gross up in other noncurrent assets and other
noncurrent liabilities to appropriately reflect the
nature of the certain supplemental retirement
plans.

 Appropriately reflected in the FY2021
statement of net position.

 Impact on the prior year comparative was
deemed immaterial.

No significant audit findings or exceptions in
areas deemed to be significant risks for purposes
of our audit

Control deficiencies identified in conjunction with
the audit will be communicated to management in
writing.
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Highlights

S

Key events and transactions

* Implementation of Workday (Finance and HR) in
January 2021

» Combination of PeopleSoft and Workday
ledgers served as ‘books and records’ for
purpose of FY2021 financial statements and
disclosures

Receipt of additional funds in conjunction with
federal COVID-19 assistance programs in fiscal
2021, including CARES institutional grants,
CARES emergency grants to students,
Coronavirus Relief Funds from the State of Ohio,
as well as FEMA Public Assistance Funds and
Provider Relief Funds.

» Revenue recognition/accounting for funds
and related financial statement disclosures
reviewed and deemed appropriate

» Aspects of CARES Act funding to be
subjected to Uniform Guidance compliance
testing in coming months.

Adoption of GASB 84, Fiduciary Activities, and
GASB 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Before the
End of a Construction Period, and GASB 90,
Majority Equity Interests

* No material impact

No significant unusual transactions outside the
normal course of business

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today
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B

Other required communications

» No significant changes in management’s process
to determine sensitive estimates subject to
management judgment

* No new or changes in significant accounting
policies and practices and none noted in
controversial or emerging areas or areas for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus or diversity in practice

* No matters to report with respect to our
independence

* No matters to communicate with respect to
illegal acts, fraud or non-compliance with laws
and regulations

* No uncertainties with regard to University’s
ability to continue as a ‘going concern’

* No disagreements with management or
difficulties encountered during the audit
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Auditing in a virtual environment — delivered

Our experience early in the pandemic, combined with investments in our people and technology, provided
us — and our clients — with confidence in our capabilities to complete end-to-end audit activities while
working remotely throughout the pandemic. With your team’s commitment to the process and a focused
phasing of audit effort, we have been able to serve you and stay on track to deliver a quality audit, while
working remotely. The below outlines some of our responses to impacts of the pandemic and related
economic environment.

Impacts to our fraud Innovation in

and other risk obtaining audit Your commitment to

the process -

assessment evidence

Engaging with management has
been even more important while

» Maintaining » Confirmations approach )
professional - Use of new technology working remotely throughout the
skepticism while such as the pandemic. Client coordination
working remotely and implementation of included engagement with multiple
updating our fraud Extract constituencies and included the
risk assessment for - Stronger reliance on following:
risks identified observation procedures *Coordinated project management
resulting from the in testing of internal and direct and purposeful
virtual work controls discussions between PwC and
environment - Virtual client meetings,

management through regular audit

including for the siatls Updates

performance of
walkthroughs *Issues management processes

for escalation timing and protocols

Team-wide *Active involvement of finance, IT,

internal audit, control owners and
executive management

coordination

Your team’s engagement in the

Consideration of - Virtual supervision and )
potential impacts on review of component audit support process has.been E]
; . key contributor to completing a
impairment teams ; . ‘
assessments & - Use of technology to quality audit on schedule while
realizability conduct audit maintaining and enhancing client
assessments of procedures relationships and managing
assets + Utilizing project collective efforts and fees
management tools and throughout the pandemic.

our connectivity to
monitor statutory audits
and compliance with
deadlines

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today
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Audit results

PwC | Tomorrow's audit,
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Status of our audit (as of October 25t

Significant changes to the
audit plan

We presented our planned
audit approach, including our
preliminary risk assessment,
and related scoping
considerations to the Audit,
Finance & Investment
Committee on May 20, 2021.

Throughout the audit we
continuously evaluate the
appropriateness of our audit
strategy.

Current year materiality
thresholds were updated
based on quantitative and
qualitative considerations,
resulting in the following:

Discretely
Primary Presented
Pzt Institution | Component
Units
Overall
Materiality | 5228 M $12.5M
De
Minimis $22.7M $1.25M
Materiality

There were no significant
changes to the planned audit
approach.

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today

Remaining items to
complete

We are substantially
complete with our audit of
the University financial
statements, pending final
approval of the financial
statements and completion
of the following:

* Subsequent events
procedures; and

* Receipt of
management’s signed
representation letters

Our Uniform Guidance
testing is in progress,
however the direct cost
testing performed for
purposes of the compliance
report and leveraged for
purposes of our University
financial statement audit is
complete.

1015

Audit report

We expect to issue our
unqualified report on the
financial statements of the
primary institution and of the
aggregate discretely presented
component units, which
collectively comprise the
University on or around
November 19th. Drafts of our
audit reports are included in
Appendix .

The status of all other PwC
deliverables is included in
Appendix IlI.

To the extent there are
significant updates to these
communications subsequent
to submission to the
Committee, but prior to our
report release date, we will
update the Committee verbally
during the November meeting.
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Audit risks and results

Significant Risk — Management Override of Controls

No audit findings or exceptions noted. Reimagining the possible on
your audit:

Halo for Journal Entries

Significant accounting policies and practices — initial adoption or change

The University’s significant accounting policies are detailed in section “Significant
Accounting Policies” in the financial statements.

There were

» No significant changes in accounting policies and practices or their application in the
current period.

» No accounting policies related to controversial or emerging areas or areas for which
there was a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus or diversity in practice that affect
the financial statements or disclosures of significant accounting policies.

= No significant or unusual transactions in the current year.

The adoption of GASB No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, GASB No. 89, Accounting for Interest
Cost Before the End of a Construction Period and GASB No. 90, Majority Equity Interests
had no material impact on the University’s financial statements.

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today
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Audit risks and results

Particularly sensitive accounting estimates — Patient Accounts Receivable and
Related Allowances and Net Patient Service Revenue

Description of estimate FY21 impact

Reported patient revenues
represent amounts received and
the estimated realizable

Health System:
« $421.9M of net patient account

amounts due from patients and receivable (net of $470M of Reimagining the possible on
. . contractual allowances and our audit:

third-party payors for services Y

rendepredyr?etyof contractual $87M of bad debt) - Use of automations to

allowances, charity care and * §$3,463M net patient service aggregate significant

bad debt expenses. revenue less provision for bad amounts of patient revenue

debts and A/R data to provide for a
more efficient testing
Significant inputs / approach.

assumptions OSU Physicians:

» $50.8M net patient care
receivables (net of $84.5M of
contractual allowances and
$8.7M of bad debt)

Models utilize historical results
to arrive at best estimates of
future collections, giving
consideration to changes to

existing agreements, recent * $426.2M net patient service
trends, and the aging and revenue less provision for bad
composition of unpaid debts

receivables.

Management’s process for developing estimates

Management utilizes models to determine the necessary contractual allowance and
bad debt reserves. Management's estimates for contractual and bad debts allowances
are based on historical cash collections and adjustments compared to revenue over a
rolling twelve-month period disaggregated by major payor class (Health System) and
historical cash collections and adjustments over a twelve-month period compared to
prior period Patient Accounts Receivable, adjusted for significantly aged receivables,
disaggregated by physician practice (OSUP). Management also performs a look-back
analysis of contractual and bad debt allowances established at the end of the prior
fiscal year.

Audit response

We performed walkthrough procedures to update our understanding of management’s
reserve methodology; reviewed of any topside entries or differences in booked
amounts to modeled results; and risk assessment analytical procedures. In addition,
we obtained and reviewed management's hindsight analysis on prior year net A/R,
which was compared to payments received through FY2021. We also compared the
cash collections received in the three months (Health System) or two-and-a-half
months (OSUP) subsequent to June 30, 2021 to the net A/R balance at this date to
obtain further substantive evidence over the adequacy of the current year reserves.

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today
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Audit risks and results

Other Areas of Focus — Valuation of Alternative Investments

Description of estimate FY21 impact
Fair values for alternative investments  $786.5M Real Assets
which include real assets, hedge $565.6M Hedge Funds Reimagining the possible on

funds and private equity are generally $2,283.7M Private Equity your audit:
measured using the net asset value '

(“NAV”) provided by the associated ) - LB e Ceikier
external investment manager/general ~ 1otal Alternative Excsllance (CoEs) tadiive

partners and reviewed by the Investments $3,635.8M efficiency and consistency in

university using the most recent e)ie:;u(t;r;g tTIUd't r:rogedur:z: bt
audited and unaudited financial felatea to the valuation of de

statements available. and equity securities.

Significant inputs / assumptions

inputs into the valuation include reported Net Asset Values (“NAV”) per the capital
statements, as well as audited financial statements.

Management’s process for developing estimates

In order to facilitate a timely year-end close, management historically has utilized
March 31st reported NAVs — adjusted for cash flows and distributions between March
31stand June 30 -- to initially estimate the fair value of alternative investments as of
June 30th. Management then tracks changes in NAV as reported by the various fund
managers as of June 30, and if the difference between estimated fair value and
reported fair value is material in aggregate, an adjustment would be recorded. During
FY21, this change in fair value was deemed to be material and has therefore been
reflected in the year-end financial statements.

As most alternative investments have different fiscal year-ends than the University’s
June 30 fiscal year-end, Management evaluates the June 30 NAV values based on
June 30 capital statements received from the investee entities and their managers. As
audited financial statements of the investee companies are not available at June 30,
management performs additional analysis to gain comfort over the reported values,
including comparing December 31 capital statements to the subsequently issued
investee December 31 audited financial statements. In addition, management has
certain monitoring controls and due diligence processes in place with respect to the
relevant fund managers. Service organization reports are obtained for third parties
responsible for custody services and tracking of investment activities.

Audit response

We performed walkthrough procedures to update our understanding of management’s
valuation process and performed tests of relevant key controls. We confirmed specific
information directly with the fund managers as of June 30%, including the University’s
period end capital balance, percentage ownership, unfunded commitments, fund NAV
and related accounting framework utilized to determine NAV, as well as year-to-date
fund activity (capital calls and disbursements).

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today
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Audit risks and results

Other areas of focus

Pension and other post-employment benefit (OPEB) liabilities

GASB Statement No. 68 (“GASB 68”) and GASB Statement No. 75 (“GASB 75”) require
employers (such as the University) that participate in cost-sharing, multi-employer plans to
recognize their proportionate share of net pension and net other post-employment benefit
(OPEB) liabilities of the plan.

The University participates in two such plans, the State Teachers Retirement System of
Ohio (STRS) and the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS). A proportionate
share of the net pension and OBEP liabilities is allocated to the University, based on
retirement plan contributions for University employees. The University’s proportionate share
of these liabilities are as follows:

m Net Pension Liability/(Asset) OPEB Liability/(Asset)

STRS OPERS Total STRS OPERS Total
All State employers* $24,196  $14,501 ($1,757) ($1,782)
University’s share 4.9% 10.4% 4.9% 10.7%
University's allocation $1,176 $1,503 $2.679 ($85) ($190) ($275)

Although changes in net pension and OPEB liabilities generally are recognized as
expense in the current period, certain items are deferred and recognized as expense in
future periods. Total pension and OPEB expense, including employer contributions, was
negative $770M for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Management is not responsible for the determination of the above liabilities, nor is
University management responsible for assessing the reasonableness of the
assumptions utilized in this determination. Management'’s recognition of the liability is
based on allocation schedules and reports provided by the State Plans, which are subject
to audit by the State Plans’ independent audit firm.

As the University (or ‘employer’s’) auditor, it is our responsibility to audit the employer’s
financial statements and, therefore, we are responsible for determining the sufficiency
and appropriateness of audit evidence necessary to reduce audit risk to an appropriately
low level. Our audit procedures with respect to these liabilities focused on assessing the
competency and objectivity of the plan auditor; agreeing management’s schedules to the
retirement systems’ allocation schedules; recalculating the allocation percentage;
recalculating the net pension liability/expense and reviewing management’s disclosures.

*Note that the state plan measurement dates differ from the University’s fiscal year-end. The measurement
date for STRS-Ohio is June 30, 2020. The measurement date for OPERS is December 31, 2020.

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today

1019



November 16-18, 2021, Board of Trustees Meetings

Audit risks and results

Other areas of focus

CARES Act Funding

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), Coronavirus
Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA) and the American
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) provide budgetary relief to higher education institutions through
numerous provisions. These acts and other federal COVID-19 assistance programs provide
support to individuals, companies and non-profit institutions in the form of loans, grants, tax
changes and other types of relief. CARES Act Provider Relief Funds were distributed for lost
revenues and healthcare related expenses due to operational changes to prepare for
treating patients with COVID-19.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the university recognized revenues totaling $144 million
for federal COVID-19 assistance programs, including $59 million of CARES institutional
grants, $25 million of CARES emergency grants to students, $43 million of Coronavirus
Relief Funds from the State of Ohio, and $16 million in FEMA Public Assistance funds,
which were provided to the Health System for costs associated with emergency protective
measures in response to COVID-19.

Revenue associated with these programs are recognized as non-operating revenues in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position as eligibility requirements
are met.

The CARES Act also expands the Medicare Accelerated and Advance Payment Program.
These advance payments are intended to provide necessary funds for the disruption in
claims processing and may also be offered in circumstances such as national emergencies
or natural disasters to accelerate cash flow to impacted healthcare providers and suppliers.
Amounts provided under the Medicare Accelerated and Advance Payment Program are
considered short-term loans and are reported as current liabilities in the Statement of Net
Position. Advance payments totaling $275 million were provided to the Health System in
2020. In 2021, the Health System began to repay the advance through retractions
(reductions) in Medicare payments. Current liabilities for advance payments provided to the
Health System totaled $255 million at June 30, 2021.

Audit response

We performed tests of details in relation to material aspects of CARES Act Funding during
fiscal 2021 which included consideration of revenue recognition criteria.

Certain of the CARES funds are subject to OMB Uniform Guidance audit compliance testing
which will be performed in the coming months conjunction with our Uniform Guidance report.

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today
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Audit risks and results

Other areas of focus

Implementation of Workday (Finance and HR)

The University implemented Workday (both the Finance and HR modules) in January 2021,
which means Workday served as the ‘books and records’ for the University for purposes of
the audited financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021.

However, PeopleSoft remained relevant for purposes of general ledger transaction level
detail for the six months pre-implementation, as well as for purposes of the Student module
which has not yet converted to Workday.

Audit response

Consistent with prior years, we updated our understanding of IT General Controls relevant
to PeopleSoft and obtained evidence of the implementation and operation of such controls.

In the current year, we also engaged PwC Workday specialists to assist our team in
performing testing to gain comfort over the completeness and accuracy of the conversion of
general ledger data, as well as obtain an understanding of and gain comfort over the design
and operation of IT General Controls relevant to Workday.

In addition, we updated our understanding of the impacted business processes by
performing walk-throughs in areas such as payroll, financial reporting, purchasing and
payables. Journal entry and transaction detail sourced from both PeopleSoft and Workday
were subject to audit testing, as were any key reports generated from Workday which
served as a source for data relevant to the year-end financial statements and footnotes.

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today
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Tomorrow's audit, today. Delivered.

Five powerful platforms. Scaled. Explore how we’ve delivered enhanced—
quality, insights, value to your audit

ACCGleration We continue to increase utilization of our Acceleration Center, delivering even
more people + tech pairings to serve all of your audits, so your local team can
CenterS focus on judgment and matters that are unique to your business.

To assess your risks, our Halo tools enabled us to spot anomalies or new
trends in journal entry data. We then brought them to life through data
HaIO visualization tools so we can see beyond numbers on a page. Together, these
tools enabled us to target test and unlock new value and analysis related to
critical audit areas.

Across all of your audits, we use PwC’s Aura auditing platform. This single
AU ra source enables us to develop a more targeted audit plan that captures risk
levels, controls reliance and substantive testing.

We use the Connect platform to track audit progress in real-time and enhance
Connect » project management. Reporting out of connect is utilized during our status
meetings with management.

Firm Software Audit Tools - technology solutions used by our engagement team
| t to examine, sort, filter, and analyze transactions and financial data used as

nnovation audit evidence and which generate results that supplement our auditor
judgment.

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today 16
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Other required
communications

PwC | Tomorrow’s audit, today
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Other required communications

Independence re-
evaluation

Material
uncertainties
related to events
and conditions
(specifically
going concern)

Other information
in documents
containing
audited/reviewed
financial
statements

Disagreements
with management

Consultation with
other
accountants

Difficulties
encountered
during the audit

Other material
written
communications

lllegal acts

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today

Matter to report No Yes

Comments

‘There were no independence matters that occurred or were identified
:subsequent to May 20, 2021, the date of our most recent independence
‘communication to the Audit Committee.

:There were no conditions and events that we identified that indicate that
‘there is substantial doubt about the University’s ability to continue as a
:going concern.

:We did not identify any information that was materially inconsistent with the
:information in the financial statements.

‘There were no disagreements with management

:We are not aware of any consultations management has had with other
‘accountants about significant accounting or auditing matters.

:There were no significant difficulties encountered during the audit. There
‘were no limitations on the system-wide audit including where our access to
:information at a component was restricted.

:In accordance with our engagement letter, we provide the Committee with
:copies of all material written communications between us and the
:University. See Appendix Il for draft management representation letter.
:Final signed copy of the letter will be shared with the Committee Chair.

:We did not identify any potential or known fraud involving management,
‘employees who have a significant role in the internal control structure or
:which could be material to the financial statements.

‘We did not identify any potential or known illegal acts.
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Other required communications

Matter to report

Identified
Misstatements

No Yes

Comments

:Identified misstatements include those that are uncorrected misstatements
‘related to accounts and disclosures that the auditor presented to
:management and corrected misstatements, other than those that are clearly
‘trivial, related to accounts and disclosures that might not have been
:detected except through the auditing procedures performed.

;There were no corrected misstatements, other than those that are clearly
:trivial, identified by PWC as a result of auditing procedures performed.

éThe following uncorrected misstatements in excess of the established de
:minimis thresholds were was identified by management related to the
:Primary Institution:

:» Understatement of other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent

liabilities by $138 million, as reflect in the statement net position as of
June 30, 2020. This relates to an adjustment needed to appropriately
reflect the assets and offsetting liability associated with certain
supplemental retirement plans.

An out of period adjustment recorded in the current year financials

related to the fair value of alternative investments reflected one quarter in
arrears (a $88.5 million understatement in unrealized gains in the prior
year, resulting in an overstatement of unrealized gains reflected in the
current year)

:Management determined the impact of the above to be both quantitatively
:and qualitatively immaterial to both the current and prior year financial
‘statements. We agree with management’s conclusions. See Appendix Il for
‘additional detail.

Control
Deficiencies

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today

‘We did not identify any material weaknesses as a result of our audit
‘procedures at the University level.

;Control deficiencies will be communicated to management in writing.
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Other required communications

Matter to report No Yes Comments

Non-compliance WA We did not identify any instances of non-compliance with laws and
with laws and : ‘regulations
regulations : :

Significant v : We did not identify any significant or unusual transactions.
unusual ] :
transactions

. : ‘We did not identify any alternative treatments permissible under US GAAP
Alternative v :for accounting policies and practices related to material items, including

accounting : ‘recognition, measurement, and presentation and disclosure.
treatments : :

B There were no other matters arising from the audit that are significantto
Other matters v : the oversight of the University's financial reporting process.

Departure from B :We anticipate issuing unqualified reports in relation to the University’s
Standard Report : ‘financial statements. See Appendix | for drafts of these reports.

:We have performed an evaluation of whether the presentation of the
:financial statements and the related disclosures are in conformity with the
:applicable financial reporting framework, including our consideration of the
:form, arrangement, and content of the financial statements (including the
:accompanying notes). We did not identify any instances of nonconformity.

;We have evaluated management's anticipated application of accounting
: pronouncements that have been issued but are not yet effective and might
- have a significant effect on future financial reporting. We do not have any

Quality of the “concerns as a result of our evaluation.
company’s : : ) ) )
financial v :We have evaluated the potential effect on the financial statements of

reporting § - significant exposures and risks, and uncertainties, such as pending

: : litigation, that are disclosed in the financial statements. We did not identify
‘any matters with a material potential effect not already included within the
:notes to the financial statements.

:We have evaluated whether the difference between estimates best

: supported by the audit evidence and estimates included in the financial

: statements, which are individually reasonable, indicate a possible bias on
:the part of the company's management. We did not identify any areas of
: possible bias.

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today
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For more information

Appendix

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today
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Appendix contents

Draft audit reports

Draft management representation letter

Status of other audit deliverables

Glossary
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Audit report drafts

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Trustees of
The Ohio State University

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the primary institution and of the aggregate
discretely presented component units of The Ohio State University (the “University”), a component unit of
the State of Ohio, which comprise the statements of net position as of and for the years ended June 30,
2021 and 2020, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and of cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial ments, which collectively
comprise the University’s basic financial statements as listed in thetable of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statefments

of the financial statements in

ited States of America; this includes
relevant to the preparation and fair
nisstatement, whether due to fraud or

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair pfesentatio
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal con
presentation of financial statements that are free from materia
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility @’

\
ns on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
standards % ly accepted in the United States of America and
its contai in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Our responsibility is to express opi
our audits in accordance with audi
the standards applicable to financial
Comptroller General of the %}ed Stal
obtain reasonable assurance about v

An audit involves perf
the financial statements. selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstat t of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, we co er internal control relevant to the University’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

g procedges to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the primary institution and the aggregate discretely presented component
units of The Ohio State University as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the respective changes in financial

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 41 South High Street, Suite 2500, Columbus, OH 43215
T: (614) 225 8700, F: (614) 224 1044, www.pwc.com/us
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position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the accompanying
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 22, the Required Supplementary Information
on GASB 68 Pension Liabilities on page 97, the Required Supplementary Information on GASB 75 Net
OPEB Liabilities on page 98, and the Notes to Required Supplementary Information on page 99 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic finangial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied gértain limited,procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally‘accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about theamethods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the{purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the University's basi€ financial'statements. The accompanying other information on
the long-term investment poekoen,pages 100 through 101 is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic
financial statements and, acéordingly; we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November XX,
2021 on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters for the year ended June 30, 2021. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the University’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

November XX, 2021
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Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees of
The Ohio State University

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the primary institution
and of the aggregate discretely presented component units of The Ohio State University (the
“University”), a component unit of the State of Ohio, which comprise thestatements of net position as of
June 30, 2021, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and nges in net position and of cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial&tatements, which collectively
comprise the University’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November
XX, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial staten
control over financial reporting (“internal contral?)ias a basis fordesigning the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose'ef expressing ougepinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the@ectiveness of the University’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinionsen the effectiveness of the University’s internal control.

we considered the University’s internal

A deficiency in internal control exi&Nhen the desig
management or employees, in the nokmal coUrseo orming their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on ely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal coms h here is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statement: not'be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency i a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material ortant enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

operation of a control does not allow

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 41 South High Street, Suite 2500, Columbus, OH 43215
T: (614) 225 8700, F: (614) 224 1044, www.pwc.com/us
102
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the University’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

November XX, 2021
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Management representation letter draft

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today
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Office of the Controller
2042 Blankenship Hall

901 Woody Hayes Drive
Columbus, OH 43210

Phone (614) 688-1647

Fax (614) 688-3572

November 19, 2021

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
41 South High Street

Suite 2500

Columbus, OH 43215

I am providing this letter in connection with your audits of the financial statements of The Ohio State
University (the “University”) for the purpose of expressing opinions as to whether such financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position as of June 30, 2021 and
June 30, 2020 of the primary institution and the aggregatediscretely presented component units of the
University, and the respective changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. | have
reviewed the signed representation letter of our chief financial officer and I am not aware of information
that would make the representations included therein inaccurate or incomplete.

Kristina Johnson
President
The Ohio State University.
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Office of the Controller
2042 Blankenship Hall

901 Woody Hayes Drive
Columbus, OH 43210

Phone (614) 688-1647

Fax (614) 688-3572

November 19, 2021

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
41 South High Street

Suite 2500

Columbus, OH 43215

We are providing this letter in connection with your audits of the financial statements of The Ohio State
University (the “University”) as of June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 and for the years then ended for the
purpose of expressing opinions as to whether such financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position, respective changes in net position and cash flows of the primary
institution and aggregate discretely presented component units of the University in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We acknowledge and confirm that we have fulfilled our responsibility, as set out in our engagement letter
of June 30, 2021, for the preparation and fair presentation in the financial statements of financial
position, respective changes in net position and of cash flows in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles, including the appropriate selection and application of accounting policies.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to those matters that are material.
Materiality is entity specific. The omission or misstatement of an item in a financial report is material,
regardless of size, if in light of surrounding circumstances, the magnitude of the item is such that it is
probable that the judgement of a reasonable person relying upon the report would have been changed or
influenced by the inclusion or correction of the item. Materiality used for purposes of these
representations is $100,000,000 for the primary institution and $5,000,000 for the aggregate discretely
presented component units.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of November 19, 2021, the date of your reports,
the following representations made to you during your audits:

1. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), and include all disclosures
necessary for such fair presentation and disclosures otherwise required to be included therein by
the laws and regulations to which the University is subject. We have prepared the University's
financial statements on the basis that the University is able to continue as a going concern. There
are no conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
University’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date the financial
statements are available to be issued.

2. We have made available to you:
a. All financial records and related data.
b. Unconditional access to persons within the entity from whom you have requested audit evidence.
c. All minutes of the meetings of the Board of Trustees, the Audit, Finance & Investment Committee
and other Committees of the Board and summaries of actions of recent meetings for which
minutes have not yet been prepared. The most recent meetings held were:

(1) Board of Trustees — November 18, 2021

(2) Audit, Finance & Investment Committee — November 18, 2021
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(3) Academic Affairs and Student Life Committee — November 17, 2021
(4) Talent, Compensation and Governance Committee — November 17, 2021
(5) Master Planning and Facilities Committee — November 18, 2021

d. All changes to the Company’s organizational structure that have resulted in new affiliates, as
defined in the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct 0.400.02, during the period ended June 30,
2021 or are expected to result in new affiliates, as a result of mergers, acquisitions, investments or
establishment of new entities prior to the date for which independence was required with respect
to the affiliate (e.g., in coordination with the letter of intent or the commitment date of the
transaction). The independence rules encompass not only the Company, but also its affiliates, as
defined in the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct 0.400.02.

3. We have appropriately reconciled our books and records (e.g., general ledger accounts) underlying
the financial statements to their related supporting information (e.g., sub ledger or third-party
data). All related reconciling items considered to be material were identified and included on the
reconciliations and were appropriately adjusted in the financial statements, as necessary. There
were no material unreconciled differences or material general ledger suspense account items that
should have been adjusted or reclassified to another account balance. There were no material
general ledger suspense account items written off to a balance sheet account, which should have
been written off to an income statement account and vice versa. All consolidating entries have been
properly recorded. All intra-entity accounts have been eliminated or appropriately measured and
considered for disclosure in the financial statements.

4. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or
deficiencies in financial reporting practices.

5. There are no material transactions, agreements or accounts that have not been properly recorded in
the accounting records underlying the financial statements.

6. The effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements and out-of-period adjustments
summarized in the accompanying schedule are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate,
to the financial statements taken as a whole.

7. We acknowledge and confirm that we have fulfilled our responsibility, as set out in our engagement
letter of June 30, 2021, for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and we have disclosed to you all deficiencies in the
design or operation of internal control over financial reporting of which we are aware. We have also
disclosed to you which of these deficiencies we believe are significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting.

8. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and controls to
provide reasonable assurance that fraud is prevented and detected.

9. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may
be materially misstated as a result of fraud and we have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected
fraud affecting the University involving:

a. Management,

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control over financial reporting, or
c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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10.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the University
received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others.

(As to items 8, 9 and 10, we understand the term "fraud" to mean those matters described in AICPA
AU-C 240.)

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to us.

We have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements that have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts or other financial data significant to the audit objectives.

We have identified and disclosed to you violations (and possible violations) of laws, regulations, and
provisions of contracts and grant agreements whose effects should be considered for disclosure in
the financial statements, as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for auditor reporting on non-
compliance.

We have taken timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud, illegal acts, and violations of
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that you report.

The University has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities.

We have disclosed to you the identity of all the University's related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

There are no side agreements or other arrangements (either written or oral) that have not been
disclosed to you.

The following, if material, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements:

a. Relationships and transactions with related parties, as described in Accounting Standards

19.

20.

21.

Codification (ASC) 850, Related Party Disclosures, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers,
leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related parties.

. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the University is contingently liable.

Significant estimates and material concentrations known to management that are required to be
disclosed in accordance with ASC 275, Risks and Uncertainties. (Significant estimates are
estimates at the balance sheet date that could change materially within the next year.
Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues, available sources of supply, or markets or
geographic areas for which events could occur that would significantly disrupt normal finances
within the next year.)

The University has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on
such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral, except as disclosed in the financial
statements.

The University has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent bona fide claims against debtors for
services or other charges arising on or before the balance sheet dates and are not subject to discount
except for normal cash discounts. Receivables classified as current do not include any material

3
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22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

amounts which are collectible after one year. All receivables have been appropriately reduced to
their estimated net realizable value.

Inventory quantities at the balance sheet dates were determined from physical counts or from
perpetual inventory records, which have been adjusted on the basis of physical inventories taken by
competent employees at various times during the year and due provision was made to reduce all
slow-moving, obsolete, or unusable inventories to their estimated useful or scrap values.

All liabilities of the University of which we are aware are included in the financial statements at the
balance sheet dates. There are no other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to
be recognized or disclosed by ASC 450, Contingencies, and no unasserted claims or assessments
that our legal counsel has advised us are probable of assertion and required to be disclosed in
accordance with that Topic.

We are responsible for all significant estimates and judgments affecting the financial statements.
The methods, underlying data, and significant assumptions used in developing accounting
estimates and the related disclosures are reasonable and appropriate to achieve recognition,
measurement, or disclosure in the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The methods used in developing accounting
estimates have been consistently applied in the periods presented and the data used in developing
accounting estimates is accurate and complete. Accounting estimates and judgments appropriately
reflect management's intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action, where relevant. There
have been no subsequent events that would require the adjustment of any significant estimates and
related disclosures.

All borrowings and financial obligations of the University and its components have been disclosed
to you and are properly recorded and disclosed in the financial statements. Further, we
appropriately classified debt as current or non-current in the statement of net position in
accordance with the appropriate authoritative guidance.

Investments in the Long-Term Portfolio are in compliance with the University's asset allocation
policy.

We are responsible for the fair value of estimates related to temporary investments, the Long-term
Investment Pool, other long-term investments, and securities loaned by the University under its
securities lending program, including real assets, hedge funds and private equity securities, and
determined the models, methods and assumptions used by pricing services and other parties are
reasonable. In addition, the measurement of fair value and related fair value levelling hierarchy
presented within the notes to the financials is consistent with the requirements of GASB Statement
No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.

Tax-exempt bonds issued have retained their tax-exempt status

The University has properly recorded, classified and disclosed net position in accordance with
GASB Statement 35, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis —
for Public Colleges and Universities. Net position resulting from transactions with externally-
imposed purpose restrictions have been recorded, classified and disclosed as restricted net position
until the specific resources are used for the required purpose or for as long as the provider requires
the resources to remain intact. Restricted net position has been appropriately classified as
nonexpendable or expendable.

The University has one segment that meets the GASB reporting requirements; in that the segment
has a specific identifiable revenue stream pledged in support of revenue bonds or other revenue-
backed debt and has related expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities that can be identified.
The condensed financial information for the Special Purpose Revenue Facilities as presented in the

4
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31

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

footnotes to the financial statements was prepared on a basis consistent with the University
financial statements.

We assume responsibility for the findings of specialists. We did not give or cause any instructions
to be given to specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their
work, and we are not aware of any matters that have had an impact on the independence or
objectivity of the specialists. We adequately considered qualifications of the specialists in
determining the amounts and disclosures used in the financial statements and underlying
accounting records related to self-insurance reserves for medical malpractice.

We have presented, in either the statement of revenues, expenses, and other changes in net position
or the notes to the financial statements, information about expenses (but not losses) reported by
their functional classification, such as major classes of program services and supporting activities.
Expenses that relate to more than one program or supporting activity, or to a combination of
programs and supporting services, have been appropriately allocated among the appropriate
functions. Administrative allocations to the functional categories were based on full cost
allocations.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the required supplementary information
on GASB 68 pension liabilities and GASB 75 other postemployment benefit liabilities that are
mandatory for all cost-sharing employers. We believe such information, including its form and
content, is fairly presented in accordance with GASB Statement Nos. 68 and 75, as amended. The
methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We
have informed you about any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the information.

The University is exempt from taxes as an instrumentality of the State of Ohio under Internal
Revenue Code S115 and Internal Revenue Service regulations. Any unrelated business income is
taxable.

We have notified you of (i) any current or planned offerings of securities on a regulated market in a
non-U.S. country or (ii) when we have provided or plan to provide audited financial statements to a
non-U.S. regulator or government in connection with our access to its public capital markets,
whether or not we include or refer to your report or include reference to your Firm.

We have fully evaluated the impacts of COVID-19 on our financial statements including
incorporating necessary disclosures in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
attributable to any material risk and/or uncertainties that may now exist, including those pertaining
to the University’s financial condition.
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To the best of our knowledge and belief, no events have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date and
through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the aforementioned
financial statements.

Michael Papadakis
Senior Vice President for Business and Finance and Chief
Financial Officer

Kristine G. Devine
Vice-President of Financial Operations and Deputy Chief
Financial Officer

Lisa A. Plaga
Controller

Thomas F. Ewing
Director of Financial Reporting
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Status of audit deliverables

University Components Deliverables Status
Audit (at Oct 25)
Primary General University
Institution 0SU Wexner Medical Center Flna_nmal_ S_tatement
Audit Opinion
Health System (OSU Health
(GASB)
System)
Substantiall
Discretely OSU Physicians GAGAS Internal complete 4
Presented - Controls Opinion targeted.
Component Campus Partners for Community (including procedures issue?nce on
Units Urbar_1 _Re_development and to support
Subsidiaries (Campus Partners) compliance with Ohio Nov 19
Transportation Research Center Revised Code)
Inc.
Science and Technology Campus
Corporation
Dental Faculty Practice
Association, Inc.
Status
Other
Deliverables Reporting Entity (at Oct 25)

Stand-alone OSU Foundation Completed, pending Foundation
Financial Board Approval
Statement
Audits OSU Health System Completed
Transportation Research Center Completed
OSU Physicians Completed
Athletics Department Dec 15
WOSU Public Media Dec 15
OSU Global Gateways Completed
Campus Partners Oct 29
Compliance Uniform Guidance Dec 15
Review report Wexner Center for the Arts Oct 28
OSU Health Plan Nov 15
Agreed Upon NCAA Dec 15
Procedures
Benefit Plan Transportation Research Center — Completed
Audit Benefit Plan

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today
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Glossary (1 of 2)

Significant accounting policies and practices

Accounting principles followed by the entity and the methods of applying those principles that materially
affect the determination of financial position, cash flows, or results of operations.

Significant accounting policies and practices

A company's accounting policies and practices that are both most important to the portrayal of the
company's financial condition and results, and require management's most difficult, subjective, or
complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effects of matters that are
inherently uncertain.

Particularly sensitive accounting estimates

Key assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. Also may be referred to as key
sources of estimation uncertainty.

Significant unusual transactions

Significant transactions that are outside the normal course of business for the entity or that otherwise
appear to be unusual due to their timing, size, or nature

Identified misstatements

Identified misstatements include those that are uncorrected misstatements related to accounts and
disclosures that the auditor presented to management and corrected misstatements, other than those
that are clearly trivial, related to accounts and disclosures that might not have been detected except
through the auditing procedures performed.

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today 26
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Glossary (2 of 2)

Material weakness

A deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Significant deficiency

A deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Control deficiency

Exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis.

« A deficiency in design exists when (a) a control necessary to meet the control objective is missing or
(b) an existing control is not properly designed so that, even if the control operates as designed, the
control objective would not be met.

» A deficiency in operation exists when a properly designed control does not operate as designed or
when the person performing the control does not possess the necessary authority or qualifications to
perform the control effectively

PwC | Tomorrow's audit, today
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pwc.com

© 2021 PwC. All rights reserved. PwC refers to the US member firm or one of its subsidiaries or affiliates, and may sometimes
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ATTACHMENT LIX

THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY
TOPIC: Fiscal Year 2022 Interim Financial Report — September 30, 2021
CONTEXT: The purpose of this report is to provide an update of financial results for the three months ending September 30, 2021
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Our overall financial position remains strong. Our size, diversity of operations, and discipline enabled us to retain fiscal strength during
these unprecedented disruptions. The university is recovering, progressing toward normal operations, and returning to a full college
experience. The first quarter of fiscal year 2022 shows increases in operating revenues compared to the first quarter of fiscal year
2021, driven primarily by strong growth at the Health System from increased patient volumes and auxiliary operations due to the return
of fall sports. Specific impacts include:

o Healthcare revenues increased $119 million reflecting increases in hospital patient acuity and growth in outpatient volumes.

e Anincrease in auxiliary revenues of $40 million, reflecting higher occupancy for student housing and dining and the return of fans
for the football season.

e An increase in federal COVID-19 assistance of $73 million from the Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF) for
students and lost revenues for the institution.

Year-to-date increase in net position was $53 million, down $325 million compared to prior year. The decrease is primarily due to a
$386 million decrease in net investment income, which was partially offset by a $70 million increase in revenues from federal COVID-
19 assistance programs. Additional details on university revenues, expenses, cash and investments, and cash flows are provided
below.

Revenues

Student tuition and fees, net - increased $5 million or 3%, to $179 million for the three months ending September 30, 2021, compared
to the same period of fiscal year 2021, due primarily to an increase in gross tuition of $21 million. Gross tuition increased $14 million
for Autumn semester, an increase of $7 million for Summer semester, offset by an increase in scholarship allowance of $15 million.
Autumn and Summer tuition increased primarily due to a return to in-person instruction and full assessment of non-resident fees.
Similarly, scholarships increased to cover increases in fees for non-residents.

Grants and contracts — were flat for the first quarter of fiscal year 2022 compared to fiscal year 2021. Federal and local grants
increased $7 million and $8 million, respectively, offset by decreases in State and private grants of $8 million and $7 million,
respectively. The fluctuation in grants in the first quarter of a fiscal year can be impacted by the various changes in grantor activity.

Gifts - Increased $12 million over the prior year due primarily to increases in current use gifts of $8 million, private capital gifts of $3
million, and additions to permanent endowments of $1 million.

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises - increased $40 million for the three months ending September 30, 2021, compared to prior
year due primarily to the resumption of fall sports of $31 million, increases in Student Life housing and dining revenues of $6 million,
and increases in Business Advancement (Schottenstein Center, Blackwell, and Fawcett Center) revenues of $3 million.

Federal COVID-19 assistance programs — increased $73 million over the prior year due to increases in HEERF grants to students of
$43 million, HEERF institutional grants of $20 million, and Shuttered Venue Operators Grant for the Schottenstein Center of $10
million.

Sales and services of the OSU Health System and OSU Physicians, Inc - increased $119 million to $1,189 million. The Health System
had solid outpatient volumes and strong chemotherapy and radiation oncology volumes. The operating revenues per adjusted
admission were 12.4% above prior year. OSU Physicians experienced a similar trend with a year-over-year increase of $14 million.

Expenses
University — expenses increased $58 million or 10%, to $661 million in the first quarter of fiscal year 2022 due to a return to in-person
instruction and resumption of on campus events and operations.

OSU Health System and OSU Physicians - expenses increased $121 million to $1,053 million. Health System expense per adjusted
admission increased 11.2% from prior year. Expenses increased due to growth in outpatient volumes as well as higher transplant
volumes, Covid-19 lab expenses, and higher surgical and procedural expenses.

Auxiliary — expenses increased $18 million to $77 million for the three months ending September 30, 2021, compared to prior year,
primarily due to the resumption of fall sports and Schottenstein Center events.

Cash and Investments

Total university cash and investments increased $1,858 million to $12,106 million on September 30, 2021, compared to the same
period of last year, primarily due to the increase in the Long-Term Investment Pool of $1,384 million and net increase in cash and
temporary investments of $372 million. Additional details are provided below.
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Long-Term Investment Pool and Temporary Investments
For the quarter ending September 30, 2021, the fair value of the university's Long-Term Investment Pool decreased by $64 million to
$6,978 million. Changes in total valuation compared to prior year are summarized below:

2021 2020
Fair Value at June 30 $ 7,041,973 $ 5,287,131
Net principal additions 39,524 40,948
Change in fair value (51,179) 319,563
Income earned 33,877 25,638
Distributions (64,756) (61,509)
Expenses (21,910) (18,654)

Fair Value at end of September 30 3 6,977,529 $ 5,593,118

Net principal additions include new endowment gifts ($8.1 million), reinvestment of unused endowment distributions ($2.6 million),
and other net transfers of university monies ($28.1 million with the majority to the Expense Repayment Endowment to defray lump
sum expenses). Change in fair value includes realized gains (losses) on the sale of investment assets and unrealized gains (losses)
associated with assets held in the pool on September 30, 2021. Income earned includes interest and dividends and is used primarily
to help fund distributions. Expenses include investment management expenses ($16.8 million), University Development related
expenses ($4.9 million), and other administrative-related expenses ($0.2 million).

LTIP Investment Returns

For the quarter ending September 30, 2021, the LTIP earned a return, net of investment fees, of 2.84%, vs. a benchmark return of
1.84%. During that period, our Private Equity returned 12.06% followed by Real Assets at 8.35%, Legacy Investments at 3.52%,
Hedge Funds and Opportunistic Credit at 2.34%, Cash and High-Grade Bonds at -0.03% and Public Equity at -1.86%

The comparable quarter ending September 30, 2020, saw a net investment return of 6.28%. During that period, our Public Equity
returned 9.28%, followed by Private Equity at 7.53%, Real Assets at 5.33%, Hedge Funds and Opportunistic Credit at 3.65%, Legacy
Investments at 2.47%, and Cash and High-Grade Bonds at 0.04%.

Temporary Investments

For the quarter ending September 30, 2021, the Tier 1 Investments (0-1 Year maturity) earned a return of 0.10%, outperforming the
ICE Bofa 6m US Treasury Bill benchmark (+0.02%) by 0.08%. Tier 2 Investments (1-5 Year maturity) earned 0.21% outperforming
the blended benchmark of ICE Bofa US Corp & Govt 1-3 Years and BBG US Govt/Credit 1-5 Years (+0.08%) by 0.13%.

The comparable quarter ending September 30, 2020, saw Tier 1 Investments earn a return of 0.57%. Tier 2 Investments returned
0.97% for this same time period.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable increased $165 million, to $846 million at September 30, 2021. Receivables on grants and appropriations
increased $83 million, driven primarily by a $105 million increase in receivables on grants managed by the Office of Sponsored
Programs, $22 million for state-line item appropriations, and $17 million for departmental programs. Sales and services receivables
increased $60 million for patients, departmental earnings, and auxiliary operations.

Deposits and Advance Payments for Goods and Services

Advance payments for goods and services increased $174 million to $807 million at September 30, 2021, primarily due to increases
in student tuition and fees of $80 million, auxiliary operations for Athletics, Student Life, and Schottenstein Center of $52 million, and
Health System of $30 million for software and construction agreements.

Long-term Bonds Payable, Subject to Remarketing and Bonds, Notes and Lease Payables

University debt, in the form of bonds, notes and capital lease obligations, increased $649 million, to $3.77 billion at September 30,
2021. On September 30, 2021, the university closed on $600,000 in tax-exempt fixed rate General Receipts Bonds — Series 2021A.
The Series 2021A bonds are structured on a level debt service basis with annual principal payments beginning December 1, 2022,
through final maturity on December 1, 2051. The interest rate coupons on the Series 2021A bonds range from 2.50% to 5.00%. The
proceeds of the bonds will be used to fund construction of the Wexner Medical Center’'s new Inpatient Hospital, scheduled to open in
2026

Cash Flows

University cash and cash equivalents increased $370 million in the first quarter of fiscal year 2022. Net cash provided from operating
activities was $79 million, compared to $65 million in the first three months of the fiscal year. The increase relates primarily to increases
in sales and services from healthcare and auxiliary operations, offset by payments to vendors and employees. Net cash flows from
noncapital financing activities increased $291 million for the three months ending September 30, 2021, compared to $209 million for
the prior year due primarily to increases in COVID-19 assistance program revenue. Cash flows from capital financing activities
increased $433 million for the first quarter of fiscal year 2022 due to the issuance of the 2021A bonds of $718 million, offset by
payments for capital assets of $292 million. Cash used by investing activities was $433 million, reflecting net purchases of temporary
investments.
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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - UNAUDITED
September 31, 2021 and September 31, 2020

(in thousands)

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Temporary investments
Accounts receivable, net
Notes receivable - current portion, net
Pledges receivable - current portion, net
Accrued interest receivable
Inventories, prepaid expenses, and other assets
Investments held under securities lending program
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted cash
Notes receivable, net
Pledges receivable, net
Net other post-employment benefit asset
Long-term investment pool
Other long-term investments
Other noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets
Deferred Outflows:
Pension
Other post-employment benefits
Other deferred outflows

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Medicare advance payment program
Deposits and advance payments for goods and services
Current portion of bonds, notes and leases payable
Long-term bonds payable, subject to remarketing
Liability under securities lending program
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds, notes and leases payable
Concessionaire payable
Net pension liability
Net other post-employment benefit liability
Compensated absences
Self-insurance accruals
Amounts due to third-party payors - Health System
Irrevocable split-interest agreements
Refundable advances for Federal Perkins loans
Advance from concessionaire
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows:
Parking service concession arrangement
Pension
Other post-employment benefits
Other deferred inflows
Total Deferred Inflows
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Nonexpendable
Expendable
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position

As of Sey As of Sep Increase/(Decrease)

2021 2020 Dollars %
$ 1,260,529 $ 2,010,929 $ (750,400) -37.3%
3,154,223 1,981,679 1,172,544 59.2%
845,671 680,401 165,270 24.3%
25,231 25,655 (424) -1.7%
63,799 79,240 (15,441) -19.5%
18,645 18,294 351 1.9%
312,644 335,840 (23,196) -6.9%
89,062 9,831 79,231 805.9%
5,769,804 5,141,869 627,935 12.2%
324,095 352,274 (28,179) -8.0%
37,721 54,601 (16,880) -30.9%
97,441 59,248 38,193 64.5%
275,182 77,901 197,281 253.2%
6,977,529 5,593,118 1,384,411 24.8%
350,341 300,347 49,994 16.6%
204,133 - 204,133 100.0%
6,629,965 6,048,184 581,781 9.6%
14,896,407 12,485,673 2,410,734 19.3%
20,666,211 17,627,542 3,038,669 17.2%
339,679 445,769 (106,090) -23.8%
104,182 239,629 (135,447) -56.5%
23,431 31,697 (8,266) -26.1%
$ 21,133,503 $ 18,344,637 $ 2,788,866 15.2%
$ 824,691 $ 749,084 $ 75,607 10.1%
213,468 287,500 (74,032) -25.8%
806,853 632,789 174,064 27.5%
64,345 58,609 5,736 9.8%
289,970 317,715 (27,745) -8.7%
89,062 9,831 79,231 805.9%
93,265 112,032 (18,767) -16.8%
2,381,654 2,167,560 214,094 9.9%
3,412,616 2,741,255 671,361 24.5%
220,684 134,362 86,322 64.2%
2,679,333 3,025,029 (345,696) -11.4%
22,683 1,459,572 (1,436,889) -98.4%
218,702 211,319 7,383 3.5%
30,966 87,095 (56,129) -64.4%
94,670 59,516 35,154 59.1%
36,328 31,272 5,056 16.2%
26,005 29,695 (3,690) -12.4%
975,506 997,322 (21,816) -2.2%
290,164 121,610 168,554 138.6%
8,007,657 8,898,047 (890,390) -10.0%
10,389,311 11,065,607 (676,296) -6.1%
394,875 404,506 (9,631) -2.4%
682,490 487,347 195,143 40.0%
675,698 298,463 377,235 126.4%
40,713 28,620 12,093 42.3%
1,793,776 1,218,936 574,840 47.2%
3,316,600 3,350,409 (33,809) -1.0%
1,708,529 1,614,009 94,520 5.9%
2,115,658 1,128,279 987,379 87.5%
1,809,629 (32,603) 1,842,232 5450.5%
8,950,416 6,060,094 2,890,322 47.7%
$ 21,133,503 $ 18,344,637 $ 2,788,866 15.2%
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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - UNAUDITED

September 31, 2021 and September 31, 2020

(in thousands)

Septemt P Increase/(Decrease)
Operating Revenues: 2021 2020 Dollars %
Student tuition and fees, net $ 178,634 $ 173,318 $ 5,316 3.1%
Federal grants and contracts 115,180 108,235 6,945 6.4%
State grants and contracts 13,169 20,987 (7,818) -37.3%
Local grants and contracts 12,583 4,434 8,149 183.8%
Private grants and contracts 73,490 80,471 (6,981) -8.7%
Sales and services of educational departments 53,939 42,291 11,648 27.5%
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 64,865 24,531 40,334 164.4%
Sales and services of the OSU Health System, net 1,022,320 917,119 105,201 11.5%
Sales and services of OSU Physicians, Inc., net 166,863 153,132 13,731 9.0%
Other operating revenues 12,255 3,475 8,780 252.7%
Total Operating Revenues 1,713,298 1,527,993 185,305 12.1%
Operating Expenses:
Educational and General:
Instruction and departmental research 242,118 220,655 21,463 9.7%
Separately budgeted research 123,807 127,823 (4,016) -3.1%
Public service 43,690 46,664 (2,974) -6.4%
Academic support 61,404 48,342 13,062 27.0%
Student services 23,251 18,023 5,228 29.0%
Institutional support 96,587 89,300 7,287 8.2%
Operation and maintenance of plant 39,323 30,682 8,641 28.2%
Scholarships and fellowships 31,003 21,241 9,762 46.0%
Auxiliary enterprises 77,484 59,518 17,966 30.2%
OSU Health System 894,035 786,954 107,081 13.6%
OSU Physicians, Inc. 158,649 144,908 13,741 9.5%
Depreciation 126,762 108,821 17,941 16.5%
Total Operating Expenses 1,918,113 1,702,931 215,182 12.6%
Operating Loss (204,815) (174,938) (29,877) 17.1%
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
State share of instruction and line-item appropriations 123,422 117,024 6,398 5.5%
Federal subsidies for Build America Bonds interest 2,830 2,830 - 0.0%
Federal non-exchange grants 37,275 36,828 447 1.2%
Federal COVID-19 assistance programs 102,981 30,210 72,771 240.9%
State non-exchange grants 4,572 859 3,713 432.2%
Gifts 31,299 23,256 8,043 34.6%
Net investment income (loss) (37,792) 348,650 (386,442) -110.8%
Interest expense on plant debt (34,077) (27,717) (6,360) -22.9%
Other non-operating revenues (expenses) (3,493) (8,829) 5,336 -60.4%
Net Non-operating Revenue (Expense) 227,017 523,111 (296,094) -56.6%
Income (Loss) before Other Revenues, 22,202 348,173 (325,971) -93.6%
Expenses, Gains or Losses
Changes in Net Position
State capital appropriations 13,662 15,392 (1,730) -11.2%
Private capital gifts 6,288 2,842 3,446 121.3%
Additions to permanent endowments 10,706 9,862 844 8.6%
Total Changes in Net Position 30,656 29,600 1,056 3.6%
Increase in Net Position 52,858 377,773 $ (324,915) -86.0%
Net Position - Beginning of Year 8,897,558 5,682,321
Net Position - End of Period $ 8,950,416 $ 6,060,094
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THE OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - UNAUDITED

Years Ended September 30, 2021 and September 30, 2020
(in thousands)

Qentemb

q

tomb.

Increase (Decrease)

2021 2020 Dollars %

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Tuition and fee receipts $ 318,341 $ 289,417 $ 28,924 10.0%
Grant and contract receipts 163,156 186,006 (22,850) -12.3%
Receipts for sales and services 1,423,339 1,150,599 272,740 23.7%
Payments to or on behalf of employees (850,015) (791,978) (58,037) 7.3%
University employee benefit payments (247,829) (232,101) (15,728) 6.8%
Payments to vendors for supplies and services (720,676) (529,438) (191,238) 36.1%
Payments to students and fellows (28,586) (19,172) (9,414) 49.1%
Student loans issued (867) (812) (55) 6.8%
Student loans collected 1,165 1,410 (245) -17.4%
Student loan interest and fees collected 390 480 (90) -18.8%
Other receipts (payments) 15,184 10,462 4,722 45.1%
Net cash provided by operating activities 79,049 64,873 14,176 21.9%
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
State share of instruction and line-item appropriations 101,022 117,024 (16,002) -13.7%
Non-exchange grant receipts 41,847 37,687 4,160 11.0%
Federal COVID-19 assistance programs 102,981 30,210 72,771 240.9%
Gift receipts for current use 31,298 23,256 8,042 34.6%
Additions to permanent endowments 10,706 9,861 845 8.6%
Drawdowns of federal direct loan proceeds 146,113 128,700 17,413 13.5%
Disbursements of federal direct loans to students (143,769) (137,554) (6,215) 4.5%
Amounts paid to annuitants and life beneficiaries - (696) 696 -100.0%
Agency funds receipts 687 812 (125) -15.4%
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 290,971 209,300 81,671 39.0%
Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities:
Proceeds from capital debt and leases 718,307 - 718,307 100.0%
State capital appropriations 12,255 16,729 (4,474) -26.7%
Gift receipts for capital projects 6,288 2,842 3,446 121.3%
Payments for purchase or construction of capital assets (292,053) (231,415) (60,638) 26.2%
Principal payments on capital debt and leases (11,731) (5,905) (5,826) 98.7%
Interest payments on capital debt and leases (4,477) (556) (3,921) 705.2%
Federal subsidies for Build America Bonds interest 4,708 5,396 (688) -12.8%
Net cash provided (used) by capital financing activities 433,297 (212,909) 646,206 303.5%
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Net (purchases) sales of temporary investments (458,820) (177,963) (280,857) 157.8%
Proceeds from sales and maturities of long-term investments 786,899 277,346 509,553 183.7%
Investment income 14,590 32,182 (17,592) -54.7%
Purchases of long-term investments (775,749) (262,441) (513,308) 195.6%
Net cash used by investing activities (433,080) (130,876) (302,204) 230.9%
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 370,237 (69,612) $ 439,849 -631.9%

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 1,214,387 2,432,815

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Period $ 1,584,624 $ 2,363,203
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College of Arts and Sciences Alumni Professorship

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University shall establish the College of Arts and Sciences
Alumni Professorship, as a quasi-endowment, effective November 18, 2021, with a fund transfer by the
College of Arts and Sciences of an unrestricted gift from the estate of Eugene Bernard (BA 1949).

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used for a professorship position in the College of Arts and
Sciences. The highest ranking official in the college or his/her designee shall determine the focus of the
position and may revise the focus every five years or if the position becomes vacant. The position holder
may be recommended by the highest ranking official in the college or his/her designee and shall be
appointed and reviewed in accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures for faculty
appointment.

If the position is vacant, the annual distribution may be used to support the faculty in the College of Arts
and Sciences. Expenditures shall be approved in accordance with the then current guidelines and
procedures established by the College of Arts and Sciences.

The highest ranking official in the College of Arts and Sciences or his/her designee has the discretion to
hold all or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years,
and/or reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with the University’s Gift Acceptance Policy, Fund Transfers — Unrestricted to Endowment Policy,
Investment Policy, and all other applicable University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board
of Trustees. As authorized by the Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment
portfolio for the University’s costs of development and fund management.

It is the desire of the College of Arts and Sciences that the quasi-endowment established herein should
benefit the University in perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure
in the future, the terms of the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University may
modify the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the unit named above. If the purpose of the fund
becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the University may modify the
purpose of this fund. The University shall consult the highest ranking official in the College of Arts and
Sciences or his/her designee to identify a similar purpose consistent with the original intent of the unit.
Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees, in accordance
with the policies of the University.
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Richard J. and Martha D. Denman Endowed Professorship in Principled Leadership Studies

The Richard J. and Martha D. Denman Fund was established March 1, 1985, by the Board of Trustees of
The Ohio State University with a gift to The Ohio State University Development Fund from Richard J.
(BSBA 1957) and Martha D. Denman of Laguna Beach, California. The minimum funding required for a
professorship was reached, the fund name and description were revised and the position was established
November 1, 1991. Effective November 18, 2021, the fund name and description shall be further revised.

All gifts are to be invested in the University’s Permanent Endowment Fund, under the rules and
regulations adopted by the Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, with the right to invest and
reinvest as occasion dictates.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to recruit and retain a full-time faculty member for a
professorship position in the Max M. Fisher College of Business who, through research and creative
teaching, will increase the effectiveness of principle driven leadership efforts. The position holder shall be
appointed and reviewed in accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures for faculty
appointment.

Expenditures shall be approved in accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures
established by the college.

The endowment may be revised when the gifted endowment principal reaches the minimum funding level
required at that date for a chair position.

The highest ranking official in the Max M. Fisher College of Business or his/her designee has the
discretion to hold all or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in
subsequent years, and/or reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.
Distribution may only be used for the purpose described above.

Should the need for this fund cease to exist or so diminish as to provide unused distribution, then the
distribution may be used for any purpose whatsoever as determined by the Board of Trustees, with
preference being given to recommendations from the highest ranking official in the Max M. Fisher College
of Business or his/her designee.
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The Express Scripts Scholarship Fund

The Medco Containment Services, Inc. Scholarship Fund was established May 7, 1993, by the Board of
Trustees of The Ohio State University with a gift from Medco Health Solutions, Inc. (formerly Medco
Containment Services, Inc.) of Franklin Lakes, New Jersey. The name of the fund was changed to The
Merck-Medco Managed Care LLC Scholarship Fund September 5, 1997. In 2003, Medco spun off from
Merck and formed the public company Medco Health Solutions. The name and description were revised
May 14, 2010. In April of 2012, Medco Health Solutions was acquired by Express Scripts. Effective
November 18, 2021, the name and description shall be further revised.

The annual distribution from this fund shall provide one or more scholarships to Doctor of Pharmacy
students in the College of Pharmacy who excel academically but need financial assistance. Scholarship
recipients will be selected by the dean of the College of Pharmacy or his/her designee, in consultation
with Student Financial Aid.

The University may modify any selection criteria should the criteria be found, in whole or in part, to be
contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purpose, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the
purposes of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the dean of the
College of Pharmacy.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should unforeseen circumstances arise in the future so that the need for this endowment
ceases to exist, then another use as nearly aligned with the original intent of the contribution as good
conscience and need dictate, shall be designated by the University’s Board of Trustees. In making this
alternate designation, the Board shall seek advice from a representative of the donor, should one be
available, and from the dean of the College of Pharmacy.
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Gordon E. Gatherum Memorial Fund

The Gordon E. Gatherum Memorial Fund was established February 5, 2010, by the Board of Trustees of
The Ohio State University with gifts from Dr. John Vimmerstedt of Wooster, Ohio, and other friends and
relatives of the late Gordon E. Gatherum. Dr. Gatherum was an emeritus professor and director in the
University’s School of Environment and Natural Resources. The description was first revised on January
29, 2016. Because forest biology research no longer exists at the Wooster Campus, the need for this
endowment has ceased to exist. Pursuant to the terms of the fund as first established, and in order to
further the donors’ intent, the vice president for agricultural administration and dean of the College of
Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences, recommends that the fund description be further revised
as set forth herein, effective November 18, 2021.

The annual distribution from this fund shall provide support for forest biology research. Recipients shall be
selected by a committee of appropriate faculty and researchers. Expenditures shall be approved by the
associate dean for Research and Graduate Education and the director of the School of Environment and
Natural Resources (SENR), in accordance with guidelines approved by the vice president for agricultural
administration and dean of the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences.

In any given year that the endowment distribution is not fully used for its intended purposes, the unused
portion should be held in the distribution account to be used in subsequent years and only for the
purposes of the endowment, or reinvested in the endowment principal at the discretion of the associate
dean for Research and Graduate Education and the director of the SENR.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

The endowment established herein is intended to benefit the University in perpetuity. Should unforeseen
circumstances arise in the future so that the need for this endowment ceases to exist, then another use
as nearly aligned with the original intent of the contributions as good conscience and need dictate, shall
be designated by the University’s Board of Trustees. In making this alternate designation, the Board shall
seek advice from the vice president for agricultural administration and dean of the College of Food,
Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences, in consultation with the associate dean for Research and
Graduate Education and the director of the SENR.
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The Floyd B. Mellor Scholarship Fund

The Floyd B. Mellor Scholarship Fund was established August 23, 1989, by the Board of Trustees of The
Ohio State University with a gift to The Ohio State University Development Fund from the estate of Floyd
B. Mellor, Killbuck, Ohio to the Ohio Agricultural Research and Development Center, Wooster, Ohio, a
component of the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences (CFAES). In 2020, the Ohio
Agricultural Research and Development Center, Wooster, Ohio was renamed CFAES Wooster. Effective
November 18, 2021, the fund description shall be revised.

All gifts are to be invested in the University’s permanent endowment fund, under the rules and regulations
adopted by the Board of Trustees, with the right to invest and reinvest as occasion dictates.

The annual distribution shall be used to provide a scholarship or scholarships to worthy students
participating in beef cattle research at CFAES Wooster, as determined by The Ohio State University.
Expenditures shall be approved in accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures
established by the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences. Scholarship recipients, the
number of recipients, and amount of each scholarship shall be determined in accordance with the then
current guidelines and procedures for scholarship administration established by the college, in
consultation with Student Financial Aid.

It is the desire of the donor that this fund should benefit the University in perpetuity. If the need for this
fund should cease to exist or so diminish as to provide unused distribution, then another use shall be
designated by the Board of Trustees in consultation with the appropriate college dean, department
chairperson, or program administrative officer in order to carry out the desire of the donor.
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The Robert F. Wolfe and Edgar T. Wolfe Foundation Chief Clinical Officer Chair
in the Wexner Medical Center

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish The Robert F. Wolfe and
Edgar T. Wolfe Foundation Chief Clinical Officer Chair in the Wexner Medical Center effective November
18, 2021, with gifts from Robert F. Wolfe and Edgar T. Wolfe Foundation.

The annual distribution from this fund supports a chair position for the chief clinical officer in the Wexner
Medical Center. Expenditures shall be at the discretion of the chief clinical officer or his/her designee.

Subsequent to the retirement of the current Chief Clinical Officer, Dr. Andrew M. Thomas, the fund and
chair shall be renamed Robert F. Wolfe and Edgar T. Wolfe Foundation — Dr. Andrew M. Thomas Chief
Clinical Officer Chair in the Wexner Medical Center in perpetuity. Should the title of the chief clinical
officer change, the naming shall extend to any successor position and the new name of the chair would
change accordingly.

The position holder shall be appointed and reviewed in accordance with the then current guidelines and
procedures for faculty appointment. Expenditures shall be approved in accordance with the then current
guidelines and procedures established by the Wexner Medical Center.

The highest ranking official in the Wexner Medical Center or his/her designee has the discretion to hold
all or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years, and/or
reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donor named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the Wexner Medical Center or his/her designee to identify a similar
purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved
by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the
policies of the University and Foundation.
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Seth Andre Myers Professorship in Global Military History

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Seth Andre Myers Chair
Fund in Global Military History effective August 19, 2021, with gifts from Stephen Myers. The required
funding level for a professorship has been reached. Effective November 18, 2021, the fund name and
description shall be revised and the position shall be established.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to support a professorship position in the Department
of History focused on global military history. The position holder shall be appointed and reviewed in
accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures for faculty appointment.

Should the gifted endowment principal balance reach $3,500,000 for a chair position by September 30,
2026, the annual distribution from this fund shall be used to support a chair position in the Department of
History focused on global military history. After September 30, 2026, the endowment may be revised
when the gifted endowment principal reaches the minimum funding level required at that date for a chair
position. The position holder shall be appointed and reviewed in accordance with the then current
guidelines and procedures for faculty appointment.

If the position is vacant, the annual distribution may be used to support the faculty in the College of Arts
and Sciences, Department of History. Expenditures shall be approved in accordance with the then current
guidelines and procedures established by the college.

The highest ranking official in the College of Arts and Sciences or his/her designee has the discretion to
hold all or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years,
and/or reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donor named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the College of Arts and Sciences or his/her designee to identify a
similar purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be
approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance
with the policies of the University and Foundation.
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Richard R. Duncan Fellowship

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Richard R. Duncan
Fellowship effective November 18, 2021, with an estate gift from Dr. Richard R. Duncan (PhD 1963).

The annual distribution from this fund supports a fellowship position for students in the PhD program of
the Department of History who are considered “all but dissertation” (ABD) and are working on
dissertations in the period between the 1860's and 1950's in any field. Recipients and amount of support
shall be determined in accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures for fellowship
administration established by the College of Arts and Sciences, in consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

The highest ranking official in the College of Arts and Sciences or his/her designee has the discretion to
hold all or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years,
and/or reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. In accordance with Ohio Revised Code, if the
purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the University
and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall consult the
highest ranking official in the College of Arts and Sciences or his/her designee to identify a similar
purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved
by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the
policies of the University and Foundation.
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Margaret A. Iden Endowed Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Margaret A. Iden
Endowed Fund effective November 18, 2021, with an estate gift from Dr. Margaret A. “Peggy” Iden (BS
1950, MA 1951).

This endowment honors Peggy’s life as an educator, athlete and adventure enthusiast who believed
everyone should have the opportunity to pursue an education, as well as engage in physical activities and
athletic competitions.

The annual distribution from this fund supports the College of Education and Human Ecology.
Expenditures shall be approved in accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures
established by the college.

The highest ranking official in the College of Education and Human Ecology or his/her designee has the
discretion to hold all or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in
subsequent years, and/or reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. In accordance with Ohio Revised Code, if the
purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the University
and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall consult the
highest ranking official in the College of Education and Human Ecology or his/her designee to identify a
similar purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be
approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance
with the policies of the University and Foundation.
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Margaret Carbon Richardson Endowed Scholarship Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Margaret Carbon
Richardson Endowed Scholarship Fund effective November 18, 2021, with an estate gift from Margaret
Richardson.

The annual distribution from this fund provides renewable, tuition-only scholarships to undergraduate
students. Preference shall be given to candidates from Sharon, Pennsylvania who demonstrate financial
need. Recipients will be selected by Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

The highest ranking official in Student Financial Aid or his/her designee has the discretion to hold all or a
portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years, and/or reinvest
all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund. In accordance with Ohio Revised Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes
unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the University and Foundation may modify the
purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall consult the highest ranking official in
Student Financial Aid or his/her designee to identify a similar purpose consistent with the original intent of
the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and
the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the policies of the University and Foundation.
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The Ohio State University November 18, 2021
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Bhavesh V. Patel and Family Endowed Scholarship Fund in Engineering

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Bhavesh V. Patel and
Family Endowed Scholarship Fund in Engineering effective November 18, 2021, with gifts from Bhavesh
V. Patel (BS 1988).

The annual distribution from this fund provides one or more scholarships to students who are enrolled in
the College of Engineering and demonstrate financial need. First preference shall be given to candidates
majoring in chemical engineering. The donor desires that when awarding this scholarship special
consideration be given to first-generation college students as well as students who have experience living
or working in diverse environments and/or are members of an organization recognized by the University
that is open to all but whose mission seeks to advance the need of populations historically
underrepresented in higher education. The donor desires to provide as significant financial support as
possible to one eligible recipient. Any remaining distribution shall be used to provide as significant
financial support as possible to additional eligible recipients. If no students meet the selection criteria, the
scholarship(s) will be open to all students who are enrolled in the college and demonstrate financial need.
Scholarship recipients, the number of recipients, and amount of each scholarship shall be determined in
accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures for scholarship administration established by
the college, in consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

The highest ranking official in the college or his/her designee has the discretion to hold all or a portion of
the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years, and/or reinvest all or a
portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donor named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the College of Engineering or his/her designee to identify a similar
purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved
by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the
policies of the University and Foundation.
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George and Lena Bailey Speakers Fund in the College of Education and Human Ecology

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the George and Lena Bailey
Speakers Fund in the College of Education and Human Ecology effective November 18, 2021, with an
estate gift from George Bailey given in memory of his wife, Dr. Lena Charles Bailey (PhD 1969).

The annual distribution from this fund supports speakers in the College of Education and Human Ecology.
Expenditures shall be approved in accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures
established by the college.

The highest ranking official in the College of Education and Human Ecology or his/her designee has the
discretion to hold all or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in
subsequent years, and/or reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. In accordance with Ohio Revised Code, if the
purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the University
and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall consult the
highest ranking official in the College of Education and Human Ecology or his/her designee to identify a
similar purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be
approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance
with the policies of the University and Foundation.
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The Julius and Mary Ann Vargo Athletics Scholarship Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish The Julius and Mary Ann
Vargo Athletics Scholarship Fund effective November 18, 2021, with gifts from Joseph Michael “Mike”
Vargo in honor of his parents, Julius and Mary Ann Vargo.

The annual distribution from this fund supplements the grant-in-aid costs of undergraduate student-
athletes. Recipients, the number of recipients, and amount of support shall be determined in accordance
with the then current guidelines and procedures for scholarship administration established by the
Department of Athletics, in consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

The highest ranking official in the Department of Athletics or his/her designee has the discretion to hold all
or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years, and/or
reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donor named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the Department of Athletics or his/her designee to identify a similar
purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved
by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the
policies of the University and Foundation.

1069



November 16-18, 2021, Board of Trustees Meetings

The Ohio State University November 18, 2021
Board of Trustees

Michael and Sandy Vargo Family Scholarship Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Michael and Sandy Vargo
Family Scholarship Fund effective November 18, 2021, with a gift from Joseph Michael Vargo.

The annual distribution from this fund supplements the grant-in-aid costs of undergraduate student-
athletes with preference towards those participating in Olympic varsity sports. Scholarship recipients, the
number of recipients, and amount of each scholarship shall be determined in accordance with the then
current guidelines and procedures for scholarship administration established by the Department of
Athletics, in consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

The highest ranking official in the Department of Athletics or his/her designee has the discretion to hold all
or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years, and/or
reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donor named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the Department of Athletics or his/her designee to identify a similar
purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved
by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the
policies of the University and Foundation.
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The Don and Abby Robinson Fund, In Memoriam of Dr. Martin Lubow

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish The Don and Abby Robinson
Fund, In Memoriam of Dr. Martin Lubow effective November 18, 2021, with a grant from The Martin
Lubow, MD and Diane Infield Lubow Fund of the Columbus Foundation as recommended by Don
Robinson.

The annual distribution from this fund supports lectureships focused on Neuro-Ophthalmology in the
College of Medicine. Expenditures shall be approved in accordance with the then current guidelines and
procedures established by the college.

The highest ranking official in the College of Medicine or his/her designee has the discretion to hold all or
a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years, and/or reinvest
all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donor named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the College of Medicine or his/her designee to identify a similar
purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved
by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the
policies of the University and Foundation.
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Women of Scarlet and Gray Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Women of Scarlet and
Gray Fund effective November 18, 2021, with gifts from Rite Rug Holdings Inc.

The annual distribution from this fund is used to support and enhance the experience and development of
student-athletes participating in a women's varsity sport. Expenditures shall be approved in accordance
with the then current guidelines and procedures established by the Department of Athletics.

The highest ranking official in the Department of Athletics or his/her designee has the discretion to hold all
or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years, and/or
reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donor named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the Department of Athletics or his/her designee to identify a similar
purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved
by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the
policies of the University and Foundation.
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Combined Veterinary Pathology Residency PhD Endowment Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Combined Veterinary
Pathology Residency PhD Endowment Fund effective November 18, 2021, with gifts from Dr. Sanford
Parsons Bishop (MS 1965, PhD 1968).

The annual distribution from this fund supports trainees of the combined veterinary pathology
residency/PhD program (or successor program) in the College of Veterinary Medicine. Expenditures shall
be approved in accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures established by the college.

The highest ranking official in the College of Veterinary Medicine or his/her designee has the discretion to
hold all or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years,
and/or reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donor named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the College of Veterinary Medicine or his/her designee to identify a
similar purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be
approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance
with the policies of the University and Foundation.
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The A.T. "Greg" and Charlotte Gregoire Fund in Addiction and Recovery

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish The A.T. "Greg" and Charlotte
Gregoire Fund in Addiction and Recovery effective November 18, 2021, with gifts from friends and
colleagues of Dean Thomas “Tom” Gregoire. The fund is named after his parents and is in honor of Dean
Thomas Gregoire for his unwavering service to the College of Social Work and commitment to those
challenged by substance use disorders.

The annual distribution from this fund supports students in recovery from substance use disorders or
students who are enrolled in the College of Social Work who wish to pursue a career in the addictions
field. Recipients, the number of recipients, and amount of support shall be determined in accordance with
the then current guidelines and procedures for scholarship administration established by the college, in
consultation with Student Financial Aid. Expenditures shall be approved in accordance with the then
current guidelines and procedures established by the college.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in part, to be
contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

The highest ranking official in the College of Social Work or his/her designee has the discretion to hold all
or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years, and/or
reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donors named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the College of Social Work or his/her designee to identify a similar
purpose consistent with the original intent of the donors. Modifications to endowed funds shall be
approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance
with the policies of the University and Foundation.
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Robert L. DeSilets Scholarship Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Robert L. DeSilets
Scholarship Fund effective November 18, 2021, with gifts from Michelle DeSilets Gallagher.

Robert “Bob” L. DeSilets Sr. followed his family’s tradition by attending The Ohio State University where
he earned a Bachelor of Architecture (B.Arch.) in 1965 before beginning a career focused on historic
preservation. He worked for Price and Dickey, Giles Hughes, and John Milner Architects before opening
his own practice in 1979. Bob created and chaired the Historical Architecture Review Board for nearly 20
years in his home township of Lower Merion, Pennsylvania. He lived in and ran his practice out of his
beloved Suntop Homes built by Frank Lloyd Wright. Bob’s impact on the field of architecture can be seen
in numerous projects including the Thomas Edison homestead, Lucy the Margate Elephant, the Second
Bank of Philadelphia, Franklin Court, the Graff House, Nitre Hall and the Federal School in Haverford
Township, Pennsylvania.

The annual distribution from this fund provides one or more scholarships to students who are studying in
the Austin E. Knowlton School of Architecture and demonstrate an interest in historic preservation or the
history of architecture. First preference shall be given to undergraduate students in their second, third or
fourth year. If no students meet the selection criteria, the scholarship(s) will be open to all students who
are studying in the school. Scholarship recipients, the number of recipients, and amount of each
scholarship shall be determined in accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures for
scholarship administration established by the College of Engineering, in consultation with Student
Financial Aid and the school.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

The highest ranking official in the College of Engineering or his/her designee, in consultation with the
highest ranking official in the School, has the discretion to hold all or a portion of the unused distribution in
the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years, and/or reinvest all or a portion of the unused
distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

Itis the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donor named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the College of Engineering or his/her designee to identify a similar
purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved
by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the
policies of the University and Foundation.
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Sharon G. Fullerton Maliska Hilandar Research Library Support Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Sharon G. Fullerton
Maliska Hilandar Research Library Support Fund effective November 18, 2021, with gifts from Sharon G.
Maliska in grateful memory of The Very Reverend Dr. Mateja Matejic, professor emeritus of the University
Slavic Department, and to honor Dr. Predrag Matejic, professor emeritus of the University Libraries, who
were key in establishing this library collection.

The annual distribution from this fund supports the Hilandar Research Library at the discretion of the
highest ranking official in University Libraries or his/her designee. Expenditures shall be approved in
accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures established by University Libraries.

The highest ranking official in University Libraries or his/her designee has the discretion to hold all or a
portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years, and/or reinvest
all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donor named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in University Libraries or his/her designee to identify a similar purpose
consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the
University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the policies of
the University and Foundation.
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Aaron Klamut Glioblastoma Multiforme Brain Tumor Research Endowed Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Aaron Klamut
Glioblastoma Multiforme Brain Tumor Research Endowed Fund effective November 18, 2021, with gifts
from David D. Klamut and Theresa M. Fredericka in memory of Aaron Klamut, David's son and Theresa's
step-son, who died of glioblastoma in July 2018.

The annual distribution from this fund supports glioblastoma research. Expenditures shall be approved in
accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures established by The Ohio State University
Comprehensive Cancer Center — Arthur G. James Cancer Hospital and Richard J. Solove Research
Institute (OSUCCC — James).

The highest ranking official(s) in the OSUCCC - James or his/her/their designee(s) has the discretion to
hold all or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years,
and/or reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donors named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official(s) in the OSUCCC - James or his/her/their designee(s) to identify a
similar purpose consistent with the original intent of the donors. Modifications to endowed funds shall be
approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance
with the policies of the University and Foundation.
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Barbara E. Anderson and Dr. Larry Berliner Undergraduate English and Chemistry Scholarship
Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Barbara E. Anderson and
Dr. Larry Berliner Undergraduate English and Chemistry Scholarship Fund effective November 18, 2021,
with gifts from Dr. Lawrence J. Berliner and Ms. Barbara E. Anderson (MA 1971).

The annual distribution from this fund provides one or more scholarships to undergraduate students who
are enrolled in the College of Arts and Sciences, majoring in English, chemistry or biochemistry, and
demonstrate financial need. Preference will be given to candidates who are participating in the Honors
program. It is the donors’ desire to alternate between students majoring in English and students majoring
in chemistry or biochemistry every other year. If no students meet the selection criteria, the scholarship(s)
will be open to all undergraduate students majoring in actuarial sciences, astronomy and astrophysics,
data analysis, earth sciences, mathematics, physics, or statistics. Recipients shall be selected in
accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures for scholarship administration established by
the college, in consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University may modify
any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in part, to be
contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

The highest ranking official in the College of Arts and Sciences or his/her designee has the discretion to
hold all or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years,
and/or reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

In the year 2070 the fund shall be dissolved, and the principal balance shall be used to provide as many
scholarships as possible over the next ten to twenty years.

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University until the
year 2070. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donors named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the College of Arts and Sciences or his/her designee to identify a
similar purpose consistent with the original intent of the donors. Modifications to endowed funds shall be
approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance
with the policies of the University and Foundation.
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Gerald J. Greenspan Endowed Scholarship Fund for Biomedical Engineering

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Gerald J. Greenspan
Endowed Scholarship Fund for Biomedical Engineering effective November 18, 2021, with an estate gift
from Gerald J. Greenspan (MS 1993, MS 1994).

The annual distribution from this fund provides one or more scholarships to students who are studying
biomedical engineering, with a preference for students interested in human mechanics. Scholarship
recipients, the number of recipients, and amount of each scholarship shall be determined in accordance
with the then current guidelines and procedures for scholarship administration established by the College
of Engineering, in consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

The highest ranking official in the College of Engineering or his/her designee has the discretion to hold all
or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years, and/or
reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. In accordance with Ohio Revised Code, if the
purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the University
and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall consult the
highest ranking official in the College of Engineering or his/her designee to identify a similar purpose
consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the
University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the policies of
the University and Foundation.
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Gerald J. Greenspan Endowed Scholarship Fund for Exercise Physiology

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Gerald J. Greenspan
Endowed Scholarship Fund for Exercise Physiology effective November 18, 2021, with an estate gift from
Gerald J. Greenspan (MS 1993, MS 1994).

The annual distribution from this fund provides one or more scholarships to students studying exercise
physiology. Scholarship recipients, the number of recipients, and amount of each scholarship shall be
determined in accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures for scholarship administration
established by the College of Education and Human Ecology, in consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

The highest ranking official in the College of Education and Human Ecology or his/her designee has the
discretion to hold all or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in
subsequent years, and/or reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. In accordance with Ohio Revised Code, if the
purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the University
and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall consult the
highest ranking official in the College of Education and Human Ecology or his/her designee to identify a
similar purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be
approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance
with the policies of the University and Foundation.
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Gerald J. Greenspan Endowed Scholarship Fund for Human Nutrition

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Gerald J. Greenspan
Endowed Scholarship Fund for Human Nutrition effective November 18, 2021, with an estate gift from
Gerald J. Greenspan (MS 1993, MS 1994).

The annual distribution from this fund provides one or more scholarships to students studying human
nutrition. Scholarship recipients, the number of recipients, and amount of each scholarship shall be
determined in accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures for scholarship administration
established by the College of Education and Human Ecology, in consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

The highest ranking official in the College of Education and Human Ecology or his/her designee has the
discretion to hold all or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in
subsequent years, and/or reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. In accordance with Ohio Revised Code, if the
purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the University
and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall consult the
highest ranking official in the College of Education and Human Ecology or his/her designee to identify a
similar purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be
approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance
with the policies of the University and Foundation.
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Dan and Ellen Coombs Endowed Chemical Engineering Support Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Dan and Ellen Coombs
Endowed Chemical Engineering Support Fund effective November 18, 2021, with a gift from Daniel Mark
Coombs (BS 1978) and Mary Ellen Coombs (BS 1979).

10% of the annual distribution from this fund supports graduate students in the William G. Lowrie
Department of Chemical and Biomolecular Engineering as recommended by the highest ranking official in
the department or his/her designee.

90% of the annual distribution from this fund shall be reinvested in the endowment principal for ten years
or until the donors’ estate gift is realized. Thereafter, 100% of the annual distribution from this fund shall
support graduate students in the William G. Lowrie Department of Chemical and Biomolecular
Engineering as recommended by the highest ranking official in the department or his/her designee.

If at any time the gifted principal balance reaches the then current minimum required for an endowed
fellowship, the fund name shall be revised to the Dan and Ellen Coombs Endowed Chemical Engineering
Fellowship Fund and 100% of the annual distribution from this fund will support fellowships in the William
G. Lowrie Department of Chemical and Biomolecular Engineering.

Expenditures shall be approved in accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures
established by the College of Engineering.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in part, to be
contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

The highest ranking official in the College of Engineering or his/her designee has the discretion to hold all
or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years, and/or
reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donors named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the College of Engineering or his/her designee to identify a similar
purpose consistent with the original intent of the donors. Modifications to endowed funds shall be
approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance
with the policies of the University and Foundation.
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Sam and Carol Huffman Engineering Endowed Scholarship Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Sam and Carol Huffman
Engineering Endowed Scholarship Fund effective November 18, 2021, with gifts from Samuel V. Huffman
Jr. and Carol Ann Martin Huffman.

The annual distribution from this fund provides one or more scholarships to students who are from the
state of Ohio, are majoring in engineering and demonstrate financial need. It is the donors’ clear intent
that preference shall be given first to candidates from Harrison County, Ohio and second to students from
Tuscarawas County, Ohio. It is the donors’ desire to provide as significant financial support as possible to
one eligible recipient. Any remaining funds shall be used to provide as significant financial support as
possible to additional eligible recipients. Scholarship recipients, the number of recipients, and amount of
each scholarship shall be determined in accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures for
scholarship administration established by the College of Engineering, in consultation with Student
Financial Aid. Scholarships are renewable as long as the recipients are in good standing with the
University and meet the selection criteria.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

Unused annual distribution shall be reinvested in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donors named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the College of Engineering or his/her designee to identify a similar
purpose consistent with the original intent of the donors. Modifications to endowed funds shall be
approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance
with the policies of the University and Foundation.
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Borton Family Endowed Scholarship Fund

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish the Borton Family Endowed
Scholarship Fund effective November 18, 2021, with gifts from Ronald J. Borton, James L. Borton,
Dennis L. Borton, family and friends.

The annual distribution from this fund provides scholarship support for students attending the Agricultural
Technical Institute (ATI) in Wooster, Ohio. If no students meet the selection criteria, the scholarship(s) will
be open to all students enrolled in the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences.
Scholarship recipients, the number of recipients, and amount of each scholarship may be recommended
by the highest ranking official at ATl or his/her designee and shall be determined in accordance with the
then current guidelines and procedures for scholarship administration established by the college, in
consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

The highest ranking official in the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences or his/her
designee has the discretion to hold all or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be
used in subsequent years, and/or reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment
principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donors named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the College of Food, Agricultural, and Environmental Sciences or
his/her designee to identify a similar purpose consistent with the original intent of the donors.
Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the
Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the policies of the University and Foundation.
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The Aaron S. Whitmer Scholarship Fund

The Aaron S. Whitmer Memorial Fund was established August 28, 2015, by the Board of Trustees of The
Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the Board of Directors of The Ohio
State University Foundation, with gifts from his parents, Daniel and Donna Whitmer, and friends and
family. Effective August 31, 2018, the fund description was revised. Effective November 18, 2021, the
fund name and description shall be revised.

Aaron Whitmer touched many lives with his kind heart, sense of humor, and generous spirit prior to his
death in July 2008 at the age of sixteen. He is remembered by his parents, brother, grandparents, aunts,
uncles and many other relatives and friends. Aaron grew up in Beavercreek, Ohio. He hoped to study
medicine at Ohio State and become a physician. Aaron attended Beavercreek High School and was
active as a tutor. Aaron battled brain cancer with bravery and determination but accepted his fate with a
calm presence of mind that was rooted in his belief in God's plan for him. He fulfilled his mission on this
earth by leaving those who knew him with an understanding that even if our life is relatively short, we can
have a profound impact on the lives of those with whom we interact.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to provide scholarship support to students enrolled in
the College of Medicine who are focused on a career in cancer research. Scholarship recipients, the
number of recipients, and amount of each scholarship shall be determined in accordance with the then
current guidelines and procedures for scholarship administration established by the college, in
consultation with Student Financial Aid.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

The highest-ranking official in the College of Medicine or his/her designee has the discretion to hold all or
a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in subsequent years, and/or reinvest
all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University and the Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund, in consultation with
the donors named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes
unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the University and Foundation may modify the
purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall consult the highest ranking official in the
College of Medicine or his/her designee to identify a similar purpose consistent with the original intent of
the donors. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and
the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the policies of the University and Foundation.

1085



November 16-18, 2021, Board of Trustees Meetings

The Ohio State University November 18, 2021
Board of Trustees

The Dr. Walter F. Ersing Endowed Fund for PhD Dissertation/Master’s Thesis Research
in Adapted Physical Education

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish The Dr. Walter F. Ersing (MA
1955, PhD 1964) Endowed Fund for PhD Dissertation/Master’s Thesis Research in Adapted Physical
Education effective November 18, 2021, with gifts from Dr. Stephen A. Butterfield (PhD 1984) and Jeanne
Z. Butterfield.

The annual distribution from this fund supports PhD level research in the College of Education and
Human Ecology in the following order of priority listed below.

. First priority is to support up to two years PhD dissertation research or one year of Master’s thesis
research in adapted physical education for youth, teenage or young adult populations in the Department
of Human Sciences as determined by the highest ranking official in the college or his/her designee.

. Second priority given to PhD level research to support up to two years of study in exercise
science for youth, teenage or young adult populations.

. Third priority given to PhD level research to support up to two years of study in physical education
teacher education.

. Fourth priority given to PhD level research for one year of study in sports management related to
special needs in youth, teenage or young adult populations or to any appropriate future program areas
focused on adapted physical education research for youth, teenage or young adult populations as
determined by the highest ranking official in the college or his/her designee.

Expenditures shall be recommended by the highest ranking official in the department or his/her designee
and shall be approved in accordance with the then current guidelines and procedures established by the
college.

The highest ranking official in the College of Education and Human Ecology or his/her designee has the
discretion to hold all or a portion of the unused distribution in the distribution fund to be used in
subsequent years, and/or reinvest all or a portion of the unused distribution in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donors that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donors named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the College of Education and Human Ecology or his/her designee to
identify a similar purpose consistent with the original intent of the donors. Modifications to endowed funds
shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in
accordance with the policies of the University and Foundation.
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The Sally Haltom Endowed Scholarship Fund in Optometry

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish The Sally Haltom Endowed
Scholarship Fund in Optometry effective November 18, 2021, with gifts from Dr. Jeffrey S. Williams (BS
2003, OD 2007).

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to provide required equipment (hand-helds, BIOs,
Funduscopy lenses, etc.) to one or more incoming optometry students who were members of The Ohio
State University Pre-Optometry Club. Expenditures shall be approved in accordance with the then current
guidelines and procedures established by the College of Optometry, in consultation with Student
Financial Aid. It is the donor’s hope that the recipients share in the legacy of giving back to the college to
support students.

The unused distribution in the distribution fund shall be reinvested in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donor named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation, may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the College of Optometry or his/her designee to identify a similar
purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved
by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the
policies of the University and Foundation.
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The Dr. Richard E. Weisbarth Endowed Fund for Faculty Leadership

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish The Dr. Richard E. Weisbarth
Endowed Fund for Faculty Leadership effective November 18, 2021, with gifts from Dr. Richard E.
Weisbarth (BS 1978, OD 1980) and matching gifts from Alcon.

The annual distribution from this fund shall be used to encourage faculty members from the College of
Optometry to go above and beyond their normal responsibilities to take on leadership roles inside and
outside the college and the University, promoting the growth and development of the optometry
profession. Expenditures shall be approved in accordance with the then current guidelines and
procedures established by the college.

Unused annual distribution shall be reinvested in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. Should the University units referenced in this endowment restructure in the future, the terms of
the endowment shall apply to their successors in interest. The University and the Foundation may modify
the purpose of this fund, in consultation with the donor named above. In accordance with Ohio Revised
Code, if the purpose of the fund becomes unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, the
University and Foundation may modify the purpose of this fund. The University and the Foundation shall
consult the highest ranking official in the College of Optometry or his/her designee to identify a similar
purpose consistent with the original intent of the donor. Modifications to endowed funds shall be approved
by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the
policies of the University and Foundation.
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The Sheila Thomas-Jackson Endowed Scholarship Fund in Pharmacy

The Board of Trustees of The Ohio State University, in accordance with the guidelines approved by the

Board of Directors of The Ohio State University Foundation, shall establish The Sheila Thomas-Jackson
Endowed Scholarship Fund in Pharmacy effective November 18, 2021, with gifts from Dr. Sheila Marie

Thomas-Jackson (BS 1992, PHP 2000).

The annual distribution from this fund to provide a scholarship to a student who is enrolled in the College
of Pharmacy’s Bachelor of Science in the Pharmaceutical Sciences program and intends to continue on
to the Doctor of Pharmacy program. Recipients will be selected by the college’s scholarship committee, in
consultation with Student Financial Aid. It is the donor’s desire that the scholarships be awarded with
particular attention to, but not limited to, African American students. The scholarship may be renewed
until the recipient graduates from the Doctor of Pharmacy program.

The Ohio State University’s mission and admissions policy supports educational diversity. The University
may modify any criteria used to select scholarship recipients should the criteria be found, in whole or in
part, to be contrary to federal or state law or University policy.

Unused annual distribution shall be reinvested in the endowment principal.

The investment and management of and expenditures from all endowment funds shall be in accordance
with University policies and procedures, as approved by the Board of Trustees. As authorized by the
Board of Trustees, a fee may be assessed against the endowment portfolio for the University’s costs of
development and fund management.

It is the desire of the donor that the endowment established herein should benefit the University in
perpetuity. The University and the Foundation reserve the right to modify the purposes of this fund, in
consultation with the donor named above, or if the purpose of the fund become unlawful, impracticable,
impossible to achieve, or wasteful, provided that such fund shall only be used for the University’s
charitable purposes. In seeking such modification, the University and the Foundation shall consult the
highest ranking official the College of Pharmacy or his/her designee. Modifications to endowed funds
shall be approved by the University’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Directors, in
accordance with the policies of the University and Foun